M@I

* HFRZE iR B R A F

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability

RESHETMRINERA A
(Stock Code Bz 71X 5% : 848)

Annual Report

FE®S

2021




CONTENTS
= 8%

2 Corporate Profile
DB

8 Mission Statement
NEfEd

4 Financial Highlights
e

6 Retail Network
BERES

9 Chairman’s Statement
EERWRES

11 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIEEF mEA D

27 Biographies of Directors and Secretary
SEEMMERRE

31 Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRS

45 Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HERERRE

76 Directors’ Report

EFgRS

89 Independent Auditor’s Report
BB E

95 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
LEEEmR

96 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
LeErEER

97 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBI R

100 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
LEEmEER

102  Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REREMER

106 Notes to Financial Statements

MR

251 Corporate Information
NEIER



CORPORATE PROFILE
ABET

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the operation and management of department stores and property
development in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The shares
of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 5 May 2008 (the
“Listing Date”).

With a unique operation model of “retail + commercial property”, the
Group has been growing rapidly since its establishment, and has
achieved scale expansion across the country by duplicating this model.
Supported by lands acquired at low costs, the Group uses its physical
retail to nurture property, building a closed ecological cycle in which its
core business supplements and supports each other.

Since Shenzhen Dongmen store, the first store of the Group, opened in
1997, the Group has been concentrating on development and careful
planning for over 20 years, and leveraging its strong competitiveness
and reform and innovation keeping pace with times, the leading position
of the Group in Southern China has been strengthened step by step.
The Group has also further expanded into the most developed markets
with the fastest growth rate in Eastern China, Southwestern China and
Northern China, becoming the industry leader in numbers of regions. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group had 48 stores with total gross floor
area of approximately 3.098 million sg.m., of which self-owned properties
accounted for 77.91% in gross floor area. The major cities under its
coverage include Shenzhen and Zhuhai in Guangdong; Chengdu,
Nanchong and Mianyang in Sichuan; Chongging; Wuxi, Yangzhou,
Taizhou, Nanjing and Huai'an in Jiangsu; Zibo, Laiwu and Heze in
Shandong; Qinhuangdao and Baoding in Hebei; Shenyang and Jinzhou
in Liaoning; Taiyuan in Shanxi; and Hohhot and Baotou in Inner Mongolia.

The Group actively grasps the development trend of medium-to-high end
physical retail in China, empowers new retail through the integration of
online and offline advantages and opening up upstream and downstream
channels to create new offline consumption experience featuring multi-
scenario and high efficiency at all times, and strives to achieve the
transformation from traditional department store retail to new retail.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at www.maoye.cn.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of the corporate
communications of the Company (including but not limited to annual
reports, interim reports and circulars) by sending reasonable prior notice
in writing to the share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications in either English or Chinese version will receive both
English and Chinese versions of this annual report since both languages
are bound together into one booklet.
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Statement
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Intelligence Creates a Happy Life
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR E

Summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities and equity for the last 5 financial years is set out below:

EERBELEVRFENEE BEE - AEAEQBENT !

OPERATING RESULTS KSR
For the years ended 31 December
HE12A3HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
IS ARETT  ARETT ARETT AR®TR
Total sales proceeds and HEMENBEREERA RS
rental income’ 11,547,236 10,688,804 15415742  15787,762  15711,849
Total operating revenue? PN 6,399,996 8,016,385 7,940,561 7,848,911 7,174,316
Operating profit - Filpe! 1,614,821 1,304,819 2,701,985 3,007,175 2,749,613
Profit/ (Loss) for the year EEFE/ (518) 110,592 (248,996) 471,046 1,127,221 1,268,409
Profit attributable to: EMLH) 5
— Owners of the parent —BAREREEA 65,685 (174,636) 186,262 799,403 1,071,973
— Minority interests DY RER 44,907 (74,360) 284,784 327,818 196,436
Basic earnings/ (0ss) REART/ (5518)
per share (RMBJ? (NEHT)® 0.01 (0.03) 0.04 0.16 0.21
Total sales proceeds and rental income Total operating revenue
HERSMIEREAEWAEEE KEWALEEE
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(ARBEBET) (ARBBEET)
20000 100000
15712 15788 15416 8000 7849 o4 8016
15000 7174
6,400
11,547 6000
10,689
10000
4000
5000
2000
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M TE AR

HIGHLIGHTS OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AR RARAE

W

As at 31 December

®12831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20205 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
INGLET ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARETR
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets EERH 51,744,914 51,307,134 53,830,059 50,969,724 47,831,805
Total liabilities EERE 35477911 35851470 37,675,030  35674,838 34,043,632
Total equity R iAE 16,267,003 15455664 16,155,029 15,294,886 13,788,173
- Attributable to owners —BAEERFEA
of the parent FE(hER 13,715,262 12,968,145 13,030,346 12,300,008 11,072,182
- Attributable to minority interests ~ — /D BURR R FEIL T 2,551,741 2,487,519 3,124,683 2,994,878 2,715,991
Notes: Mz -

1.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

Total sales proceeds and rental income represent the sum of total sales proceeds
from concessionaire sales and revenue from direct sales at the department stores of
the Group.

Total operating revenue represents the sum of the Group’s revenue and other
income.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2021
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB65,685,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
is based on the net loss attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB174,636,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB186,262,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB799,403,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2017
is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the parent of approximately
RMB1,071,973,000 and weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000.

1.

HEPMMSRERAEWABIERIEAERMAR
B4 MBI S AR EIHWR AR IE B A KRR

LB AMREE A E B R B AU A BIABAD ©

HE2021F12B31HIEFENESREARRHT
REFAEDEEITEABGEIIBOARE
65,685,00070 K B B 1T IR (5 B MNAE F 19 i@ A%
5,140,326,00088 51 & o

HZE2020F12B31HIEEENEREARFED
REFAEHEFEABGIEENARE
174,636,00070 K& B 21T A& 1D BY M AE S35 & 48 A
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2019F12B3 1 HIEFENESREARRF T
REFATHEFTEABGFABOARE
186,262,0007T K B 817 D BN F 35 @Ak
5,140,326,00008 51 & ©

HE2018F 12831 HIEFENESREARRFT
REFAEDEEIFTEABGEIIBNOARE
799,403,0007T & B 817 B 17 U N4 T 45 L 58 A%
5,140,326,00088 51 & ©

HE2017TF12B3INHIEFENESREARRF T
BRESATIRIFEARGEEANEOARY
1,071,973,0007t & B 2217 I 5 B MNIEF 9 E 58 AR
5,140,326,00008 515 °
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RETAIL NETWORK

TEP
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
1 Shenzhen Dongmen Guangdong 40,710  Mar-1997 Owned Department Store
IR PIIE [& 1997438 BE BE
2 Shenzhen Huagiangbei Guangdong 63,243 Oct-2003 Leased Department Store
RN SRIEE [E®R 2003%104 BE BE
3 Shenzhen Shennan Guangdong 10,607 Dec-2004 Leased Department Store
IR EE IS &R 20044128 BE B8
4 Shenzhen Nanshan Guangdong 44,871  Sep-2009 Owned Department Store
wIIE LS [& 2009494 BE BE
5 Zhuhai Xiangzhou Guangdong 35,701 Nov-2001 Leased Department Store
HBEMNE =R 20014114 BE BE
6 Shenzhen Outlet Guangdong 23,141  Dec-1999 Leased Outlets
R B B I &R 19994124 HE BN AR HT
7 Chongaing Jiangbei Chongaing 67,537 Oct-2004 Leased Department Store
BRETILE BE 20044108 HE BE
8 Rendong Sichuan 31,078 Sep-1998 Owned Department Store
NG )1 1998498 =SES) BE
9 Guanghua Sichuan 67,914 Dec-2009 Owned Department Store
FEEE o) 2009128 BE BE
10 Chengdu Chunxi Sichuan 32,066 Nov-2013 Owned Department Store
PR & BRIE el 2013F 114 BE BE
11 Yanshikou Maoye Complex  Sichuan 42,897  Jun-2005 Owned Department Store
B OXERME )1 2005464 =SES) BE
12 Nanchong Wuxing Sichuan 25,695 Nov-2001 Owned Department Store
ERAEZE o)1 20014118 BE BE
13 Mianyang Xingda Sichuan 27,795 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
MR B IS el 2008494 BE BE
14 Zibo Maoye Times Square ~ Shandong 86,677 Apr-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
MIERERAERE INE=S 2015544 BB By
15 Laiwu Maoye Complex Shandong 94,616 Dec-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
BT ERME 1= 20174128 BB By RO
16 Heze Huihe Shandong 31,187 Mar-2011 Owned Department Store
SR B ANE LIz 20114E38 BE BE
17 Zibo Maoye Complex Shandong 100,724  Aug-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
REAEE SN INE=S 2013484 BB By

6  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED X ¥EIFEZERBRAE]
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RETAIL NETWORK

TP
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
sk PIE&TE H#1% (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
18 Zibo Maoye Plaza Shandong 36,791 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
HIBREREISE L= 2008%F12H SES) BE
19 Zibo Maoye Taikerong Mall ~ Shandong 25,337  Sep-2011 Owned Department Store
MR ERERE SIS INE=S 2011494 BB BE
20 Zibo Maoye Shopping Mall ~ Shandong 9,761 Sep-1999 Leased Department Store
IR E B IS Wz 199998 HE BE
21 Wuxi Shopping Mall Jiangsu 200,433  Oct-2007 Managed Shopping Centre
EFBYPOE L&k 20074108 EIEE B
22 Taizhou Maoye Dongjing Jiangsu 86,066 Jan-2015 Owned Shopping Centre
TINKERES TLEF 2015514 BB Y
23 Nanjing Maoye Complex Jiangsu 63,116  Nov-2016 Owned Department Store
EEBETN S JLER 20165114 BAE BE
24 Wuxi Yibai Jiangsu 78,695 Mar-2016 Owned Shopping Centre
BHEEE JTER 2016434 SES) BT
25 Yangzhou Wenchang Jiangsu 21,485 May-2011 Owned Shopping Centre
BN EIE TLEF 2011454 BB Y
26 Taizhou First Department Store  Jiangsu 40,358 Oct-2009 Owned Department Store
BMNE—BEE AR 20094104 BA BE
27 Huai’an Maoye Complex Jiangsu 59,856 Apr-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
TER IR FERMIE JTER 2019444 SES) BT
28 Taizhou Maoye Complex Jiangsu 108,566 Dec-2021 Owned Shopping Centre
EN G E SN TLEF 20214124 BAE BYH O
29 Taiyuan Maoye Complex Shanxi 252,882 Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
KRR FE K S L7g 2014118 BB By
30 Taiyuan Liuxiang Shanxi 30,616 Dec-2008 Owned Department Store
KRB IS L7 2008F 124 SES) BE
31 Baotou Maoye Complex Inner Mongolia 63,268 Jan-2017 Owned Shopping Centre
Phase |
BEARFE X —HAE e 2017F1H BB WYL
32 Victory Times City Inner Mongolia 190,915 Nov-2010 Leased Shopping Centre
SRS e 20108114 HE YR
33 Victory Mall City Inner Mongolia 131,987 Dec-2013 Owned Shopping Centre
S RERIE NES 20135124 SES) BYH O
34 Baotou Donghe Victory Inner Mongolia 74,709  Nov-2014 Owned Shopping Centre
Plaza
BEEAE SN ESE AN 2014114 BB By
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RETAIL NETWORK

TEP
Gross
Floor Area
No. Store Name Province (sq.m.) Open Date Ownership Retail Format
BE@mRA
st PIE&TE #1145 (FAK) BEBH MEFRBE ER
35 Victory Commercial Building  Inner Mongolia 48,187 May-2003 Owned Department Store
L NEEE A 2003454 BE BE
36 Victory International Plaza Inner Mongolia 83,969 Oct-2008 Owned Department Store
MM ER IS S NES 2008104 BB BE
37 Victory Shopping Centre Inner Mongolia 63,173 Sep-2006 Owned Department Store
B BB OE AN 2006494 BB BE
38 Baotou Victory Commercial  Inner Mongolia 77,500 Oct-2010 Owned Department Store
Building
BEESMBEEE NED 20104104 BB BE
39 Shenyang Tiexi Liaoning 48,496  Jul-2012 Owned Outlets
B E IS RE 2012478 BE B SRHET
40 Jinzhou Maoye Complex Liaoning 48,578 Feb-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
HRIN I ZE R M = 2019428 BA B0
41 Xiandai Shopping Plaza Hebei 36,926 Oct-2006 Leased Department Store
RABYESIE 3G 20064104 HE BE
42 Qinhuangdao Mall Hebei 26,697 May-1996 Owned Department Store
=E25B/EE JAE 1996558 B BE
43 Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Hebei 46,287  Jan-2002 Leased Shopping Centre
REETRIE G 2002418 HE B0
44 Qinhuangdao Jindu Hebei 46,610 Sep-2008 Owned Department Store
=E25SHEIE Ak 2008498 =SES) BE
45 Hualian Commercial Building Hebei 12,737  Mar-1989 Owned Department Store
i ES JAE 1989438 B BE
46 Baoding Yanzhao Hebei 61,881 Sep-2014 Owned Department Store
REFHIE Ak 2014499H BB BE
47 Baoding Guomao Hebei 24,826 Dec-2010 Owned Outlets
RERE S 3G 20104128 BB BAFHRHET
48 Qinhuangdao Maoye Hebei 171,333  Oct-2019 Owned Shopping Centre
Complex
REBRERMIE AE 20194104 BB By RO

8 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 BIfS i 5 fRA 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 EE3H %



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEREBEE

In 2021, facing the huge impact of the complex global dynamics and
the spread of the epidemic in China, China has adhered to the general
principle of seeking progress in a stable manner, scientifically coordinated
prevention and control of the epidemic and economic and social
development, strengthened cross-cycle adjustment of macro policies,
and increased the intensity of physical economic support. With the
continuous recovery of the national economy, the gross domestic product
exceeded RMB114 ftrillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%
as compared with that of 2020; The total retail sales of consumer goods
reached 44 ftrillion, representing a year-on-year increase of 12.5% as
compared with that of 2020. In 2021, the Group has taken a series of
strategic measures based on the main business and intensive cultivation
to improve operational efficiency, continuously upgrade and optimize
existing business formats, strengthen strategic brand cooperation,
fully tap the performance growth potential of high-quality commodity
resources, standardize quality and safety operations, and effectively
adjust business strategies and marketing initiatives.

After years of development, as of 31 December 2021, the Group owned
48 stores. In terms of retail format, the Group owned 17 shopping
centres, 28 department stores and 3 outlets. The Group’s physical stores
occupied excellent locations and business areas with crowded passenger
flow. Benefiting from offline traffic and proximity to the business district,
the impact of the Group’s stores continuously grew. On 12 December
2021, Taizhou Maoye Complex was officially opened for business, with
a total construction area of 109,000 square meters, located in central
business district, with advantageous geographical location, adjacent
to the Fengcheng River Scenic Resort (Bl A E & &) with charming
four seasons. It echoes with Taizhou Old Street (FEINZ%T), Wanghai
Tower (2781%), Sanshui Bay (= 7K/&) and Taizhou State Guest House
(MBI EER), integrating commercial prosperity, natural scenery and
humanistic characteristics. Taizhou Maoye Complex store is committed to
providing consumers with high-quality lifestyle services, leading the trend
of metropolitan fashion with brand new trades, and creating a vibrant
space integrating life, fashion, culture and entertainment.

In 2021, the Group promoted the Company’s operation and development
though a number of measures, including stablizing operation and
promoting sustainable development, continuously upgrading and
optimizing department stores, and enhancing customer experience.
The online business is constantly iteratively updated, and the business
is growing rapidly. Besides, the Group also continued to dispose of
non-core assets, which would assist the Group to further focus on its
core business and facilitate the Group’s future business growth and
development.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERBEE

Looking forward to 2022, the economic outlook and the retail industry
remain fraught with uncertainties and challenges. Being in the post-
epidemic era, local epidemics have risen and fallen one after another,
which will continue to affect the process of economic recovery. The
Group will earnestly fulfill the social responsibilities of enterprises in
the prevention and control of the epidemic, and continuously improve
the quality of its own services and operations, continue to consolidate
its core management capabilities, take its advantages in the omni-
channel business layout, and achieve flexible and effective sustainable
development in the commercial competition environment of normalization
of the epidemic and repeated fluctuations and rapid changes in the
market. At the same time, the Group will firmly adhere to the direction
of digitalization, actively promote digital upgrading, create online and
offline omni-channel solutions, enhance refined operation capabilities,
take commercial retail and real estate development as the core pillar
industries, and take industrial investment and capital operation as the link
to promote diversified and cross-regional development in an all-round
way.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all of our employees

for their dedication and express my gratitude to our shareholders and
customers.

Huang Mao Ru
Chairman

25 March 2022
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EREREN

MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In 2021, in face of complicated, harsh international conditions and
COVID-19 spread among other challenges, China insisted on the
work keynote of steady progress, controlled the pandemic along
with socioeconomic development, enhanced macroeconomic policy
cross-cycle regulation, and enlarged physical economy supports.
Along with recovery of national economy, in 2021, Chinese GDP
exceeded RMB114 trillion, increasing 8.1% compared to the year of
2020; the total retail sales of social consumer goods totaled RMB44
trillion, increasing 12.5% compared to the year of 2020.

In 2021, as normalized disease control became more accurate and
efficient, Chinese resident income and employment levels continued
improving, the policies to promote sales were gradually implemented
and gaining effects. According to the data of China National
Commercial Information Center, the aggregate retail value of top
100 nationwide large-size retailers recorded a year-on-year growth
of 8.2%, increasing by 22.0 percentage points from that in 2020.
Facing the challenge of COVID-19, Chinese retailing industry is super
resilient, enterprises are actively fighting against the disease, bravely
undertaking the supply to market, leading the consumption mode by
new trade and new model, accelerating the integrated development
of online and offline business, driving the innovation and transition
of retailing industry, and developing new trade, new model and
new scenarios rapidly. In the tendency of consumption upgrading,
people show strong demands both mentally and physically, which
encourages the diversification and personification of consumer
demands, and the development direction of retailers is to provide
excellent contents, high quality services, and diverse experiences.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

- RERERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B wmEASR

Il. OPERATIONAL REVIEW

In 2021, the Group’s sales income and rental income totaled
RMB11,547.2 million, increasing 8.0% year-on-year; the Company
recorded net profit of RMB110.6 million, increasing 144.4% year-on-
year.

During the Reporting period, the Group deeply rooted in principal
business, increased working efficiency through a series of strategic
measures, upgraded current trades, enhanced strategic brand
cooperation, fully tapped the growth potential of excellent commaodity
resources, standardized quality safety operation, and effectively
adjusted business strategies and marketing approaches.

1. Stable Operation, Continuing Development

In 2021, although there were sporadic outbreaks of COVID-19
in some regions, the maturing controls took effects, so the
impact on consumer market was reducing, and the consumer
market was recovering at a steady pace. According to market
operations since the beginning of pandemic, consumer groups,
consumer features, consumer habits and consumer hot-spots
were deeply influenced by the pandemic, and the layout of
consumer market was undergoing profound changes.

During the Reporting period, the Group took multiple measures
to build up diverse advantages in various regions, presenting
highlights of shop performance. Under the pressure of restricted
post-pandemic expansion and operational quality increase, all
shops gathered ideas, innovated operations, satisfied a diversity
of consumer demands by optimizing consumer experience,
enriching operational contents, cultivating operational measures
and increasing service quality etc., gaining good effects in harsh
market conditions.

12 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 BIfS i 5 [RA 5
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During the Reporting period, the Group optimized HR structure,
introduced core specialists for critical segments, including
merchants attraction, operation and human resources, to
establish a professional, young, combating core management
team; the Group built up a full life cycle institutional process
system, to promote the corporate standardization and
normalization, control the corporate operational risks, enhance
the efficiency of interdepartmental collaboration, thus promote
and enlarge the further improvements of corporate performance;
the Group set up a systematic incentive and assessment
system to fully activate employees and drive organizational
development; the Group strengthened organizational structure
adjustment, split city companies regionally, promoted a more
flattened and refined management of the organization, rationally
allocated resources, and implemented the policies efficiently with
concentrated advantages.

Upgrading and optimizing shops, enhancing
customer experience

During the Reporting period, the Group insisted on quality
development, upgraded levels, improved offline shopping
experience to attract clients, and actively provided diverse
consumer scenarios for brand owners and consumers.
In brand upgrading, the Group introduced a number of
famous international products, boutiques, watches and
other brands, and all business units actively grasped market
changes, consumer features, ambient conditions, and their
own characteristics to speed up the operational adjustment,
introduce new operational resources, enrich new operational
contents, improve new operational vitality and meanwhile
upgrade existing brands; in regard to consumer scenario, the
Group mainly operated scenario-based fast fashion, lifestyle
supermarkets, cinema and video games, trendy boutiques,
fashion apparel, new-style catering, children’s entertainment,
life support, fitness and sports, etc., focusing on emational
marketing, through a number of young fun and innovative
scenario marketing activities, integrating social networking,
parent-child, arts, etc., bringing diverse consumer experiences,
driving passenger flow and sales to increase steadily; in
regard to marketing, the Group paid more attention to online
traffic attraction, offline experience, and introduced interactive
elements and hot topics favored by the young people, and
deepened the cognition and influence of the shop brands by the
promotion of contents on Douyin and Wechat official accounts.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREsTmE D
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Expanding sales network, solidifying regional core
position

As one of the leading mid-high end physical retailers in China,
the Group advanced steadily for the purpose of solidifying the
leadership of shops in core business circles and improving the
city influence. On 12 December 2021, Taizhou Maoye Complex
(FTrINKZERH) was opened for business, with a total floor
area of 109,000 sgm, located in CBD, with advantageous
geography, adjacent to the picturesque Fengcheng River
Scenic Area, not far away from Taizhou Old Street, Seaview
Building, Sanshui Bay, Taizhou Chunlan Guest House, integrating
commercial prosperity, natural scenery and cultural features.
Taizhou Maoye Complex is committed to offering high quality
lifestyle services, leading metropolitan fashions with brand new
trades, and building a vital space that integrates life, fashion,
cultures and entertainments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 48 shops, including 17
shopping centers, 28 department stores and 3 outlets, covering
21 cities, based on major shops, supported by strong shops
and supplemented by new shops, to form a benign development
trend, increasing market size, brand influence and operational
quality continuously. The Group is taking the lead in the industry
in terms of operating results, steadily improves the core
competences, steps on a new stage of comprehensive strength,
and forms collaborative development of multiple trades, such as
department stores, shopping centers and outlets, to integrate
offline and online trades fully.

14 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 BIfS i 5 fRA 5
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EEMHAD

TERAIHE ML > ZE &0
i1

EABRELHNTESHRERTER
Zz— AEBUBEEBEMERZOE
B TEMAUMEFRTEELS
BHESHE > 12021FE128128 »
ZMEERMEARE BERERE
B10.9BFE AR UM EmER
O MR BB BT U= FE R
B rEs& BENEHG - EE
N ZKE - RINEBEEE B E AT
FE-RETEELE - GRANMAA
XA o HINKERMPIER IR
BHEBERHEESREEERE B
I ERS|IBETER TE— &
EEE FE X 1R%a 5N
SEIIZER e

HZE2021F 128318 AEBEEHA
ABRPIE IR ERE DM AEEHE
17REY R0 285K B B R3K BIE
Ko tHEMEBE21ERT B2
TUKREARER BEAZE 5
AHETHNREFERERD  TmIFHRE
MR E MR EESFERTT
RS EBETEBL RZOBRFRED
BrRs Ga8NELTHEM:
ERTiHmaaE BY o BSR
HELERPRER B LETTED
HENRTFEE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

Iterating online business, fast growing business

The Group pays great attention to online business development,
to enhance members’ full channel consuming experience,
strengthen shopping and service functions, and build one-stop
online service platform.

During the Reporting period, “Mao Yue Hui (X1R&)”
membership management system is always persistent in
the customer oriented philosophy, to improve membership
management system, digitize membership, realize marketing,
sales, service and other automation, build a client one-stop
service system, so that users may experience more time-
effective, convenient, efficient and considerate member services.
Meanwhile, relying on shop offline materials, streaming media
promotion, online point mall, as well as SMS and various store
marketing activities promotion, the Group optimizes stored value
card, privilege card, point mall recharge and other functional
modules, and adds Douyin mall membership synchronization
and Tencent advertising member behavior data docking function
and other data analysis capabilities; with the interconnection
between the membership management system and the various
shop business systems, the Group will gradually provide users
with accurate and personalized consumer experience. In 2021,
the number of new members for the membership management
system of “Mao Yue Hui” reached approximately 1.72 million,
achieving a conversion rate of 26%.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREsTmE D

ﬁéﬁﬁ*%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ#ﬁ » EFFIRIE

FERTER EXZHFER R
TERREHERR RIELBEYA
ARFSINEE » T8 —uh AR EBR T F

PAN
IZIO

WEAR RITEIZETEAKE
BEAUBERARLHNZLES
TETEEERAY BBETEHT
b BRTHEEHE HE RBEEE
FEHE HTERR —IhN RS
o ERPERIBER 2N -8
BB ERRT B R K5
[ TR IR E R EED
B UREENSPEEHEEE
WE BtREF - E=2F - BoH
M ESERRE gL S E
ZERY MENESEETAHE
HBENESBEDMED BES
EEEAMEAERMERERK R
MEMBE ZTARPREEE
EMEEH B RS ER - 20214 > [TRIRE
CECTEAMMEGTEL1728 A
e a8 {EXA26%-

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZE KRB RA T

15



During the Reporting period, the “Mao Le Hui (FR#4£2E)”
online beauty vertical e-commerce platform realized the two-
way flow of online and offline customers and offered one-key
point service for shopping through Maoye and brand owner’s
two-way automatic point credit system. At the same time,
the Group reached strategic cooperation with the third-party
platforms of Douyin and Tencent Huiju, connected the links of
goods, orders, and after-sales of each platform through API,
and realized the automatic processing of the whole process.
Through the public account, video account, private domain
community, SMS, WeChat advertising, KOL cooperation, APP
advertising etc, the Group promoted, attracted more members
to continue shopping consumption with rich online activities, and
promoted consumption growth through live broadcast. On 31
October 2021, Douyin platform stars live broadcast with goods
achieved the highest transaction value in a single session, and
achieved sales of over RMB100 million and broke the record
of retail industry purchases. As of 31 December 2021, a total
of 406 brands settled in “Mao Le Hui’. In 2021, “Mao Le Hui”
added 1.08 million new registered members, with sales reaching
RMB430 million, increase 49% year-on-year.

During the Reporting period, the three-in-one store-
concessionaire-supplier “Xiao Hong Mao” (/NAL/%) merchant
service platform focused on merchants and shopfronts
management, and established a full life cycle merchants
management mechanism from investment promotion, entry to
exit, and realized shop management standardization, digitization
and intelligentization through the offline process running
online, to help shops reduce operational costs and increase
management efficiency. The Group provided a number of
services such as quick payment cashier, self-service purchase,
material purchase, merchant payment, shop service, data
query, process approval, shopping guide entry and departure,
decoration management, quality management, among others,
supporting APP, WEB, PAD and other terminals. In 2021, “Xiao
Hong Mao” had 48 retail shops across China.

16 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 BIfS i 5 fRA 5

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEMHAD

WRESHR IRER B EERER
EETAERTELIHETREREE
B oBBRERRESEOBEE
Bohe MARABEEREY—#BAR
DRFE-FREARNFIRENERE
= HFESEMBEREE BBAPIH]
BETAEEL B ERREE
HBERREEtRE - TEBAR
SR ARAESE S AT B B E S ME
BE -KOLEE-APPEES S /&
THE LEENE LEFHRSIE
NS ERFEBYHE ERBEE
F#EEFHEL R 172021F108
SR HEBEFaEANEEEREES
EESMRE TERBREIHER
B E e B E2021F128 31
H> HB406EREAG MMREE ] o
20214 » TR 4428 | #i%sE & E108
BAHEBREARKAIIET B
EE 18 £49% o

WEHAR I —SFIB—HER =
—BUNMIRI EERSEEUEE
BFESRNEIRAZO B
EEBIRIENEE LB
BEIE, BB T RiEA b6 B1]
FIEEIBZE/L - BT BEETL
HYMEREBELEERS RS EE
MERMETIRTWEE - BBNE Y
ERE -BLAE FISRE  #8F
B AR ER  EEARS BB
EE -REEESZTERSE  XF
APP ~ WEB ~ PADZ #& i 20214 [/
AR IEBEEHISREEME-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEHHEDH

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

5. Sales of non-core listing equity investment, 5. HEIERO LHESFIZRE B8
optimization of asset structure &

From 8 May 2020 to 29 December 2021, our wholly owned
subsidiary Zhongzhao Investment Management Co.,Ltd. (1K
BEBEEABME/AT) sold on open market ZJBC Information
Technology Co., Ltd. (RERERIEERMBRMHERRE)
(“ZJBC”), a joint-stock limited company registered under the
PRC laws, listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000889), which had issued approximately 17.99% shares of
its registered capital. As at 29 December 2021, the Company
reduced its holding of ZJBC shares from approximately 22.18%
to approximately 4.19%.

From 23 August 2021 to 17 December 2021, our non-wholly-
owned subsidiary Maoye Commerce Co., Ltd. (55228515
BBRAE) sold on open market C.Q. Pharmaceutical Holding
Co., Ltd. (BEZERKMHBRAE) (“CQP”), a joint-stock limited
company registered under the PRC laws, listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000950), which had issued
34,846,438 CQP shares. Upon this sale, the Company reduced
its indirect holding of CQP shares from approximately 3.48% to
approximately 1.82%, as detailed in the announcements dated
from 1 September 2021 to 17 December 2021.

The proceeds from the disposal of non-core assets further
optimized the financial conditions of the Group, and reinforced
the capital foundation of the Group, helpful for the Group to
further focus on main business and promote and future business
growth and development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREsTRED

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the economy outlook and the retailing industry
are still facing many uncertainties and challenges. In the post-
pandemic era, regional outbreaks of the disease will continue to
impact the economic recovery. The Group will perform our corporate
social responsibilities in the disease control, constantly increase
our service and operational quality, solidify our core operational
capabilities, with advantages through full channel business layout,
to realize flexible, effective sustainability in the fluctuations and
fast changing competitions recurrent in the market affected by the
normalized pandemic. Meanwhile, the Group is firmly persistent in
digitization, promoting digital upgrading, building online/offline full
channel solutions, enhancing our refined operational capabilities, and
promoting diversified and cross-regional development backed by
commercial retailing and real estate development sectors, linked by
industrial investment and capital operation.
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PERFORMANCE OF MAJOR DEPARTMENT STORES' FEMERIF
Total Sales
Proceeds
and Gross
Rental Operation floor
No. Store Name Income Period? Area
HERRT
HRIEXREE
FiE MIERTE WA 4a%E [E#72 REmER
(RMB’000) (Years) ()
NS ) (&) (m)
1 Shenzhen Huagiangbei YR ILE 2,132,446 18.3 63,243
2 Taiyuan Maoye Complex KERERMIE 942,257 7.1 252,882
3 Guanghua HEE 791,914 12.1 67,914
4 Shenzhen Nanshan AYIE LS 744,944 12.3 44,871
5 Shenzhen Dongmen AYIEEPIE 596,068 24.9 40,710
6 Taizhou First Department Store  ZIMNFE—FHE 571,674 12.3 40,358
7 Victory Commercial Building HLHmEE 568,063 18.7 48,187
8 Victory International Plaza KL ERESE 478,562 13.3 83,969
9 Zibo Maoye Times Square MERERRERE 367,573 6.7 86,677
10 Xiandai Shopping Plaza RRBEYESZIS 306,571 15.2 36,926
11 Qinhuangdao Jindu =EEEHE 302,199 13.3 46,610
12 Shenzhen Outlet Store FEIN R AT IE 275,199 221 23,141
13 Zhuhai Xiangzhou HRBEINE 275,079 20.2 35,701
Notes: [

1

2

Major department stores are stores with annual total sales proceeds and rental
income of over RMB250 million;

Operation period was calculated until 31 December 2021.

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED % Z£ BB IR A RA A

2

FEME R EFHEMSIRREE R AL
BB ARB25ETHIFIE ;

JE T st E E2021E12H31H ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Total Sales Proceeds and Rental Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total sales proceeds and rental
income of the Group were RMB11,547.2 million, representing an increase
of 8.0% compared to the year of 2020. The main reason of the increase
was that although the retail sector was affected by the COVID-19
pandemic in certain areas, it was more controllable in general as
compared with the corresponding period in 2020. The Group continued
to improve the operating results of stores, enhanced operating efficiency
and accelerated the expansion of its online businesses. Same-store sales
proceeds and rental income of the Group were RMB11,472.8 million,
representing an increase of 8.9% compared to the year of 2020.

A %5 (o] B8

HEFSIIERAE WA LEEE
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2020 R HA4B BB mT > A E EIFEE(EPIE
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ABANRE11,472.8B BT B2020F g £
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For the year ended
31 December

HZE12A31HILLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETFIT

Total sales proceeds from T ENEIE S48 %E
concessionaire sales 8,601,035 8,136,773
Direct sales income BiHWRA 1,768,471 1,575,751
Rental income HEWA 1,177,730 976,370
Total sales proceeds and rental income  $HEFFERIE R E W A 4258 11,547,236 10,688,894

Among the total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021, total sales proceeds derived
from concessionaire sales accounted for 74.5%, those derived from
direct sales accounted for 15.3%, and those derived from rental
income accounted for 10.2%. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
sales proceeds from concessionaire sales were RMB8,601.0 million,
representing an increase of 5.7% compared to the year of 2020; direct
sales income were RMB1,768.5 million, representing an increase of
12.2% compared to the year of 2020; rental income were RMB1,177.7
million, representing an increase of 20.6% compared to the year of 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The total sales proceeds and rental income of the Group in the four

regions are set out as follows:

ANBERIB I AR ¢

Total sales proceeds and rental income
For the year ended 31 December

HEFSMEREEWARE

KREBENROAR A HEFFERIERIEEW

HE12B310LEE
2021 2020 Change
20214 20204 b

(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(NE¥ET ) ONSL:EwW) %
Eastern China FEH 1,543,639 1,455,701 6.0%
Southern China Ees) 4,047,741 3,526,995 14.8%
South-western China =] 1,665,507 1,863,719 -10.6%
Northern China iyl 4,290,349 3,842,479 11.7%
Total &5t 11,547,236 10,688,894 8.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2021, sales of apparels (including
men’s and ladies’ apparels) accounted for 27.4% (2020: 29.5%),
jewelries accounted for 22.6% (2020: 18.7%), leisure and sports goods
accounted for 11.4% (2020: 12.2%), cosmetics accounted for 16.6%
(2020: 15.9%), shoes and leather goods accounted for 5.9% (2020:
6.7%), others (including branded merchandise, children’s items, bedroom
and household goods, home appliances, supermarket and others)
accounted for 16.1% (2020: 17.0%).

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of the Group’s main
business amounted to RMB5,234.6 million, representing a decrease of
RMB1,677.2 million compared with RMB6,911.8 million for the year of
2020. The decrease in revenue was mainly because of the year-on-year
decrease in the income of property sales recognized according to the
schedule of the Group's property projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEHHEDH

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other income of the Group
amounted to RMB1,165.4 million, representing an increase of RMB60.8
million compared with RMB1,104.6 million for the year of 2020, of which,
the administration and management fee income and Promotion income
recorded year-on-year increases of RMB16.3 million and RMB34.2
million, respectively.

Cost of Sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, cost of sales of the Group
amounted to RMB2,170.2 million, representing a decrease of 32.8%
compared with RMB3,231.2 million for the year of 2020. The decrease in
cost of sales was mainly attributable to the income from property sales
for property projects recognized during the period decreased, resulting in
the decrease in corresponding costs.

Employee Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, employee expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB472.4 million, representing an increase of
13.8% compared with RMB415.2 million for the year of 2020, which was
mainly due to the fact that the corresponding period in 2020 was the
severe period under the COVID-19 pandemic, the State implemented
preferential social security policies and enterprises could enjoy reduction
or exemption of social security expenses, thus the relevant employee
expenses decreased.

Depreciation and Amortization

For the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation and amortization
of the Group amounted to RMB1,103.4 million, representing an increase
of 1.8% compared with RMB1,0883.4 million for the year of 2020, which
was mainly due to new addition of certain fixed assets during the current
period.

Payments for Short Term Leases and Leases of Low Value
Assets/Operating Lease Rental Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, payments for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets of the Group amounted to RMB8.0 million,
representing a decrease of 27.2% compared with operating lease rental
expenses of RMB10.9 million for the same period last year, which was
mainly due to the reason that certain high-value lease contracts with
undefined lease extension option were officially extended and included
in the new accounting standard for leases, resulting in a year-on-year
decrease in payments for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets for the period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other operating expenses of
the Group amounted to RMB1,153.1 million, representing an increase
of 0.7% compared with RMB1,145.0 million for the year of 2020. Other
operating expenses as percentage of total sales proceeds and rental
income decreased to 10.0% compared with 10.7% in the corresponding
period of 2020.

Other Gains and Losses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded other gains
of RMB121.8 million, representing an increase of RMB947.7 million
compared with other net loss of RMB825.9 million for the year of 2020.
This was primarily due to (i) gains of fair value change of investment
properties of RMB302.4 million recorded by the Group, representing a
year-on-year increase of RMB710.2 million as compared to the losses
of fair value change of investment properties of RMB407.8 million for
the corresponding period of 2020, which was due to the improvement
of certain regional markets and leases; and (i) gains of disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment of of RMB89.9 million recorded
by the Group, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB185.9
million as compared to the loss of disposal of RMB96.0 million for the
corresponding period of last year.

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, operating profit of the Group was
RMB1,614.8 million, representing an increase of 23.8% as compared
with RMB1,304.8 million for the year of 2020. This was primarily due to (i)
the increase in rents of the Group’s investment properties and recorded
positive results of operation, resulting in the increase in fair values; and (i)
the rental income of investment properties and stores recorded a year-
on-year increase.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, finance costs of the Group
amounted to RMB1,146.5 million, representing a decrease of 6.9%
compared with RMB1,231.5 million for the year of 2020. This was
primarily due to the slight decrease in the financing rates of the interest-
bearing liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEHHEDH

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB331.1 million, representing an increase of 5.8%
compared with RMB312.9 million for the year of 2020. The increase in
income tax expense was primarily due to certain subsidiaries liquidated
the provided tax in respect of land value-added tax during the year.

Profit for the year
As a result of the foregoing, for the year ended 31 December 2021:

— Net profit for the year was RMB110.6 million, representing an
increase of 144.4% as compared with the year of 2020;

— Without taking into account the effect of non-operating gains and
losses™, net profit for the year was RMB75.7 million, representing a
decrease of 79.9% as compared with RMB377.0 million for the year
of 2020.

* Non-operating gains and losses represent the gains and losses on fair value
changes and disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the
impairment loss of investment in an associate, the gains and losses on disposal
of property, plant and equipment items, investment properties and land lease
prepayments.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to RMB1,197.1 million, representing an increase of RMB150.4
million compared to the balance of RMB1,046.7 million as at 31
December 2020. The main cash inflow and cash outflow are set out as
follows:

(i)  Net cash inflow of RMB806.7 million arising from operating activities;
(i) Net cash outflow of RMB176.8 million arising from investment
activities, which mainly included:

(1) the outflow of RMB231.4 million in total arising from the
purchase of properties and equipment;

(2) the inflow of RMB79.7 million in total arising from the disposal of
properties and equipment;

(8) the outflow of RMB626.3 million from the purchase of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREsTRED

)

the inflow of RMB224.1 million in total from the disposal of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

the inflow of RMB207.3 million in total arising from the disposal
of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, i.e. shares of CQ Pharma and Haicheng Guarantee;

the inflow of RMB302.2 million arising from the partial disposal of
ZJBC, a partially-owned associate;

the inflow of RMB20.2 million arising from the receipt of
repayment from Hu Wubiao;

the cash outflow of RMB228.6 million arising from the payment
for the investments in Renhe Investment;

the outflow from the profit distribution to small and medium
shareholders of Maoye Commercial amounting to RMB31.8
million; and

(10) the inflow of RMB98.8 million due to the decrease in pledged

bank deposits; and

Net cash outflow of RMB499.9 million arising from financing
activities, which mainly included:

—

(1)

the cash inflow arising from new bank loans and other
borrowings of RMB6,267.1 million;

the cash outflow arising from repayment of bank borrowings and
other borrowings of RMB6,294.7 million;

the cash outflow arising from payment of interest of RMB825.9
million;

the lease expenses of approximately RMB443.6 million included
in the new accounting standard on leases;

the cash inflow arising from borrowings from fellow subsidiaries
amounting to RMB1,431.2 million; and

the cash outflow arising from repayment of borrowings from
fellow subsidiaries amounting to RMB634.0 million.

24 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 2Bl KR 12 B2 /5 IR A

HE A A EES B EHSE A
BRNEMEESHAAARY
22A1HETT

HEUARBEFZEEHEEFHTA
Hittiz e WEMNEsMEES HEIT
B BHERERZSFRAAR
207 3HE T ;

HEFENSIBMETCEREEE
RERAARKEI22BETT ;

WERIARZERRAARE20.258
8,

XN CHRENKRERRTRMAHA
Ei&228.6B 8T ;

REBESBEP/NRERATE A
REH31.8EET, &

(10) ERIRITERUR D  RAANR#98.8

BB, &

METHEENFHRTAEBARE
49.9F BT HP X EEE !

(1)

@

MIBRTEFRAEMEBERIRSAA
AR6,267T1BHETT;

BERTEIREMERIREESR
ARG 204.7TEE TS ;

MELZMMEENREERAEARE
82598 & 7T ;

MAHEEZEINEEZHOAR
MA43.6H B TT ;

BEANBABRMERMEEIRE RN
AANRME1 431288 T, &

BERRMNBABEAMELERS
AEARMG34.088 T

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEHHEDH

Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, total bank loans and corporate bonds of the
Group were approximately RMB14,314.9 million (31 December 2020:
RMB14,342.5 million). The gearing ratio' and net gearing ratio®> were
27.7% and 80.6%, respectively (as of 31 December 2020: 28.0% and
86.0%, respectively).

" Gearing ratio = total debt/total assets = (bank loans + corporate
bonds + USD senior guarantee notes)/total assets

2 Net gearing ratio = net debt/total equity = (bank loans + corporate
bonds + USD senior guarantee notes — cash and cash equivalents)/
total equity

Major Acquisition and Disposal
Disposal of Shares in ZJBC

On 8 May 2020, Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongzhao”, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) disposed of
approximately 2.01% of the issued share capital of ZJBC on the open
market (the “Disposal”). On 12 May 2020, Zhongzhao further disposed
of approximately 0.98% of the issued share capital of ZJBC on the open
market (the “Further Disposal’). On 18 May 2020, Shenzhen Maoye
Department Store Co., Ltd (‘Shenzhen Maoye”, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, which is indirectly held by the Company as
10 82.80%) disposed of approximately 1.86% of the issued share capital
of ZJBC on the open market for the third time (the “Third Disposal’).
As the Company held 82.80% equity interests in Shenzhen Maoye, as
a result, the Company disposed of approximately 1.54% of the issued
share capital of ZJBC under the Third Disposal. From 19 August 2020 to
7 September 2020, Zhongzhao disposed of approximately 2.00% of the
issued share capital of ZUBC on the open market for the fourth time (the
“Fourth Disposal”). After the Disposal, the Further Disposal, the Third
Disposal and the Fourth Disposal, the equity interests in ZJBC held by
the Company was reduced from approximately 22.18% to approximately
15.66%. For details of the above, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 11 May 2020, 15 May 2020, 19 May 2020 and
8 September 2020, and the circular of the Company dated 30 October
2020.

From 8 September 2020 to 29 December 2021, Zhongzhao disposed
of shares of ZJBC on the open market several times, representing
approximately 11.47% of the issued share capital of ZUBC in total (the
“Fifth Disposal’). After the Fifth Disposal, the equity interests in ZJBC
held by the Company was reduced from approximately 15.66% to
approximately 4.19%. The proceeds from the above disposal further
strengthened the financial position and capital base of the Group, which
helped the Group further focus on its main business, and promoted the
future business growth and development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEHEDH

Disposal of Shares in CQP

From 23 August 2021 to 17 December 2021, Maoye Commercial Co.,
Ltd., a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of
34,846,438 shares of C.Q. Pharmaceutical Holding Co., Ltd. (‘CQP”,
which is a joint stock limited company established in the PRC and
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000950))
on the open market. After the completion of such transaction, the
equity interest in CQP indirectly held by the Company was reduced
from approximately 3.48% to approximately 1.82%. For details of the
above, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1
September 2021 and 17 December 2021.

Save for the above, the Group did not have any other major acquisition or
disposal during the year.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s collateral interest-bearing
bank loans amounting to RMB10,864.9 million were secured by
approximately RMB4,370.2 million, RMB8,422.1 million, RMB158.7
milion and RMB1,874.4 million respectively of the Group’s land and
buildings, investment properties, right-of-use assets and properties under
development.

Foreign Currency Risk

During the reporting period, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange
gain of RMB1.1 million on exchange. Since the business of the Group
was mainly focused on Mainland China, its operation was not exposed to
any foreign exchange fluctuation risks.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had not entered into any
arrangements to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group’s operating
cash flow is not exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation risks.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EFMUERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (EX#) (“Mr. Huang”), aged 56 is the founder
of the Group and the Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is also a director of various companies in the Group. Besides, he is
a director and owner of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited
and MOY International Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholders
of the Company. Mr. Huang is responsible for the overall development
and strategic planning of the Group. He has extensive experience
in department store and commercial real estate industries and has
been engaged in department store business for over 20 years. Before
commencing his department store business, Mr. Huang established
Maoye (Shenzhen) Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (52 GEII) Eith
@F#ﬂ?’f*ﬁ_lzﬁ AF))in 1992 and Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd. &1l

RE (ER) BIDARAE)IN 1995. Mr. Huang had been a director and
the Chairman of Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. (‘Maoye Commercial’)
(FRERERMBIE/AT) (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600828.SH) since July 2005 and resigned on 9
February 2009.

Mr. Zhong Pengyi ((2l52) (“Mr. Zhong”), aged 66, is an Executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company. He joined the Group
in August 2007. Mr. Zhong received a master’'s degree in business
administration from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2003. Mr. Zhong
has over 30 years of experience in the operational management of the
department store industry, real estate industry and trading industry.
Mr. Zhong has been an independent director of Shenzhen Centralcon
Investment Holding Co., Ltd. CRIIT ML EZERR D ERAR)
(a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code:
000042.S2) since July 2017. On 14 March 2014, Mr. Zhong has been
appointed as a director of Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. (&
EERMRKRMNAERAST, “Commercial City”)(a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600306.SH). He has also been a
director of Maoye Commercial since 10 June 2015.

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (E/)\i8) (“Ms. Lu”), aged 48, is the executive Director
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. She holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Ballarat, Australia.
She joined the Group in March 1997 and had previously served as
the manager of the finance department, the general manager of the
audit and supervision department, and the general manager of the
contract management center, deputy general manager of the financial
management center and general manager of the financial management
center of the Group. Ms. Lu was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group since 5 December 2019. Ms. Lu has over 20 years of
financial management experience in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EFMUERERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Bin (E£3&) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 55, joined the Group in 2010.
He was an Executive Director of the Company before his re-designation
as a Non-executive Director on 5 May 2017. He is also a director of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Wang had been the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since 20 October 2010 and resigned on 7
December 2015. He had also been the Vice President of the Company
since 14 January 2013 and resigned on 7 December 2015. Mr. Wang is
a senior accountant. He received a bachelor’s degree majored in finance
and accounting from Shanghai Maritime University in 1988 and received
a Master of Business Administration degree from Murdoch University
of Australia in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang worked for
China Merchants Group (B EEE, formerly known as &HEIBHEE
E) and served as financial controller of Huafu Holdings Limited (FEZ
G B FR/AE]) . He has more than 20 years of experience in financial
management. Mr. Wang had been a director of Zhongjiabochuang
Information Technology Co., Ltd. (FE1EEIE BEHEMRMDERAE) @
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000889.
SZ) since December 2010 and ceased to be a director from June 2016.
Mr. Wang has also been appointed as a director of Maoye Commercial
on 28 November 2012 and ceased to be a director from 25 September
2019, and he has been appointed as a director of Commercial City on 14
March 2014.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EFMUERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Rao Yong (8%7k) (“Mr. Rao”), aged 63, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company, the chairman of Audit Committee and
a member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. He
joined the Group in April 2020. Mr. Rao is a certified public accountant
in the PRC and obtained a diploma in accounting in 1980 from Guangxi
University of Finance and Economics, the PRC. Mr. Rao was the former
chairman of the Shenzhen Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (&
YHEMEEENH Z L) and the vice chairman of the Guangdong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants* (BB &M & stiMtpEalg
) and from May 2015 to May 2021 he served as a member of the Sixth
People’s Congress of Shenzhen City* CRYITFE/NEAKXRNLE) and a
member of the project budget committee of People's Congress Standing
Committee of Shenzhen City CEIITT ARG EIFEHEZEZE ). He is
currently the President of Shenzhen Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Kaisa Group Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 1638.HK), SMI Culture & Travel Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 2366.HK) and Shandong
Sinobioway Biomedicine Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 002581.S7). From 1991 to 1997, he
served as a director of the Audit Bureau of Shenzhen City, and from
1984 to 1990, he served as a chief of the Audit Bureau of Wuzhou City,
Guangxi Province. Mr. Rao has over 30 years of accounting and auditing
experience.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SECRETARY

EFMUERERE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing G &%) (“Mr. Pao”), aged 74, is an Independent
Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007. Mr. Pao obtained
a Master of Science degree in Human Settlements Planning and
Development from the Asian Institute of Technology in Bangkok, Thailand
in 1980. In the past years, Mr. Pao has been appointed to serve on
various government policy committees and statutory bodies, especially
those involving town planning, urban renewal, public housing, culture and
arts and environmental matters. He is an honorary fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Housing. He was elected as one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the Ten Outstanding
Young Persons of the World in 1983. He was previously also a member
of the Urban Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Pao was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace in 1987 and was a special committee member of the
9th and 10th sessions of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference Guangzhou Committee. Currently, he is also an independent
non-executive director of a number of companies listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Gao Yajun (FZEE) (“Mr. Gao”), aged 46, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee. He joined the Group in April 2020. Mr.
Gao is a senior accountant in Hong Kong, Certified Public Accountant
in the PRC and Australia, and member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Independent Non-Executive Director Association Limited. Mr. Gao
graduated from Deakin University in Australia with a master’s degree
in professional accounting in 2002, holds a PhD in applied economics
(Financial Mathematics and Financial Engineering) from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics and has been an executive
director and a partner of Baker Tilly Hong Kong since February 2010.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Nanjing Panda
Electronics Company Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 553.HK, and Shanghai Stock Exchange,
stock code: 600775.SH) since 29 June 2018, and he ceased to serve
as its director on 29 June 2021. Mr. Gao has engaged in auditing and
consulting work for a long time and has extensive experience in financial
management.

Ms. So Ka Man (B3Z= 80 (“Ms. So”), aged 48, has been appointed
as the Secretary of the Company in November 2017. She is a director
of the Corporate Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business,
corporate and investor services. Ms. So is a Chartered Secretary and a
fellow of both the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom. Apart from the
Company, Ms. So, has been providing professional secretarial services to
a number of listed companies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group recognises the vital importance of good corporate governance
1o its success and sustainability. The Company is committed to achieving
a high standard of corporate governance practices as an essential
component of high quality and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the operation and growth of its business.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board”), the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, save
and except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the
details of the deviation are summarised below.

The Board will continue to enhance its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the operation and growth of its business and to review
such practices from time to time to ensure that the Company complies
with statutory and professional standards and aligns with the latest
developments.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing the interests of
shareholders. All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, making decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management. Any director may request independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
making reasonable request to the Board.
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The Board reserves its rights for making decision on all major matters
of the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and

other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board and directing and co-
ordinating day-to-day operation and management of the Company.
The delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed
by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any

significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The following chart illustrates the current structure and membership of

the Board and the Board Committees:

Board of Directors
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Executive Directors #1TZ%

Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
BRNGEE (EFRREEHNITE)

Mr. Zhong Pengyi, Vice Chairman

BEESLE (FEER)

Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, Chief Financial Officer

BBt (HEMFE)

Non-executive Director FEEH1TEE

Mr. Wang Bin E i 44

Independent Non-executive Directors B 17 JEH1TEE

Mr. Rao Yong g7k o4

Mr. Pao Ping Wing 3 I &8 5t 4

Mr. Gao Yajun =58 E St

| |

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

|

Nomination Committee
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Mr. Rao Yong (Chairmarn) Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman) Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
BxgE (F/E) HIRER T (F/E) BT E (FE)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing Mr. Rao Yong Mr. Rao Yong
HIRER ST BEIK ST BEIK ST
Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Gao Yajun Mr. Pao Ping Wing
[SEEED e [SEEE e IRE S
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The Board members have no relationship with each other. The
biographical details of the directors are disclosed under the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has at all times
met with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors (representing at
least one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on the Board committees, all independent non-executive
directors have made various contributions to the effective business
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. As Mr. Huang is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the department store industry and commercial
real estate industry, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the
Group to have Mr. Huang taking up both roles for continuous effective
management and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive directors,
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract/letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles of
Association”), all directors of the Company are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and are eligible for re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any new director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/
herself for re-election by shareholders at the following annual general
meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, Mr. Rao
Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming 2022 annual general meeting of the
Company (the "2022 AGM"). The Board and the Nomination Committee
recommend their re-appointments. The Company’s circular, sent together
with this annual report, contains detailed information of the above three
directors as required by the Listing Rules.

Training and Continuing Development for Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of responsibilities as directors of the
Company and of the business activities and development of the
Company and comply with the code of conduct of the Company at all
times.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is
normally supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/
or meetings with the senior management of the Company.
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Under code provision C.1.4, directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated briefings for directors
will be arranged and reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the directors were
provided reading materials or regulatory update on corporate governance
matters and responsibilities of the directors for their reference and
perusal.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
governing directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the existing
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period from 1
January 2021 to the date of this annual report.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the
Company.

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings

in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors and
relevant employees in advance.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website “www.maoye.cn”
and the Stock Exchange’s website. All Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises a total of three members, namely, Mr.
Rao Yong (Chairman), Mr. Pao Ping Wing and Mr. Gao Yajun, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Rao Yong who possesses the appropriate professional
qualification, and accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members
of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the external auditors’
independence and the objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (i) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
accuracy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system as well as internal
audit function.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Audit Committee has held
4 meetings and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the scope of audit work and the auditors’ remuneration;

e Review and discussion of the annual financial results and report in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 and interim financial
results and report for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and
discussion with the management of the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e Discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

e Review of the financial reporting and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group together with the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings held during the year to discuss with the Audit Committee
members issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee provided the Board with a briefing
on the significant issues after each Audit Committee meeting. There was
no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises a total of three members,
namely, Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman), Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun,
all of whom are independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of executive directors
and senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
E.1.2(c)(ii) of the Code); and (i) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Review and discussion of the remuneration policy of the Group; and

e Review and discussion of the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management of the Company.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

HE2021F12H31HILFEE  BEZEET T
BITARGZWETUTEBIF

o BRI IFRERIZHEMF ;

o EREIKHMEE2020F12831HIEFE
MNEEMBEERTS  UKEE2021
F6H30FIEANER T FSEER
RE WHEBEEBIRAEERMANE
sHERBAIER ;5

o HMKBRBEWMREINSIZEED ; K

o BRIAEEYHBHES MNEEE RERE
B RAEENEIE SRR

SNERBENERHFEFNRITHEZEZES
G U B RV BREEESIEHNEE
HEZEZEENERMAN M BEREETE
FREXRERZEZEGERRONEETRMTE
AEEBR - EFTURERZEG I HUE
MEER B EINS RN M EFEE AL

HWEEE

HMEEEHA=—GME DR HIRRST
£ (ER) BXEERSDRERE  REFYT
SBIUIFRITES -

HNE B TR T 2 5() 72 A B B9 B
BERKMERBRAITESR ko iR S EE B #r i
TanEFTRMEREZ BITRITRIFEX
SBEA.2(C)(ifFPTIRBIRTY) ; KB ERFEE
BRREBERAMETIFREME -

HE2021F12H31HIEFEE  FTNEEZ D
BITIRGH WETUTEEILE:
o WRIWFTHmAEBEFINGS ; &

. BHUNBAADEERERERENH
F -

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED /& EIFZERER AT 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERERS

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration for each director of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were set out in note 8 of the
financial statement.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises a total of three members, being
one executive director, namely, Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Pao
Ping Wing. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent non-
executive directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i) review the
Board composition, develop and formulate relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors; (i) make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of directors; and
(iiiy assess the independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company believes that greater diversity of directors is good for
corporate governance and is committed to attract and retain candidate(s)
for Board with a combination of competencies from the widest possible
pool of available talents; and to assess regularly the diversity profile
of the Board and, where applicable, senior management prepared for
Board positions under the succession planning of the Company and the
progress on achieving diversity objectives, if any.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account of various aspects set out in the Board diversity
policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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The Director Nomination Policy adopted by the Company sets out the
factors for assessing the suitability and the potential contribution to
the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the
followings: character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new directors and re-election of directors
at general meetings. The Nomination Committee will review the Director
Nomination Policy (if applicable), to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
has held 1 meeting and performed the following major tasks:

e Review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company;

e Recommendation of the re-appointment of those directors standing
for re-election at the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company;
and

e Assessment of the independence of all the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board has performed such corporate
governance functions as follows: (i) reviewed and developed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, (i) reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (iiij reviewed and monitored
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, (iv) reviewed and monitored the compliance of
the Model Code and the Employee Written Guidelines, and (v) reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has held 4
meetings. The attendance records of each director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the table below:

EEREEERENT RN FRTE

HE2021FE12831HLEEE BT TED
BIT4F TREV S ESHEEHE2021F
12B31HIEEERTHNEES TR EES
EEEEAAABREAGHCE !

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY, SERH

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Exfts EXg EBRZEE HWZEEe 2 RYEZEET RIBEAE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru BRMEE 4/4 - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Zhong Pengyi R E 4/4 - - - 171
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan BENEZ T 4/4 - - - 1
Mr. Wang Bin B 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. Rao Yong XY 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Pao Ping Wing RREE 4/4 4/4 11 1 171
Mr. Gao Yajun [EEEE ks 4/4 4/4 17 - 17

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held 1 meeting
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The management has
provided such explanation and information to the Board as necessary
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Group put forward to the Board for
approval.

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021. The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has acknowledged that it shall be responsible for risk
management and internal control systems and review of their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. These systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board shall be fully responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives and to establish and maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted different risk management
procedures and guidelines with a clear division of power and
responsibility. The Company would conduct self-assessment each year
to confirm that all departments and the Company have properly complied
with the risk management and internal control policy.

During the year, all departments conduct regular internal control
evaluation to identify risks with potential impact on the Group’s business
and other aspects including major operational and financial procedures,
regulatory compliance and information security.

The internal audit department is responsible for independent review of
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems. During the year under review, the internal audit department
reviewed important issues such as the relevant strategic management,
major operational and financial reporting procedures, human
resources management, adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experiences, regulatory compliance and information security, and
provided its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee for
improvement.
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During the year under review, the Board, with the support of the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021 by reviewing the report from the management
and the internal audit results, and confirmed the effectiveness and
adequacy of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy to provide the general
guideline on handling confidential information, monitoring of information
disclosure and response to queries to its directors, officers, senior
management and the relevant employees. The Company has executed
supervision programs to confirm the strict prohibition from unauthorized
access to and use of inside information.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors by the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit service for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out as follows:

TOEERN BEETEEZEZETNHET
EERAABT REKBARR2021F128
SIHLEEERBEERANIETRFNE KL
M ERERNESEBRENANIBETER
WHRAATWEREENANIEIERADN
BT

KRB BRIUEBRBHRRIUIEHEAR EE
REHE - BEEREEREKROEEE -5k
BE -SREEBNEMESHMN—MRIE
Sle KRB BERITEERF UBRBEEE
IERERENEBNABRARHE

SMEB AL BU BT R 1% B M <&

AT SN IZ BT E R E LA A B & 2021
F12B31BIEFEMBRRAVFHREEHIMR
MR AERBIAZBENRE —H o

HE2021F12831HEEE » KATMBIZ
ARTS K JE R 1% AR 75 0] 2 A B) INBE 1% B AT A9 BN
SHAMUWT

Type of services RMB’000
BRFsEEEY ARMFT
Audit expenses of the Group KREBNEZER 4,300
Non-audit expenses of the Group KREBNIFEZER

— Review on the interim financial report of the Group —AREENPIETBREER 1,100

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”) as external
service provider. Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor has been appointed as the
company secretary of the Company. The primary contact of Ms. So
Ka Man at the Company is Ms. Lu Xiaojuan, an Executive Director and
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2021, Ms. So Ka Man has taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy (including
but not limited to the Group’s financial results, cash flow situation,
business conditions and strategies, future operations and earnings,
capital requirements and expenditure plans), dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to make
the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at “www.maoye.cn”, where extensive information and updates on the
Group’s business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

g SER

RAB BRI IR SRR S HER o IRIEA
N B Fe A G B B B R 00 DA R g B B SR P K
MRER (BEERRRAERGFHEE R
EMEM M EFB R R RREER
BN BEERKEXHFE) - EFFRNME
A BRFEERHER, REIRRE > M
FENEARESAFRRAER  HAMEF

i
=
=

HIRRKRREEBE

FAERA BRERFANER e
REEMERIMFREEHFAEMEBRR
REBTREABE AAFATHARIEE
PREMBREEASENNERNE AHA
MR RERREEFHRERERE

AREBEBYNE ARBERBBEBETwww,
maoye.cn ] i R AR E B EFEERLIEE B
BER - rEEAERMEMAKEMNERN
BHEHN B AR ER

RENGEEABRBU T HARARABFTH
EEHEHHEK:

Address: 38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre, 4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (For the attention of the director of the Investor Relations Department)

B2 | FREE A B HEANEZR Y ™5 B 3R BR40035% t R & Rl R/ OARE38IE (I A 215 B BRI AERAEED)

Email: irs48@maoye.cn

BT ir848@maoye.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the
Group’s developments.

The Board has reviewed the shareholders' communication policy and its
effectiveness was confirmed. With the continuing COVID-19 situation,
the manner of engagement with our shareholders will be scrutinised from
time to time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. The Company’s shareholders may convene an extraordinary
general meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as
follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company may
request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association by sending a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in the PRC. The objects of
the meeting must be stated in the written requisition.

(2) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, the
shareholder (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a written notice,
duly signed by the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person
to be proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal place of business in
the PRC, or the office of the Company’s share registrar. The period
for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of such general meeting and end 7 days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes
to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association
for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.maoye.cn) immediately after the relevant general
meetings.
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NOTES ON THE REPORT

The ESG Report (the “Report”) covers Maoye International Holdings
Limited (“Maoye International” or the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”). The contents include the Group’s
Environmental, Social and Governance performance on its major points
of operation (i.e. Mainland China).

REPORTING PERIOD

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2021. Certain contents can be traced back to previous years, as the case
may be.

PREPARATION PRINCIPLE

This report is prepared pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in the Appendix 27
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. For information on the Group’s corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report section in this year's
annual report.

DATA DESCRIPTION

All data in this report are based on Maoye International’s formal
documents and statistical reports. In this report, the currency amount is
accounted by RMB, unless otherwise specified.

REPORTING SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

This report covers the Group’s 48 department stores, outlets and
shopping centres (“Retail Department Stores”) in Mainland China and
the offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REPORT
This report was approved by the Board on 25 March 2022.

CONTACT US

Investor Relations Department, Maoye International Holdings Limited

Address: Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
Tel: (86) 755-25983885

Fax: (86) 755-25981379

Email: ir848@maoye.cn
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The sustainable development of enterprises cannot be realised
without the engagement and support of all stakeholders. The Group
communicated and exchanged views with stakeholders regarding
sustainable development and related issues through various channels,
and identified the issues that our stakeholders are most concerned
about: “products responsibility” and “community investment”; relatively
important issues: “use of resources”, “health and safety”, “employment”,
“development and training”; and the related issues: “emissions”,
“environment and natural resources”, “labour standard”, “management
of supply chain” and “anti-corruption”. The Group constantly makes
improvement on such issues in the normal course of business so
as to address the concerns of our stakeholders, enhance trust and
cooperation, and jointly promote the sustainable development of the
Group and society.
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Stakeholders

Major communication channels

FEFERE

Maijor concerns

Mz AERA 7S

FEREHER
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Do
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Government and
regulatory bodies
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Shareholders
and investors

IRRRIEEE

Employees
8T

Suppliers
{HFER

Customers

'R

Business
partners

SIERH

Communities
and the public
HERAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£ERE

Policy and guideline
Daily communication
Working conference
Information disclosure
Social public welfare
activities

General meeting

Results announcement
Investor forum

Annual and interim report,
announcement

Staff meeting
Staff training
Staff activities

Contract negotiation
Daily business transaction
Project cooperation

Customer complaint
hotline

Customer satisfaction
survey

Customer service centre
Discussion and visits

Cooperation
Communication and
interaction

Public welfare

Community education

and promotion

Forum and communication
Enterprise recruitment
publicity etc
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Corporate governance AP
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Sustainable development AFERR
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Compensation and benefits  EEL4EF)
Fair cooperation AEEE
Adhere to commitment {SFEE
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Protection of privacy PEFA(REE
Fair cooperation DFAE
Performance of contracts EREY
with integrity

Mutual growth HERR
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Promotion of employment {RERE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT BEMTG

The Company has listed out 11 areas and evaluated the importance of ~ Z/A T FE5| F % H Y1118 B & > ¥ 7 92 A
various key areas to our internal and external stakeholders and identified AR AN S EEBAEEENEEHET T

major concerns of our stakeholders. SR A BRI SRR S E BRI EE ©
A

gGH Product responsibility
EREE

a

e
Employment e Comm_unity investment
Environment and natural resources e 1R HERA
RIRRRAER
Health and safety [ ] L]
REARZE Use of resources
(] Labour standard HiRiER
ST#A @ Development and training

BREE

Emission
e Hewen

The importance to our stakeholders
B B S5 ot ER it Bk 2

(] Management of supply chain

HrEEs
@ Anti-corruption
REE
\ >
Low The importance to our sustainable development HIGH
& HEEEFEZRNEEY ]
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BiamE

= = Ee s

The Board is the highest governing body of the Company and holds the ZBEgAXATZ B BLEME  THAAD
ultimate responsibility on the overall strategic development and corporate TR EEFIREER P X EARKERKREE-
governance of the Company. To ensure high governance standards in AR RIBEEHZELAEERITSEAEE

ESG matters, the Company has a stable ESG governance structure with  ZRA S B HIRIBH T E AR B BRI EM
clearly defined responsibilities in place. REBENEAEB

Executive Director
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The formulation of ESG strategy and the day-to-day management and
reporting on ESG matters resides with the ESG Group, which is headed
by the Executive Director and comprises members from all major
departments. The responsibilities of the ESG Group include formulating
ESG strategies, sustainability reporting, stakeholder engagement,
materiality assessment, monitoring the performance of ESG initiatives and
promotion of ESG issues both internally and externally.

Through the Executive Director, the ESG Group has been providing
updates to the Board on the latest ESG performance of the Company
on an annual basis. The ESG Group has continuously worked upon
enhancing its reporting mechanism that will enable the Directors to
effectively oversee the effectiveness of the ESG risk management and
internal control systems.

To ensure effective implementation of ESG strategies and identify any
potential ESG-related risks and opportunities, the ESG Group conducts
regular meetings to discuss a range of pre-defined ESG initiatives and
to follow up upon the works of business units which are charged with
carrying out measures and setting appropriate policies to align with our
overall ESG strategy. The ESG Group is also assisted by the internal
audit team in identifying and evaluating the potential ESG related-risks
(including climate change related risks), so as to devise appropriate
strategies for risk mitigation.

The ESG Group continues to keep abreast of the latest developments
on sustainability issues and remains committed towards promoting the
integration of sustainable and socially responsible best practices into
our daily operations and decision making processes across all levels of
the Group. With the collaborative efforts of all business units, we are
dedicated towards improving our ESG performance and fulfilling the
expectations of our stakeholders.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A IRIR
A1 B

A1 EmissionNo©'

The Group complies with the relevant requirements of
environmental protection laws and common principles of
corporate management. It correctly handles the relationship
between business and environment in accordance with
characteristics of corporate environmental management, so
that the economy and environmental protection are mutually
reinforcing.

Our environmental policy advocates the prevention of
environmental pollution, with integration of governance for
comprehensive management to achieve maximum economic
benefits under minimum impact on the environment. Meanwhile,
we also attach importance to education and technical trainings
to raise awareness of all employees about the environmental
protection. In view of this, we have established a sound
environmental responsibility system for the garbage from
construction or renovation of the stores and kitchen waste
from restaurants, under which special personnel supervise the
classification and disposal of garbage.

The Group continues to monitor the operation of environmental
protection facilities and regularly checks the implementation of
environmental protection facilities.

All subsidiaries and retail department stores of the Group
are required to strictly abide by the internal environmental
management system to ensure the compliance with laws
and regulations. During the reporting period, no violations of
environment laws and regulations were found.

Note 1:  Since the main business of the Group is operation of retail
department stores, there was no significant emissions and
hazardous waste generated during the reporting period, hence
the relevant disclosure requirements in the ESG Guidelines (Key
Performance Indicators A1.1, A1.3 and A1.5) are not applicable to
the Group.
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Disposal of harmless waste BEEEYEE
During the reporting period, the direct production of harmless rEERBRSHESEENEEES
waste in the course of business of the Group was mainly papers, NEEEEYTIEABR - E2 M
ink cartridges, cartridges, plastic bottles and paper cups. During BBREAREER RIS E
the reporting period, the generated equivalents are as follows. EEWTRAMe
The Group classified and collected different types of waste and AEEGOHERERFELNEESE
carried out fixed storage and centralised processing. Recyclable M ETERGERRERRIE K
harmless waste was recycled as far as possible, while the MEAELIWAIBIRBBNESEE
non-recyclable waste was handled by professional qualified Z2Y) HREARWH BN BMg
service providers in accordance with the relevant environmental RIRREMARERHESEXEEN
protection regulations. RFEHEFIEE -

2021 2020
Item EHH 20214 20204
Paper (tonnes) 4R () 10.42 13.74
Ink cartridge (tonnes) £ (W) 0.22 0.09
Toner Cartridge (tonnes) e (M) 0.53 1.24
Plastic bottle (tonnes) “B B oKR (ME) 0.09 0.15
Paper cup (tonnes) AT () 0.28 0.50
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Carbon emission

QOur carbon emissions are mainly due to the consumption of
electricity. During the reporting period, the relevant carbon
dioxideN**® 2 emissions from the energy generated from our
business is as follows.

Item IEH

Carbon dioxide emission (tonnes) —EbhiEEmE (W8
Carbon dioxide emission per square & KEREE

metre of gross floor area™***? Z bR E s
(tonnes/square metre) (Mg, 75 3K)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE-HHERELARS

37974

AR EZIRE T BEYH
o MG HIR I EBEERR
4 AERAER — |EIR e E
0 NERFR

2021 2020
20214 20204

276,442.43 289,774.11

0.09 0.10

We have implemented various energy-saving measures to
reduce the corresponding carbon emissions. For details, please
refer to the section of “Use of resources” below.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to becoming an environmentally friendly
enterprise by saving electricity and encouraging the collection
and recycling of office supplies and other resources to save
natural resources. Our stores also integrate environmental
protection publicity with marketing activities to advocate green
lifestyle, so as to strive to become a model store for recycling
economy.

We adhere to the preparation of analysis report on statistics of
water and electricity consumption, and continue to update the
standing book for equipment to enhance the management level.
During the reporting period, the energy saving indicators was
even included as the performance indicators of the employees
to reward outstanding model of energy efficiency, as well as
penalizing irregularities.

Note 2:  The calculation of carbon emissions is based on the Greenhouse
Gas Protocol published by the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development (WBCSD) and the World Resources
Institute (WRI), Reporting Guide for Environmental Key Performance
Indicators issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China issued
by the National Development and Reform Commission for the
climate changes.

Note 3:  The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 309.8 square metres in 2021.

The total gross floor area for calculating carbon dioxide emission
intensity is 295.8 square metres in 2020.
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Use of energy BEIR1EH

Our energy consumption during the reporting period which AEENRBRSHABANEREEE

is mainly due to the electricity consumption of the 48 retall ER/HBEEZTEMENTMEHRE

department stores (excluding the electricity consumption that are (FEEEEEIEREENTE
not directly controlled by the Group) is as follows. JHFE) WK
2021 2020

Item HE 20214 20204F

Electricity consumption (kWh) EEE (TRF) 386,362,695.46 405,119,026.94

Electricity consumption per square BT AKEEERE

metre of gross floor areacte4 FEEEM™
(kWh/square metre) (FEE/FHK) 124.70 136.95

The electricity consumption decreased by 4.63% as compared FEE 2 8B2020F LRV T4.63%

with 2020, which was due to the outbreak of the pandemic still FREEBHERIBNHEEE M

occurs in some areas, which affected store business hours and EREREAREATIEENE

customer traffic, which led to the decrease in consumption. SBFERD -

In order to strengthen the monitoring of the energy consumption AIMNAERAEEBNERBEES

of the Group, a number of energy saving measures were KPR THERSDTERER TE

implemented during the reporting period in addition to the RSB ETE TESERHHE
preparation of statistical analysis reports, namely:

e Enhancement of annual and monthly budget management e RIEFENBEREEIE FE
to continuously promote water and electricity saving; HEHEOK B ENSEPEFE ;

e Strict implementation of the operating time for various o BEHMITREREXRERE
types of electrical equipment, with timely adjustment of air FART R R AR ZE A ACR ;
conditioning temperature;

e Enhancement of inspection and examination, with timely o IR IBKE > REFHEREE
troubleshooting and repairs for failure in energy consumption BEFERNE > HHAB/KEIRE ;

and prevention of waste of water and electricity;

e Continuous innovation for upgrade of energy-saving o MBESMAIFREHENGE  F
equipment and techniques, such as energy-saving MR - GNEARENE A ohiE ~ BRER
lightings, zone management on lighting, elevator frequency DeEE - BHEIRER F5E
conversion, energy-saving water valves and use of energy- KM ENSEIREMMERSE ;

saving environmental protection materials; and

e Capital investment for optimisation of environment of e WANGEED BEMELKEIR
stores to establish a model enterprise for clean energy and BoTEERBR IRRESH T
environmental protection. ¥o

Note 4:  The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption Mizk4 . 2021 st HEBEHRERER

intensity is 309.8 square metres in 2021. FRABE SR ERA09.8F 5 Ko
The total gross floor area for calculating electricity consumption 2020 st HAEBEHINERER
intensity is 295.8 square metres in 2020. FRARE SR E TR 43295.875 K ©
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Water consumption FEKE

FEERKESHERNZASEEEE
EPIERVARFEKEN TR

2021 2020
20214 20204

The total water consumption of 48 retail department stores of
the Group during the reporting period is as follows.

Iltem EH
Water consumption (cubic metres) FEkE LA K) 3,511,411.43 3,043,327.02
Water consumption per square metre & /5 K EHETE

of gross floor areaN°te® FEKEWT 1.13 1.03

HEKER2020FBLEEEMT
15.38% > RAEFIEREEFmBIEMN
EEFEKEIBEEIL N

The water consumption increased by 15.38% as compared with
2020, which was due to the increased store floor space which
led to the increase in water consumption.

AEBNRSHBEETETEX

Some of the water saving measures implemented by the Group

during the reporting period are as follows: BHEUT -
e Regularly carry out water conservation education on various o TEHHEEZIFIETEHKE
departments of the Group to raise awareness of staff on BriREELEHKEH  LIEH

water conservation and conduct supervision;

e Send special personnel to check whether the water taps are
closed or pipelines are in a leakage condition;

e Promote water saving awareness by posting reminders of
water conservation in public toilets;

e Install sensor valves in public toilets to control the amount of
water used; and

e Reduce water consumption through regular water
management and strict control of waste.

BEE;

RENKE BKFERZS R
REBREFERKBIER ;

R T B SR ASEN AT AR K BY
R IRSAREIKER

£ H 0% T B A B9 A% it 1 A0 K
FERARIERIFAKE 5 &

BRAERBAKEERBRIERE
7170 BRIRFEKE-

Note 5:  The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption MizEs : 2021t HIEEEHKERER
density is 309.8 square metres in 2021. AR R mMEA309.8F /5K o

2020F st HFE B E BN E R EFR
MBS ER#295.875 K °

The total grass floor area for calculating electricity consumption
density is 295.8 square metres in 2020.
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A3 IRIFRKRATR

A3 Environmental and natural resources

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

The Group supports environmental protection and constantly
assess the effectiveness of the measures taken to minimise the
impact of our business operation to the surrounding environment
so that appropriate improvement actions could be taken
promptly. These measures include the use of energy-efficient
lightings, paper usage reduction, turning off idle lightings,
computers and electrical appliances and other facilities and
equipment to save energy. We are also committed to promoting
the use of recycle paper and shopping bags made of recycle
paper in our department stores.

Appropriate actions are taken to manage and minimise the
impacts of our operations to the environment and natural
resources. We actively promote environmental protection and
emphasise green operation and green office. Policies and
measures are implemented to enhance energy conservation
and emission reduction management. Relevant policies and
measures taken during the reporting period are as follows:

e Enhance the DingTalk electronic office system, optimise
office procedures and streamline processes to reduce the
use of office paper and promote the Group’s paperless
office operation;

e Implementing double-sided printing and reusing and
recycling toner cartridges, paper, envelope and paper files;
relevant forms will be printed according to actual demand to
facilitate the reduction of paper consumption at our stores.
At the same time, printing facilities are being adjusted to
reduce the consumption of consumables. Centralised
collection and disposal of used consumables is adopted
to minimise environmental pollution resulting from improper
waste disposal;

e To advocate environmentally responsible shopping, the
Group uses recycled paper bags instead of traditional
packaging bags. We provide customers with recycled paper
bags made of recycled paper to enhance its recycliability.
We take appropriate measures to comply with “General
Technical Requirements of the environmental protection,
safety and labelling for plastic shopping bags” and “Notice
on restrictions of manufacturing and the sale of plastic
bags” issued by the government. Reduction on plastic bag
consumption was achieved through charging customers for
plastic bags, and provide plastic bags when necessary to
lower waste production; and

AEE-BLTRHIRRUEFERITL
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e Encouraging the use of environmental friendly materials . EIEEMIL%EEP’*&%MEEHIE
and energy efficient equipment in our construction projects; R B EMEEREE - EHA
incorporating environmental friendly concept and design into EREHEER Jrﬁ > AEH
our office and stores, including maximising the use of natural KM NIRRE ST RAR
light and share lightings in common areas, and utilising and EFNRA=EIBARANRLERERR
refurbishing existing furniture and resources where possible & (& A BRRR 5 S RF L E R AT BE (R

during renovations.

A4 Climate change

BRAENREBIHHETHE
i LEESREHS

A4 RIRESE

With the growing effects from global warming, saving energy and ERERERLFEHEFEAE @1
minimising greenhouse gas emission become our first priority. BERMR /B ERBEHERARA T H
PNEEERE -

Our administration and engineering departments constantly HPINITE R TR EERIR
maintain all the policies to optimise energy consumption. R EBLERFER -ELEHRE
These policies include daily maintenance and replacement of %EI BHEECRERETHE R
energy-inefficient equipment, switching-on of outdoor lightings EMAZFERBMEININRB KR
according to local sunset time and using fresh air to replace hot B BUR By I AN EE % i 5 2 DU
air instead of air-conditioning in mild temperature. Other policies TR HEMPN /SN EEIRAN
adopted in our shops and offices are as follows: B0 N RPN -

Energy saving and emission reducing policies &8t L

Retail department store
BEZEME

Office
MEER

Control the illumination hours of stores and maintain sufficient lightings

to provide quality shopping experience

EHI 2 SRR ANRELERTE  LUIRHEEBYRR

Enhance the maintenance of air-conditioning system to lower energy

consumption

MR ZE R AR MEELUR L BERIEFE

Clean the ventilation system to enhance the cooling efficiency of air-
conditioning

BRBRRFLUES TRR S

Adjust the operating hours of escalators to avoid wastage

AREDERNETHRE UBRTUERNRE

Remind employees to switch off non-essential lights and electrical
appliances

RESTIREITMENEREKRE

Remind employees to switch off lights and computers during lunch
hours

1R B2 8 T i BB 8 R i I B AN BB Al
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B. SOCIAL B. 1tE
B1 Employment B1 {Ef®

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

The Group regards employees as the most important assets
and is committed to providing employees with a fair and
sound working environment having open space for personal
development to ensure that Maoye International keeps company
with its employees for advancement.

The Group has established the corporate values, which
employees are guided to recognise, so that attitudes and
behaviors of every employee will conform to and reflect the
corporate culture. We have established a sound compensation
system to provide all employees with remuneration level and
welfare policies that are competitive in the market, so as to
ensure that employees enjoy fair remuneration and benefits.

For the recruitment and promotion, fair opportunity is provided
for each employee under a just and non-discriminatory principle
to ensure that employees are not affected by gender, race and
other factors in hiring and promotion. At the same time, while
ensuring the contribution of employees to the Company, the
personal ability and value are also promoted to have a rapid
improvement and development.

We also strictly adhere to national and local laws and regulations
in terms of working hours and holiday arrangements. Apart
from paid annual leave, the Group also provides different types
of leaves to employees, such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave so that employees can enjoy
their due leaves to maintain physical and mental health after
industrious works.

Furthermore, the Group takes steps and initiations to maintain a
harmonious labour relationship. We also work with labour unions
to organise a wide range of leisure and cultural activities to
express our care to our employees and promote healthy lifestyle
and strengthen their sense of belonging and cohesiveness to the
Group.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the labour
related laws and regulations.
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R2021FE12831H  &~&EBHA
5,324 R E » B2020F 5 4.74%
BEB DB RN TR

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had 5,324 employees,
representing a decrease of 4.74% as compared with that of
2020. The employee distribution is as follows.

58

Employee Demographics 1ESIENT
2021 2020
20214 2020
Number of Number of
employees Percentage'°*e® employees  Percentage*®

Indicator EE A¥ i pes A¥ fh e
Total number of employees BERAY 5,324 100.00% 5,589 100%
By gender BRE D

Female Z 3,006 56.46% 3,198 57.22%

Male 3B 2,318 43.54% 2,391 42.78%
By age group BERERE D

Under 30 30mUT 1,137 21.36% 839 15.01%

3010 50 305 E505% 3,607 67.75% 4,583 82.00%

Over 50 1508 580 10.89% 167 2.99%
By employment type REAEYE D

Full-time 28 5,324 100.00% 5,589 100%

Part-time £ 0 - 0 -
By location BHEE D

Mainland China o P it 5,317 99.87% 5,583 99.89%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 6 0.11% 5 0.09%

Others Hif 1 0.02% 1 0.02%
By rank REEHHRE D

Senior Bk 169 3.17% 379 6.78%

Middle =F 1,492 28.02% 482 8.62%

General —& 3,663 68.80% 4,728 84.60%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mist6 . (HLERIEARMSIEIEEHERE

number of employees.
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New hires HEES
2021 2020
20214 2020
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentage'*©®

Indicator BiE AZ fliLEHee N i Ep s
Number of new hires EEEAY 1,594 29.94% 1,061 18.98%
By gender BUuRE D

Female b8 846 15.89% 564 10.09%

Male 3 748 14.05% 497 8.89%
By age group BERARED

Under 30 30mU T 850 15.97% 595 10.64%

3010 50 3058 £505% 699 13.13% 455 8.14%

Over 50 B850 455 0.85% 11 0.20%
By location BiEE D

Mainland China FRE Yt 1,591 29.88% 1,057 18.91%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 2 0.04% 4 0.07%

Others Hitt 1 0.02% 0 0
By rank HEEHARE D

Senior = 75 1.41% 27 0.48%

Middle R 419 7.87% 273 4.88%

General —f% 1,100 20.66% 761 13.62%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total M6 : (L RIEARSBIEERESE

number of employees.
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60

Employee turnover 1ES Tk
2021 2020
20215 2020
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentage*®

Indicator BT A¥ i Ep s A¥ fl e
Number of employee turnover EBERRAE 2,008 37.72% 1,846 33.08%
By gender BIERIEISD

Female E°g 1,154 21.68% 1,167 20.88%

Male B 854 16.04% 679 12.15%
By age group BERARE D

Under 30 30 UL T 883 16.59% 795 14.22%

3010 50 307% £505% 1,010 18.97% 927 16.59%

Over 50 HBIB50R% 115 2.16% 124 2.22%
By location BiEE D

Mainland China REI A, 2,004 37.64% 1,841 32.94%

Hong Kong, China HEEE 3 0.06% 5 0.09%

Others Hith 1 0.02% 0 0
By rank REERAED

Senior = 36 0.68% 39 0.70%

Middle R 557 10.46% 448 8.01%

General —f% 1,415 26.58% 1,359 24.32%
Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total Mist6 . (HLERIEARMSIEIEEHERE

number of employees.
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B2 Health and safety B2 FEHRZE
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The Group provides employees with an ideal and safe working
environment. In addition to taking all appropriate measures to
protect the health and safety of employees, the Group also
pays attention to the balance of work and healthy living among
employees. Corresponding system and measures for leaves
and medical needs of employees in special stages (such as
pregnancy, iliness, work injury etc.) have been developed to
ensure that there is a reasonable guarantee for rights and
interests of the employees.

To enhance employees’ safety knowledge and skills to prevent

accidents, the Group adopts the following policies:

e Maintaining proper lightings and ventilation systems and a
clean environment both in office and on sales floors, and
providing sufficient working space in the offices;

e Smoking is prohibited in office and store areas; and

e Following government guidelines relating to severe weather
warnings such as typhoons and rainstorms.

AEEBETRHEEARZ2HT
RIRIR > FR T BREXPR A 8 B HE i R
EEIHNRENZE TERET
RIFRERELEEZHEN TS -8
THEFKER WMEZ2BKTH
ZIER) WRBRMBEREASE > RF7TF
HIE THEEHEMER REEL
DS E S ENRE

75 058 8 B 1% % & SR AU A 38t e %
BB EEHETEREII ~£E
PRERLU T $8 7

s WMAEHEHAGBZEREAR
BEZRG RIEERFEZ WA
ERBIMBERD ;

s MAREHEMHRE ; K
s EBRENAMEBEKRERES

HERBRBERESHIF
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At the same time, employee is expected to share the
responsibility in the making and monitoring of procedures and
arrangements in respect of safety and health. All employees will:

e identify, report and rectify hazards at work in relation to
health and safety and report such hazards immediately to
superiors or the security department;

e participate in the investigation of any accidents or hazards to
prevent any re-occurrence; and

e co-operate with management in adopting safe working
methods and procedures.

During the reporting period, there was no prosecution against
the Group in relation to occupational health and safety matters.
From 2019 to 2021 there was no fatal occupational accident.

EF AEBDEREESEHE
HThREEEMRREZR2HERZ
WE BERESE:

o B HERAMIEETFHATEA
RERZ2AMNES —BF
B EENRER BIEEN L
B ZREBFT

s ZEAMFEHRVRENAETIN
BRERNELERNER ; &

o HRFHREABAONERIFIR
BRER G ERRIZNE I

/

RIREEAM > AREBIEL R EE
BhZ2ETERE201952021
FERRBEEEMRIIET SR -

2021 2020
20214 20204

Indicator 5
Total number of reportable BTREN THBGRE

occupational injuriesNet 29 17
Percentage of occupational injuryNete8 T {5 LE =Hi#=s 0.54 0.30
Number of working days lost ATHELXTIERH

due to occupational injury 1,294 1,663
Percentage of working days lost AT EL T ER thxRmao

due to occupational injuryNoe? 24.31 29.75
Absent days TRENH 2 36,219 31,023
Absent ratghoe 10 TR £ L Fehi0 2.72% 2.22%

Note 7:  Reportable occupational injuries refer to work-related accidents to
employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 days;

Note 8:  Occupational injury rate is calculated based on the number of
occupational injury per 200,000 working hours (i.e. per 100
employees to work 40 hours per week for 50 weeks per year);

Note 9:  Working days lost rate is calculated based on the working days lost
per 200,000 working hours;

Note 10: Absentee rate refers to the percentage of working days lost from

occupational injury and other sicknesses over the total number of
pre-determined working days.
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B3 R iE:H

B3 Development and training
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The Group focuses on the growth of employees and establishes
a scientific and effective training system to formulate and
implement training programs according to job nature and needs
of employees to promote their improvement and growth. The
training contents are divided into induction training, business
training, quality training and personnel training program of
“Maoye University”.

Induction training

In order to help new employees to integrate into the Company
as soon as possible and quickly adapt to job requirements,
regular new staff trainings are organised. Through these
trainings, employees can understand the development,
corporate culture and the rules and regulations of the Group.

Business training

In-service employees regularly receive different types of trainings
in accordance with the needs of their works. For example, retail
stores regularly held services etiquette trainings, while financial
department held skills training for financial employees.

Quality training

Through arrangements such as “reading club” and online
learning platform, the Group provides employees with personal
quality training programs to enable them to obtain personal
growth and advancement.

Personnel training program of “Maoye University”

With deep integration of the Internet economy and traditional
industries, the transformation of department stores is imperative.
In order to meet the needs of talent in the “new retail” era,
the Group provides employees with more systematic and rich
personnel training programs. By formulating comprehensive
training plans, employees can grow rapidly to realise personal
value in the Company and make contribution to the growth and
development of the Company.
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During the reporting period, the demographics of the Group’s
trained employees are as follows.

REREHR xEEEZEIES
BRI TR

2021 2020
20215 2020
Number of Number of
employees Percentage°'e® employees  Percentage*®
Indicator ] A" (e A¥ fly L=
Number of trained employees BEREIREAH 5,166 97.03% 4,412 78.94%
By gender eI b
Female % 2,941 55.24% 2,532 45.30%
Male 2 2,225 41.79% 1,880 33.64%
By employment rank #EEERE D
Senior =24 120 2.25% 94 1.68%
Middle R 1,356 25.47% 986 17.64%
General —f& 3,690 69.31% 3,332 59.62%

During the reporting period, the Group’s employees were trained
for a total of 81,213 hours. Each employee was trained for 15.72
hours.

In 2020, the total training hours were 35,873 hours. Each

employee was trained for 8.1 hours.

The distribution of average training hours among our employees
are as follows.

RIREEAR > ZEEE TI1FI4ER
HA81 213 N\FEH - B ET AHE
SRS B15.72/ 1\ o

2020 F 3l 4B 5 24 435,87 3/)\BF
o B8HE T AGEIIRHAS. 1/
B o

AEEES FHEIFHEEDIBER
0 NERFR

2021 2020

(Average (Average

training hours) training hours)

20214 20204

Indicator 1518 (45 3= 35 s 80 (B TFHIEE)

By gender bq kI il oay

Female Z 15.52 7.8

Male B 15.99 8.6
By employment rank R BLER B D

Senior =R 13.75 6.9

Middle Rk 20.40 9.4

General —f% 14.07 7.5

Note 6:  Percentage refers to the ratio between each indication and the total

number of employees.
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B4 Labour standards B4 BT #8|)
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All of our departments and stores comply with local laws and
regulations and strictly prohibit the use of child labour and
forced labour. Maoye International pays special attention to the
verification of identity information of employees. Comprehensive
recruitment review procedures will be conducted by the human
resources department to ensure that the information provided by
the candidates is accurate. In addition, the Group will regularly
examine whether there is existence of children labour or forced
labour in the operation of the business.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to children or forced labour.

The relevant policies adopted by the Group are:

e Strictly prohibiting any departments to request and/
or employ any person who age below 16. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for the review of the
age during recruitment to ensure that no minors under the
age of 16 are employed; and

e Al employment must be on a voluntary basis and we do not
allow forced labour, or using any form of deception to allure
employee to work.

B5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has been considering environmental issues from
various perspectives when negotiating the store leasing with
the suppliers. The Group will directly examine the qualifications
of the customers for new storage goods and supply of new
products, including environmental protection indicators, and
the quality of portfolio of regional and store suppliers to provide
consumers with a variety of choices. The Group will directly
interface with large suppliers to introduce attractive products that
comply with environment regulations to promote the strategic
cooperation between the two parties. In addition, environmental
information is also shared with retail tenants and other visitors
from time to time to promote sustainable green business model.
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At the same time, all suppliers operating in our stores are
required to establish labour relations with employees in
accordance with local laws and regulations and provide
remuneration and benefits (such as social security, provident
fund etc.) that meet legal requirements. The aforesaid
requirements are clearly included in the “counter contract” and
cooperation agreement of the two parties. For the employees
of suppliers, we also require suppliers and their staff to provide
written supporting documents and records to ensure that
interests of the employees of the suppliers are guaranteed.

During the reporting period, the demographics of number of
suppliers by location are as follows.
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BRI AEBZRAAEFIE
EENHER LARARREMER
ERNEREESTEUISEHAR
R AT &R R B KA F BN AT 42 )
(Wt RRBEEF) - U LERYH
BRI AE L (FEBER)MNEE
ek o T FE R B TSR > FAFI75
ERMEEAEETRHMEDNSG
B Al sE &% > U ERE R
BTHMmSEIRE-

RSN ZMes D HER
B BE R TR

2021 2020
20214 20204

Indicator Eig

Number of major suppliershcte 't FEMEREFE 16 18

By location & B o
Mainland China FR B Ay 3 16 18
Hong Kong, China RS A 0 0
Others Hih 0 0

B6 Product responsibility B6 EmE(T
Policy on product and service responsibility EmRREETHE

The Group is responsible for the products and services and pays
attention to marketing ethics to ensure no engagement in any
form of unfair business practices. The procurement and service
processes of the Group ensure the transparency and security of
the information on products and services. The policy on rights
and interests of customers of the Group is not only formulated
and publicised, but also be implemented in the operating
activities to prevent products or services from harming interests,
health and safety of the consumers. The Group complies
with the relevant product and service regulations and national
standards, without any cheating, misleading, deception or any
other acts that undermine the trust from customers and damage
to their rights and interests.

Note 11: Major suppliers refer to suppliers providing products and/or services
to the Group with total contract value of over RMB10 million.
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Customer service policy

Our business model is based on the needs of customers, with
an ultimate goal of providing customers with the best quality
services. We not only provide customers with the best quality
products to meet their needs, but also implement relevant
examination measures to fulfill the commitment. In case a
complaint about the service is lodged, the Group will conduct
an independent investigation in accordance with its internal
guidelines. The Group also collects the satisfaction questionnaire
from customers regularly to gather valuable opinions from
customers.

In addition, we are committed to establishing a deep partnership
with the tenants, shoppers and visitors by understanding
their needs and working closely with them. In summary, we
are committed to providing customers with a unique and
enjoyable experience. As such, we must fulfill our commitment
to excellence in quality of services and sustainable value-added
assets, creating a good place full of life enjoyment, working joys
and shopping leisure.

Practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

The Group understands that brand equity is crucial to our
success. We allocate resources to maintain and protect the
intellectual property rights of our brands.

e We value intellectual property and recognise intellectual
property is an indispensable element of successful business;

e We manage and protect our intellectual property through
registration and maintenance and enforcement of our
intellectual property; and

e We respect intellectual property rights of others and do not
infringe their intellectual property rights.

During the reporting period, our customer services include
supports extended to customers before, during and after the
sales. All complaints were handled by professional personnel
of our customer service department. Details of the complaints,
monitoring and status, handling time and settlement were
properly recorded. In 2021, customer complaints received by the
Group were consistent with those of the industry.
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Data privacy policy

The Group strictly abides by the provisions of the law and
attaches great importance to the privacy of personal data to
resolutely maintain and protect personal information. Only
personal information needed for the business are collected
and used subject to purposes mentioned in the course of
collection unless with agreement from customers. We will not
transfer or disclose any personal data to any entities other than
the members of the Group without consent, unless otherwise
required by the laws or notification is given to customers in
advance. In addition, we maintain appropriate safety systems
and measures to prevent unauthorised access to personal data.

During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to the quality of products and services.

B7 Anti-corruption

The Group has been committed to upholding the principle
of integrity and all employees are required to strictly abide
by personal and professional conducts. The internal control
and human resources centre of the Group have standardized
channels to accept internal and external reports on corruption,
bribery and other violations of professional conducts, together
with investigation and disposal of reports having evidence.
During the reporting period, there was no violation of the laws
and regulations relating to corruption.

B8 Community investment

We adhere to the concept of “Giving back to society” and
proactively participate in community and social services to
promote corporate social responsibilities and make contributions
to the society. In this regard, we actively invest to support the
community, especially to those less privileged group as well
as the young generation in terms of education, growth and
development. Through connecting and interacting with the
community, the Group aims to:

e care for the underprivileged group and bring them hopes
and supports;

e encourage employees to be compassionate and caring;

e strengthen our employees’ sense of belonging to the
society; and

e provide education to help them achieve a better future.
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIESHZE
IRIE (E15)
Al. Emissions
BE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

General Disclosure
—RRIFE

KPI
B AR IR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERMORERBIR MK RTINS - BERBESEEY
NEEEN (@BER ; RO)ETHZETABEAZEZNEREERK
BRAINER -

A1.1  The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HE R R AR R B IR B ©

A1.2  Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity.
AERBABINEREE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity.

FRELEAERRMEEBREE-

A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity.
FMESREERMEERTE-

A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
U RBERE BT R PTISAR

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HWMEEEEREEEEYN G - BREELEENEH K
PSR SR ©
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page 50 to 52

Deemed
immaterial

WRBTEKR

immaterial

AR/ TERKN

immaterial
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page 51 to 52
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Section
Reference
A. Environmental (Page Number)
RIREHIZE
IRIE (E58)
A2.  Use of Resources
BIRER
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and  page 52 to 54
— IR EE other raw materials.
BRERER (B1FER  KREMEME) BYBES 50E548
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and  page 53
RAIRAB ISR intensity.
RENEDNERER BRI REEEREE- 538
A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity. page 54
MFEKEREE- 548
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results  page 53
achieved.
M BB TR 52 A Y 2 5T B S PRAS AR © 538
A2.4  Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water  page 54
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
HSKECGE AR LRI B E AR URREABKMGEST 548
S PRIGHR
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products. Deemed
immaterial
SRk P A MR AR E - WARABTEKR
A3.  The Environment and Natural Resources
IRIERRAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the page 55 to 56
— iR environment and natural resources.
BIRETABRRERRAABRENEARTENE K 55Z 568
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the page 55 to 56
R REWIEIR environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
HWEBTHHRBEARRERNEARZERERKINEE 55556H
BRI ENTH -
A4.  Climate Change
R M3 B e
General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related  page 56
— AR E issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
WA REHERAKRAEEHETAELTXENEARERERER 568
BB o
KPI A4.1  Description of the significant climate-related issues which  page 56
REEEWISIE have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.
HILER RO EEHBETAEFZENEARERRASE 568
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
a1 (BH)
B1.  Employment
=
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 57 to 60
— iR EE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
BRFNREE - BERSA TERKE -RA -TERE -2t 57E60E
b RIERMUREMEFBREFN (@BXE ; RO)ETFHETAR
BAXENMEREERRANEE
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and  page 58
RARE ISR geographical region.

7R ERER  FRAER RES DR ESER - 588

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and page 60
geographical region.

R FAR Rt E S D EE MK 608
B2.  Health and Safety
REHEZ R
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 61 to 62
—RRIFE and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. .
ERRUZ2TFRERFRERERCHEEREN @BK; k. 615628
OETFHBETAREAZENEREZRERRAINER
KPI B2.1  Number and rate of work-related fatalities. page 62
RS E R IR R ITERFRMIE T AR KL= 628
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. page 62
AIBEEEIAIIFE&- 628

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures page 61 to 62
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
HIMFT IRV E R 2 285 UWRABRARITRESR 61%628
ke
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
i (BH)
B3.  Development and Training
R RIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for page 63 to 64
— R R discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BREFHEERIT LIEBEMNA B R AERNBER  EigliEs 63E648
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and page 64
RARE IR employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
EMRREEREN NMEhEEE - FREERE B0MNR 648
fEEB D
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by page 64
gender and employee category.
BRI KR EELERE D BREETMZ NN TR - 648
B4.  Labour Standards
&5 T#EA
General Disclosure Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 65
— i R and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.
ARAPIEE T 58 MI%5 TR (IR ; RO)ETHEHITABEARY 656H
EREBERARGINE K o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to  page 65
RARE ISR avoid child and forced labour.
s s R BB A E M LU R B T R s& 55 T o 658
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when  page 65
discovered.
MM IRERBE R FEIRE BB PTEREN AT 5% o 658
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B. Social

e

Section
Reference
(Page Number)
RESH2E
(E15)

B5.  Supply Chain Management

HEEEIE
General Disclosure
—RRINE

KPI
RS AERIEIR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply

chain.

EIRMHEEAVIRG AT g BREER

B5.1

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

&8 DRI HEEHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
A RS B mE N7 A BIBA R HER
HE UKBAEANRITREER G E

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

WM ARH N EERESERANRIERTERABRNIER
DU BRAIT REE R %o

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

BT REEEEREELARRERRRBENERG > X
AT REER G %
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIESHi2E
HE (E55)
B6.  Product Responsibility

EmEE
General Disclosure
—RRIFE

KPI
PSR ISR

Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BRFMREERIRBNEREERZ - EBES - RERMESEUR
MR EDN ((QEER ; ROBTHETABEATENBREZER
REIBER o

B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons.
EENCEXERBHBTALE EEEEHMBELWAER

paNa

page 66 to 68

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
RN EmRRBIEFEME UREH &

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
Hm Bl S R (R R EE A RARVIE Bl 0

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
S S8 EIEIE K ERDIWIERE o

page 66 to 67

66ZE67H
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Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Section
Reference
B. Social (Page Number)
RIGEEH2E
a1 (BH)
B7.  Anti-corruption
R&5
General Disclosure
—RRINE Information on (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws  page 68
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRIPHIEERRS 1R~ IREF RE R B2 [(BUR ; o)BFH T A 688
BEATENEMERRRANER -
KPI B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  page 68
BRI IZ brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERMAHRETANEEERLTIEEENESHAE 688
BB B RefehsE R o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing  page 68
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
ML ST R RBRT  LURERARITREEER 5 688
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
HWiNESRETRHMRESEC -
B8.  Community Investment
HELSE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the  page 68
— iR EE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities
take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BRUHE2HERTHREEMTHERTENRFREERZHEE 688
& A AR -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental page 68
R R AEWIEIR concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HAIEMERE WEE BRESE - HFIER - EE Xt~ 688
fga) -
B8.2 Resource contributed to the focus areas. page 68
HEFTHBENERBA 688
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEEHRS

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability on 8 August 2007. The Group
principally engages in the operation and management of department
stores and property development in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 95.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group,
an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business and a discussion on the relationships with its key stakeholders,
are set out in the “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The review forms part of this directors’ report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Company’s Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 19
May 2022 to Tuesday, 24 May 2022 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM to be held on Tuesday, 24
May 2022, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure
all share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 18
May 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 100 to 101 and note 36 to the financial
statements. The reserves are calculated in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution was approximately RMB1,784 million, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to the
137 of Articles of Association, dividends may be declared and paid
out of the profits of the Company, realized or unrealized, or from any
reserve set aside from profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also
be declared and paid out of share premium account or any other fund or
account which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with the
law.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.

INTEREST BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

Interest bearing bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB14,314.9 million,
details of which are set out in the heading under “Interest-bearing
Liabilities” above and note 33 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Rao Youg
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

According to Article 87 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Lu Xiaojuan,
Mr. Rao Yong and Mr. Gao Yajun the existing directors of the Company,
will retire from office by rotation at the 2022 AGM. All the above retiring
director, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2022
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The Articles of
Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in
their respective offices; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
of said persons. Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this report, there was or is, any
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong))
being in force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Secretary” in this annual
report.

PENSION SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in retirement schemes administered and operated by
the local municipal government. The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as stipulated by the local municipal
government. Such retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to retirement benefit schemes charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2021 were RMB49 million. Details of the pension scheme are set out in
note 8 to the finance statement.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into
or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, no director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the directors of the Company
in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

(1) x2BRGBZES

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital”
- A AT
EEEY BR{TRAH
EExpgs &3 ERERYE B4 E 2t
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporations 4,200,000,000 81.71%
bk ZEREENEDR (Note)
(Ffy )
Beneficial owner 50,000,000 0.97%
BHEBA
4,250,000,000 82.68%
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan Beneficial owner 411,000 0.01%

BMER T

BamEAA

Note:  These shares were held by Maoye Department Store Investment Limited,

MizE : ZZEBRHHMOY International Holdings

a wholly-owned subsidiary of MOY International Holdings Limited, which in
turn was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

2.1) Maoye Department Store Investrment Limited, the immediate
holding company of the Company

Limited®WE2E K B A S Maoye
Department Store Investment LimitediF
B> MMOY International Holdings Limited
HEXNEELE®RB

BALERRZEREERUESATN
202112831 BB ETRMN BB -

(2 MEECEERGGZEFE
(2.1)75 1\ 5] B 2\ EiMaoye

Department Store Investment Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated
Name of director Capacity interested corporation”
bz EE
BAEEDZ BRITRAHN
S g0 EERHE L FSI=P g
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Interest of controlled corporation 2 100%
=AUk REGEENER (Note)
(P5E)
Note: These shares were held by MOY International Holdings Limited, MiEE :  ZEZERRHHEMOY International

which was wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

i The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided
by the number of Maoye Department Store Investment Limited’s
issued shares as at 31 December 2021.
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2.2) MOY International Holdings Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company

(2.2)28 1\ Bl R AL G 2\ EIMOY
International Holdings Limited

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of in such
ordinary shares associated

Name of director Capacity interested corporation*
R
BAREREZ BETREM

EE S &1 EERHE B4 B L
Mr. Huang Mao Ru Beneficial owner 100 100%

BRN7E BafEAA

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the
number of MOY International Holdings Limited’s issued shares as at 31
December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the directors
or chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the directors
of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed in the above
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its
Associated Corporations”) had interests of 5% or more in the shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in the shares of the Company ERBIRMGZEE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of substantial shareholder Capacity interested capital*
EAAT
BEEREZ BRI
TERRYS g1 ERERHE L F SR g
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang Interest of spouse 4,250,000,000 82.68%
REEZ L FofB s (Note (a))
(M45%(a))
Maoye Department Store Beneficial owner 4,200,000,000 81.71%
Investment Limited EnEEA (Note (o))
(GE))
MOQY International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 4,200,000,000 81.71%
REGZENER (Note (b))
(GE))
Notes: Mzt

(@ Mrs. Huang Jingzhang was deemed to be interested in these shares through the
interest of her spouse, Mr. Huang Mao Ru.

(b) Maoye Department Store Investment Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
MOQY International Holdings Limited. Such interests were also disclosed as the
interests of Mr. Huang Mao Ru in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the
Company and its Associated Corporations”.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number of
the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person (other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests have been disclosed
in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
and its Associated Corporations”) had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 5,324 employees.
Salaries, bonuses and benefits are determined with reference to market
terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employees.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Under the deed of non-competition dated 17 April 2008 given by Mr.
Huang Mao Ru, Maoye Holdings Limited and Richon Holdings Limited
(collectively known as the “Controlling Shareholder Group”) in favour
of the Company, details of which were stated in the prospectus of the
Company dated 21 April 2008 (the “Prospectus”), the Controlling
Shareholder Group had undertaken to use its best endeavour within
three years to (i) resolve the existing litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (EEMRMEEERS
BBR/AE) (“Chongging Jiefangbei Store”) and Chongging Xin Long
Da Real Estate Development Company Limited (EEEZ[EZEREME
BEE B RAT) (“Xin Long Da”); (i) obtain all necessary consents and
approvals for the transfer of the interest of the Controlling Shareholder
Group in Chongaing Jiefangbei Store and Wuxi Maoye Department
Store Company Limited (% E B EHER A B and Wuxi Maoye
Baifu Supermarket Company Limited (R EBTRBRHIZEEL
@) (the latter two collectively known as “Maoye Wuxi Store”) to the
Group (note); and (jii) obtain all necessary consents and approvals for
the transfer of the Controlling Shareholder Group’s interest in Guiyang
Friendship Group Holdings Company Limited (SBa & :E (EE) B A
FR/A =) (“Guiyang Friendship Group”), to serve a notice on the Group
within ten business days of any of the issues in clauses (i) to (i) above
having been resolved, and to use his/its best endeavour to transfer the
interest in Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye Wuxi Store and Guiyang
Friendship Group to the Group as soon as practicable once the relevant
issues impeding such transfer have been resolved. The Controlling
Shareholder Group had further undertaken to keep the Company
informed every six months from the Listing Date as regards the progress
on the matters described above.

Note:  The ownership of Maoye Wuxi Store has been changed to Wuxi Maoye Property
Co., Ltd., and such company was controlled by the Controlling Shareholders.
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Since the Supreme People’s Court has adjudged that the leasing
agreement entered into between Chongging Jiefangbei Store and
Xin Long Da was valid and binding, the litigation between Chongging
Jiefangbei Store and Xin Long Da has been resolved. However, the Group
is still considering as to whether to acquire the interests of the Controlling
Shareholder Group in the Chongqging Jiefangbei Store and Maoye Wuxi
Store. As the original master management agreement has terminated
on 31 December 2019, the Company entered into the new master
management agreement (the “New Master Management Agreement”)
with Maoye Holdings Limited on 1 January 2020 to govern the terms
upon which the Group will provide store management services to the
Controlling Shareholder Group with respect to the Maoye Wuxi Store
and/or department stores owned by the Controlling Shareholder Group in
order to avoid conflict of interests between the Group and the Controlling
Shareholder Group. The New Master Management Agreement has a
term of three years with effect from 1 January 2020. As Maoye Holdings
Limited is a connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, the entering into of the New Master Management Agreement
constituted a connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. However, as all the applicable percentage ratios in
relation to the New Master Management Agreement were less than 0.1%,
the New Master Management Agreement was fully exempt from the
reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules. As Chongging Jiefangbei Store has ceased operation
since February 2011, the Group did not manage Chongqing Jiefangbei
Store thereafter. Approval from the relevant government departments has
not been obtained in relation to the Group’s application for transfer of
interest in Guiyang Friendship Group.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Internet Promotion Service Agreement

On 18 August 2021, Maoye Digital Intelligence Information Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited (“Maoye Digital Intelligence”, an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Internet
Promotion Service Agreement with Shenzhen Shijin Business Consulting
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Shijin”), pursuant to which Maoye Digital
Intelligence agreed to pay, and Shenzhen Shijin agreed to provide, among
others, promotion services relating to the information designated by
Maoye Digital Intelligence on multi-channel online platforms including
Tencent and ByteDance.
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The Internet Promotion Service Agreement is effective for three years
commencing from 18 August 2021 to 17 August 2024. According to the
Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the total service fees payable by
Maoye Digital Intelligence for the advertising services and value-added
services to Shenzhen Shijin and the proposed annual caps are RMB5.0
million, RMB20.0 million, RMB30.0 million and RMB30.0 million from 18
August 2021 to 31 December 2021, for the year 2022, for the year 2023
and from 1 January 2024 to 17 August 2024, respectively.

According to the Internet Promotion Service Agreement, the service fees
payable by Maoye Digital Intelligence for the advertising services and
value-added services is RMB1.71 million from 18 August 2021 to 31
December 2021.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
and confirmed that such Continuing Connected Transaction is:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant terms governing the conduct of such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The auditors of the Group confirmed in the letter to the board of directors
that, in respect of the above continuing connected transactions:

(i) they did not notice anything that would lead the auditors to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions were not
approved by the board of directors;
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(i) they did not notice anything that led the auditors to believe that
the transactions were not conducted in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreements of these transactions; and

(i) with regard to the continuing connected transactions in total, they
did not notice any circumstances that would make the auditors
believe that the continuing connected transactions exceeded
the relevant caps referred in the relevant Agreements and
Announcements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2021, save as disclosed below, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any business or interests in businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group:

Mr. Huang Mao Ru held interests in Chongqing Jiefangbei Store, Maoye
Wuxi Store and Guiyang Friendship Group. Details of these companies
and Mr. Huang’s interests in these companies are set out in the
Prospectus. As mentioned in the Prospectus, the Controlling Shareholder
Group has granted the Group an option to purchase the whole or part of
the interest of these companies.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group mainly engages in retail business, for the year ended 31
December 2021, none of its customers or suppliers accounted for more
than 5% of the Group’s revenue or purchases. In addition, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, none of the directors, shareholders or their
respective close associates who owned 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital had any interest in any of the five largest customers
and the five largest suppliers of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are set out
in the “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. The Group
strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. Details of the
environmental policies of the Company are set out in the “Environmental,

Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out in the Mainland
China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Mainland China and Hong Kong. As far as
the Directors are aware, during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this report, the Group has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its

business and operations.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the
2022 AGM to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board

Maoye International Holdings Limited
Huang Mao Ru

Chairman

25 March 2022

88  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 2Bl KR 12 R2 /5 R A

IRIBEER
FEBRIREE—EERERTFNAT &K
FIAEHURAER - AEMBHBEBHN

BB A S B (o] UR 1IG 3R 16 PR 31 A AR R AN ELth A
BHARX RO HRIENEE - BRAAQATIR
BBERZ BN AERRE - HEREA
]EIAN-

REFBFENEAMEES  WHEHZF LT
HFIBI AL FEE RT & P E AR EARE
B EZRAB T - RIBEXAEBEEMRA &
BE2021F 12831 HEEMAREHEE » &
EECRETHEERMESESLEATE
MEEHENEZELENBE -

B Em

AT Z N2 kG 5tEIE BT 2 EHR

J& i > Eiéfff%jtﬁﬁ’%‘é'%%%éﬁq Fr20224
REBFAE LHRE-FRZBR  EME
e %Hcﬂ’;quEﬂﬁ%FFﬁ%Zli/&TF%(Eﬂﬁo

AEEGm
REBRIZRERAT
=04

EES

202243825H

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVRER S IS

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

e
EY:x

To the shareholders of Maoye International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Maoye
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 95 to 250, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the

basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

HRESNEE

REBEARRIEHETER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANEANAHARES ERETRE

Goodwill - impairment

BE—HE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group reported goodwill of
RMB1,322,252,000 as a result of previous acquisitions.
Management performs an impairment test for the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired, by comparing the carrying amount of the
unit, including the goodwill, with the recoverable amount of
the unit. The impairment test is complex, and significantly
relies on management’s judgement and estimation about
the discount rate and the expected future operating
results, such as the long-term growth rate, revenue and
margin development which are affected by future market
and economic conditions.

2021128310 SEERFSAWEEEME KA
R #51,322,252,000cNE & - B E BB LR EARE
B (EEHE BEMIRLEEEE SFREERNRE
TRBMUAELRIRBERN HENKEENREELS
ETREANRS RENAEMEAEEEEHMEX
FMFESHARRGE XS MRMIBREER \WARENERE)
A R fh st ZFERRZRRDIGREBEAR R E

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in note 2.4 Business
combinations and goodwill, note 3 Impairment of goodwill
and note 20 Goodwill to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BEHBER - BEAMSRAERBEESHA SEBEREHM
BHRRMEF24EE S HEEE  WEESH B R A &M 5T
20 & -

We evaluated the key assumptions used in cash flow
forecasts, such as the sales growth and gross margin,
through comparison with historical performance and the
business development plan. We involved our internal
valuation specialists in the assessment of the discount
rate and long-term growth rate with reference to general
market indicators and comparable companies. We also
tested management’s sensitivity analysis of the impairment
test.
BMEBEATRBEREEFERFS LIRS RE
TERIPTE AR RERR WHEEREREFN - ME
A EEERBBE2E —RhiZEERA ERAB T E
MREXEEHEEXR - RMTAREEEHRENADN
BURE Do

We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

HAIT AR BRERPHABKEES R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

F#EETEE@®

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRESSFE

Investment properties - valuation

REWE—14E

BANBHUAHARESNERETERE

The Group is engaged in the operation and management
of department stores and property development in
Mainland China. The completed investment properties in
operation and investment properties under construction
are recognised as investment properties and measured
at fair value. Management engaged external appraisers
to evaluate the fair values of the investment properties
annually. As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s
investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB21,394,912,000. The fair value measurement of
investment properties is complex and highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management, such as
the rental value, rental growth, vacancy rates, discount
rate, budgeted construction cost, remaining percentage to
completion and profit margin on construction.
EEERPFREAENEEEEREREREYELERE
BoREPNERTIREMERTERENERLEY
EWEANBEE - BIEEZRIINEHEME ST
LEMENRAREE - R2021F12831H SEEN
BREYENAANRE21,394,912,0007T c M E M EH A
nEBEAEEEEFEETEEEHN—RIMEst WA
TEE - HEEE - TEX MR -BEREEMAIE
BE TR TEDERTEMEE.

The accounting policies, significant estimates, fair value
hierarchy and related disclosures are included in note 2.4
Investment properties, note 3 Estimation of fair value of
investment properties, and note 18 Investment properties
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
EERR - EAMGF - A2NBEERKREBKRESH
A BERGEMBRRMI2ALEYE IR E
MEN R ABEGS UM 18 EYE-

We assessed the objectivity, independence and expertise
of the external appraisers, as well as obtained an
understanding of the external appraisers’ scope of work.
BMTE TS EEMNEEE - B UM R EENH
DR 7 fR o EB (i (B AT TR &R[E o

With the assistance of our internal valuation specialists, we
obtained an understanding of the valuation process and
techniques and inputs (such as discount rate) adopted
by the external appraisers to assess whether they were
consistent with the requirements of industry norms. We
obtained the detailed work of the external appraisers
and assessed the reasonableness of the significant
unobservable inputs and the accuracy of the source
data adopted by the management of the Group and the
external appraisers by comparing them, on a sampling
basis, to existing tenancy profiles, publicly available
information of similar comparable properties and our
knowledge of the real estate industry. We also evaluated
the sensitivity analysis prepared by management on the
significant unobservable inputs to evaluate the magnitude
of their impacts on the fair values.
AERMASEEERNHE T XM TR T HEBRER
4MER 1 1B BT PTERAR AY 75 0% DU R 8 A B (5190 BGER =) 1L
TEEEEEITERERTE o HMIEVESEB K EED
el TEBE R RABRIBEHRER R EUTEEY
(N RHAENRBEMEEMETEN T HETIEER &7
HEALFAGEATNTRZHABNSELK S&E
EIRE Ko HMEB A (& B P ER AR AY B3R 2R BO ZE B 14 o TR 1P
B TEEEMNEZNTEHEZGABRENSRED
MLGHEREHRANBENTERE -

We also reviewed the adequacy of the disclosures of the
fair value of investment properties in the consolidated
financial statements.

BBt ReMBRRPREMELNEENRKER
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Law Kwok Kee.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

maEmR

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= ARBTT ARET T
REVENUE A 5 5,234,615 6,911,751
Other income HA 6 1,165,381 1,104,634
Total operating revenue A PN L 6,399,996 8,016,385
Cost of sales tHE R A 7 (2,170,195) (3,231,173
Employee expenses BERE 8 (472,360) (415,215)
Depreciation and amortisation HTEE M i (1,103,358) (1,083,355)
Payments for short-term leases and FRHEEREEE
leases of low-value assets BEEHRE 10 (7,965) (10,933
Other operating expenses HMKE% 11 (1,153,118) (1,144,953)
Other gains and losses Hthm M58 12 121,821 (825,937)
Operating profit KEF)E 1,614,821 1,304,819
Finance costs BB A 13 (1,146,469) (1,231,528)
Share of profits and losses of: EBEUTEHER -
a joint venture aEbE (499) (1,182)
associates = /NE] (26,167) (8,253)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PRER AT ERF 441,686 63,856
Income tax expense T8 14 (331,094) (312,852)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EFNHE (BB 110,592 (248,996)
Attributable to: U AL FES
Owners of the parent IEYNCIL: S DN 65,685 (174,636)
Non-controlling interests JERER R R 44,907 (74,360)
110,592 (248,996)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE BARLE#EGREAEWN 16

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREMN (B8

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Basic HAx

— For profit/(loss) for the year —ARENE (B8 EE RMB1.28 cents ~ RMB(3.40) cents
AR#1.28 ARE(3.40%

Diluted wE

— For profit/(loss) for the year —ARENE (B8 EE RMB1.28 cents  RMB(3.40) cents

AR #51.28%

AR ¥(3.40)5
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rEEEBmE

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ENHE, (BB 110,592 (248,996)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2mEm =
Defined benefit retirement plans RERKEF EHE (210) 976
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBRMEEED

foreign operations bE 2 = 28 18,375 78,738

Other comprehensive income that will not be MBS rgEMmoEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:  BIEAIE 2 EWE ©

Changes in fair value on equity investments BEAUAREESZEEH

designated at fair value through other st AHMEmEUER
comprehensive income EREENANBEES (118,067) 157,521
Income tax effect T8 & 31,769 (39,380)
Gains on property revaluation MESHWN R 1,053,595 95,342
Income tax effect R8s 2 (262,642) (23,837)
704,655 189,646
Share of other comprehensive income of associates FE(L B AT HMt 2 E T 9,719 -
Net other comprehensive income that will not be MBS rgEmoER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods 1Bz I E{th & & &5 3 58 714,374 189,646
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FERREHEMEEKES
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 732,539 269,360
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEKHELE
FOR THE YEAR 843,131 20,364
Attributable to: DUR A TFEMS -
Owners of the parent [SYNCIL:SES TS PN 747,117 79,299
Non-controlling interests JEIER IR R T 96,014 (58,935)
843,131 20,364
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

REMBIRRR

31 December 2021
20215%12831H

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12831H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AR¥TT ANREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment IEN =Yg 17 8,297,704 8,392,910
Investment properties REYE 18 21,394,912 19,441,153
Right-of-use assets TREEE 19(a) 5,946,016 6,335,008
Goodwill mE 20 1,322,252 1,361,122
Other intangible assets Hithmp & E 21 37,446 41,589
Investment in a joint venture NEETERE 22 592 1,091
Investments in associates RHEATRE 23 447,013 1,069,334
Equity investments designated fEERBUAANEBEFEREHR
at fair value through other EEETAEMEEWEDN
comprehensive income BmLE 24 1,354,735 1,520,533
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEsI2EEEHEA
profit or loss BRNTHEE 24 9,475 10,712
Prepayments SEANE R 29 134,074 166,485
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 25 745,925 640,401
Total non-current assets MBI B ELLEE 39,690,144 38,980,338
CURRENT ASSETS TRENE E
Inventories =758 26 333,974 264,448
Completed properties held for sale HEGEERHRYE 2,119,354 2,442 287
Properties under development BRI 27 5,314,077 5,770,812
Financial assets at fair value through ManBEstEAEEHEA
profit or loss BnlNEMmEE 24 417,053 28,028
Trade and bills receivables EWE ZHIEREE 28 14,144 11,015
Prepayments, other receivables and FETFIE ~ HAhFEWERIE K
other assets Hh&EE 29 2,511,938 2,517,598
Pledged deposits BIERER 30 147,114 245,919
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIREHEY 30 1,197,116 1,046,689
Total current assets MBI E EAREE 12,054,770 12,326,796
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI IR

31 December 2021
20215%12H31H

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204

12H31H 12831H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

fsE ARBTFT ARBT T

CURRENT LIABILITIES Bt B=RE
Trade and bills payables B S IEKREE 31 1,892,912 2,466,217
Contract liabilities, deposits received, a6 BWEE

accruals and other payables FEsT & B R EMERIE 32 8,317,028 11,773,729
Interest-bearing bank loans and FTEIBITER K

other borrowings HERR 33 6,412,887 4,987,441
Lease liabilities HEa®E 19(b) 276,666 262,934
Income tax payable FEBIFRISR 383,430 529,973
Dividend payable EERE 26,076 25,527
Total current liabilities mENaEMEER 17,308,999 20,045,821
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFE (5,254,229) (7,719,025)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBARE

LIABILITIES 34,435,915 31,261,313

08 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 2Bl KR 12 R2 /5 R A ANNUAL REPORT 2021 EE3H %



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBI RR

31 December 2021

2021412H31H
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B oE ARETFTT AREETFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERIMEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and FFERITERRK
other borrowings HhfEmr 33 7,901,982 9,355,018
Lease liabilities HEa®RE 19(b) 2,100,472 2,333,243
Deferred tax liabilities P =y == 25 4,301,047 4,110,375
Other long-term payables HEMmEIAEE 32 3,858,622 158
Provision for retirement benefits BIKER B HE 34 6,789 6,855
Total non-current liabilities Bl E=E Rk 18,168,912 15,805,649
Net assets BEESRE 16,267,003 15,455,664
EQUITY Ui
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BA B =HIFE AELELR
Issued capital BEITRA 35 460,153 460,153
Other reserves HithfEs 36 13,255,109 12,507,992
13,715,262 12,968,145
Non-controlling interests FEER R R i 2,551,741 2,487,519
Total equity 4B %R 16,267,003 15,455,664
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SHBEBE

n\7|_\
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021512A31HILFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
SRAREREARERE
Disposal
of partial
interestina
Acquistion  subsidiary Defined
Share  ofnon- without Capital Statutory Asset beneft  Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  controling losing  redemption Contributed ~ surplus ~ revaluation  refirement  fluctuation  Retained controling Total
capit  account  interests control reserve surplus reserve reserve’ plans reserve profits Totdl  interests equity
HE-
HELE
W% BoRE
BEf B PR WEXE  E5EE EERE  BEBE  REBM  SNERE 2R
B RBE REER AR HBE 2ERR AR G B BE 2R ait REER  ERLE
RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB000 RMB'0O0 RMB'OO0  RMB'000 RMB'0OO0 RMB'000  RMBOO0 RMB'000  RMB'0O0 RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARETR A\RETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2020 202051818 460,153 1,630,539 (32312) 295477 (459,251) 28191 857,840 3,939,281 (1,100) (91482 6408010 13030346 3,124,683 16,155,029
Proft for the year KERE - - - - - - - - - - (174636 (174636)  (74360)  (248996)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FEEMAANG
Chenges n fa valie of equiy ivestments 5 AU L2 BEHEEL
designated at fair valug through other 2EASMAEREN
comprehensive income, before tax i3t éﬁﬂ";‘tﬁﬁ@@]
(ia0) - - - - - - - 153576 - - - 183576 35 15710
Disposal of equity investments designated ~~ HERRALUARBEHEER
at fairvalue through other comprehensive. ~ EEEI5 ARM2ENED
income (note 24) BERE (1) - - - - - - R AT - - B8 - - -
Exchanges differences on translaton of ENEBABELN
foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - - - 8738 - 78738 - T8I
Defined beneft retirement plans REREHHE - - - - - - - - 808 - - 808 168 976
Revaluation gains on properties upon transfer 1% BRRRESRE
from property, plant and equipment to REMENMEEGNE
nvestment properties, before tax (B30 - - - - - - - 7894 - - - T8M3 16399 9534
Tax effect of components of other B2 ERERASSH
comprehensive income nEve - - - - - - - (38130 - - - (88,130 (5,087)  (83217)
Total comprehensive income for the year RERENGAE - - - - - - - 82 808 78738 (81489 79209 (58935 20364
Acquistion of non-controling interests WEFERRRES - - (50,074) - - - - - - - - 0074 (479328 (529402
Profit approprated to reserves BERENNE - - - - - - 129720 - - - (129720) - - -
Firaldividend for 2010 NIYERERE - - - - - - - - - S Mg 0718 ©708  (10042)
Deregisiration of a subsiciary HEHBAR - - - - - - (526) - - - - (526) - (526)
Cash compensation to non-controling AR ERFELNREER
interests (note 36) (F5£36) - - - - - (182) - - - - - (182) 182 -
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to —BHEATRIEERRR
non-controling shareolders ERRTNRE - - - - - - - - - - - - (89375 (89375
At 31 December 2020 R2020£128310 460153 1630539 (82386 295477 (459251)  28009° 987034 402052 092 (12744y 6,101,084 12968145 2487519 15455664

100 MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% % EIRS = A R A S

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
e EmBER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021512831HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BARRERA AR
Disposal
of partial
interestina
Acquisition  subsidiary DT
Share ofnon-  without  Capital Statutory Asset  benefit Exchange Non-
Issued  premium controlling losing redemption Contributed  surplus revaluation retirement fluctuation Retained controlling
capital  account interests mcgntvol reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve plans  reserve profits Total interests
—f
HEBAE
WE PR
B R AR WEXE  E4EE tERE EEEf AREF MNERE JER
RE  EEE  REEEZ R i EHER A it B i SEEN A RREE EEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARKTn ABRTR ABBTR ABBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 P01E1B1R 460,153 1,630,539  (82,386) 295477  (459,251) 28,009 987,034 4,020,522 (292 (12,744) 6,101,084 12,968,145 2,487,519 15455664
Proft for the year KRS - - - - - - - - - - 65685 65685 44907 110592

Other comprehensive income for the year: ~ AEEMZENE
Changes in fair value of equity investments ~ SEANAABEHERR
designated at fair valug through other 2a A SR ElEN
comprehensive income, before tax BaEENANBEES
(B5i40) = - - - - - - (105939 - - - (105939  (12,128) (118,067)
Disposal of equity investments designatedat ~ H&HREAUA A BEE
fair value through other comprehensive BHESHALMLE

income (note 24) WENERRE (i) - - - - - - - 1 - - (1714 - - -
Exchange diferences on translation of ENEBABELY

foreign operations ERER - - - - - - - - - 18315 - 18315 - 18315
Defined beneft retirement plans RERMETHE - - - - - - - - (174) - - (174) (36) (210)

Revaluation gains on properties upon ransfer ~ FR¥1% BRRRESRE
from property, plant and equipment to REMENEERNE

nvestment properties, before tax (Bs#0) - - - - - - - 1355 - - - 973575 80020 1,053,595
Tax effect of components of other Ef2ERERRSIAH
comprefiensive income i3 7+ - - - - - - - 1412 - - - (14124) (16749  (280,873)
Share of other comprehensive income of EEREATHMZ ARG
associates - - - - - - - 9719 - - - 9,719 - 9,719
Total comprehensive income for the year FERENERE - - - - - - - 680375 (174 18375 48541 74117 96014 843131
Profit appropriated to reserves BERENNE - - - - - - 2681 - - - (26861) - - -
Dividend paid by a subsidiary to —ENBARREERES
non-controling shareholders ERRA0RE - - - - - - - - - - - - (31799 (31,792
At 31 December 2021 2001128310 460,153 1,630,530*  (62,386)  295477*  (459,251)*  28,009* 1,013,895* 4,700,897 (466)* 5631 6,122,764* 13,715,262 2,551,741 16,267,003

#  The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from property, plant and ~ * EESGHEEREYVE BE REFREAKRE

equipment to investment properties carried at fair value and changes in fair value of M BARBEREEAUANEBSEEES
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income. Bt AHEMEARGNEREENANEBEEZS
FlfR o
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of * ZEHERBEEGESUBRIRTINESH
RMB13,255,109,000 (2020: RMB12,507,992,000) in the consolidated statement of fhf# AR 113,255,109,0007T (20204 : AR
financial position. 12,507,992,0007T) ©
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7|_\ EE@/}".E%

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE AR% T AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ST ESHNIRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax PRI AT 441,686 63,856
Adjustments for: MTEIEHE .
Interest income FE WA 6 (22,380) (17,388)
Depreciation and amortisation of Y2~ BB e st MU
property, plant and equipment and HthEEEENRDZ
other intangible assets 7 EE Fe 4 8 585,488 571,024
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERARBEEZIE 19 517,870 514,004
Gain on partial disposal of HoHE—EE B RKRG
shares in an associate B 2 12 - (3,664)
Loss on disposal of shares HE—REE AR RKRM
in an associate S8 12 46,272 -
Loss on repurchase of United States O ETERLAERE
dollar senior notes (“USD senior (FETBEBLEER)
notes”) MEsE 12 - (4,546)
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net ShEE (R E) B518 3 48 12 (1,055) 47,973
Reversal of impairment of trade FEW B Z 718
receivables AR E 11 (4,232) (533)
Impairment of investment in an associate A B & A SR E RE 12 102,932 168,302
(Reversal of impairment)/Impairment of ~ HfhfEU=RIE CRiE#H )
other receivables A 11 (21,833) 5,301
Impairment of goodwill EESREAE 12 38,870 62,607
Reversal of impairment of amounts FE YR BA Bg: 75 =R I8
due from related parties AR 11 (316) (5,197)
Impairment of properties under
development BRPMERE 11 2,872 64,323
Loss on disposal of investment property HEBEYENEIE 12 - 2,993
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME - HEMREREN
property, plant and equipment (Wz) K518 12 (89,869) 95,992
Gain on disposal of financial assets HEM A nBESIEEH
at fair value through profit or loss EEETABENEMEE
U im 12 (6,153) (6,726)
Dividend income from financial assets KEUAREEG=ZEEEE
at fair value through profit or loss FEABTHNEHEEN
= 12 (1,563) (1,488)
Fair value (gains)/losses on investment KEMENAEE Wm)
properties /518 12 (302,390) 407,759
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial L/(/&ftﬁ{é?réﬂﬂﬁﬁ
assets at fair value through profit T AEz B’JfErEﬁJXE’J
or loss NRABERBE WE 12 17,567 (1,673)
Dividend income from equity investments 35 & LA AEE EJrEELE
designated at fair value through other EEETAEMEEEN
comprehensive income BERILEREUA 12 (6,517) (15,016)
Finance costs RRE A A 13 1,146,469 1,231,528
Share of losses of associates BRI E A B EE 26,167 8,253
Share of loss of a joint venture FEh—EEEhxEEE 499 1,182
2,470,384 3,188,866
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REREMER

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Decrease in completed properties held ~ EHAEZFEBERYER LD
for sale 506,493 1,805,433
Additions of properties under development % & F1 4 2£ 3% 1 (564,972) (974,470)
Increase in inventories EFEEEm (69,526) (59,149)
Provision for retirement benefits paid BRG] B 34 (533) (669)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills FEUN B 5 718 M Z iR R D
receivables (g m) 1,103 (6,461)
Decrease in prepayments and other BRI R MW FIE
receivables D 39,112 340,738
Decrease in trade and bills payables AN RZE Yt SN (573,305) (167,475)
Decrease in contract liabilities, deposits & BE - BWitE FEsTER
received, accruals and other payables e EL A FE AT =R IE R D (552,514) (2,792,040)
Cash generated from operations REMBIRE 1,256,242 1,334,773
Interest received BF B 15,251 22 211
PRC tax paid B HRERE (464,798) (452,100)
Net cash flows from operating activities — && EHELRIRESREFEE 806,695 904,884
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7|_\ Eﬁﬁlllléﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2021 2020

20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AREFT AR®FT

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING FRBEESHELEDN

ACTIVITIES RERE
Purchase of items of property, BEYE BEMKRBEEEB

plant and equipment (231,354) (220,369)
Purchase of items of investment properties B S B %8B - (20,115)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE- r BERzEEE

property, plant and equipment FTigsIa 79,659 8,225
Purchase of financial assets = LX’&%ME“?TE STEEH&ZH

at fair value through profit or loss FABGENEREE (626,300) (595,331)
Proceeds from disposal of HEUARBESTEEEED)

financial assets at fair value FABGENEMEEMS

through profit or loss IE 224,141 766,025
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSIE

properties - 11,483
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEEEAURARBESER

investments designated at fair value HEghst A2 mEmWE

through other comprehensive income o EMEHRIE 207,285 141,660
Proceeds from disposal of HE—MBE AR D ER

a partial interest of an associate FriS =18 302,170 638,640
Purchase of other intangible assets E%EH@#R%JX (746) (255)
Repayment of a loan by a third party —BE=ZHEEEMN 20,198 700
Acquisition of a subsidiary W — M E A B 37 - (869,532)
Payment for acquisition of interest in a SN EFEFWE—EHE AR

subsidiary acquired in prior year TR (228,572) -
Acquisition of interests in a joint venture WS —RE & & ERER - (1,000)
Dividend paid by subsidiaries to B ARSI mIEERR RS

non-controlling shareholders [i535) (31,792) (89,375)
Dividend received from financial assets ~ ZREMUAABEEEHEH)

at fair value through profit or loss ABENEMEERE 3,216 3,429

Dividend received from equity investments 2K BIIEEAMU AR BESER
designated at fair value through other He qu/\ET’@iﬁHﬁZ A=)

comprehensive income HEaRERE 6,517 15,008
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BIRRIRITERURL 7 (GEI)
deposits 98,805 (87,654)

Net cash flows used in investing activites AR R E EZENELERN
REMNEFH (176,773) (248,461)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘7|_\ IE@/}".E%E

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b &F AR%T T ARETFIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN BRREEFSHNRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of a loan from a third party ~ EBE—RE=ZHFNER = (140,000)
New bank loans and other borrowings FgIRITER R EMERR 6,267,075 9,311,090
Repayment of bank loans and BERITERREMER
other borrowings (6,294,665) (11,431,244)
Interest paid BAFHE (825,880) (1,028,593)
Principal and interest elements of AEREARSF S D
lease payments 19(b) (443,637) (415,858)
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KEBRMEBATMNERR 1,431,200 3,366,460
Repayment of loans from fellow BERZNBABDNER
subsidiaries (633,979) (446,000)
Final dividend paid BENRARE - (90,718)
Net cash flows used in financing activites AR E EEIRIR S R E 558 (499,886) (874,863)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH IR& KIEEZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS m, GRZL) 358 130,036 (218,440)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, BEXEEINZ L
net JFEE 20,391 32,558
Cash and cash equivalents FYIREKRIRS
at beginning of year £EY 1,046,689 1,232,571
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S XB&KIRS
END OF YEAR ZEY 1,197,116 1,046,689
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF HEeERREZEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SRR
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTERGER 30 1,197,116 1,046,689
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERBRMIFRE KM
in the statement of cash flows BEEEY 1,197,116 1,046,689
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Maoye International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 8 August 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised). The Company’s registered office address has been
changed to P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, Ky1-1205 Cayman Islands with effect
from 1 October 2016 and the head office and principal place of
business of the Company is located at 38/F, World Finance Centre,
4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the operation
and management of department stores and property development in
Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company
and the ultimate holding company of the Company are Maoye
Department Store Investment Limited and MOY International
Holdings Limited, respectively, which were incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration and

Company name place of operations
AL s AR
GIEE AR E S A

REREBEH

REBBZERBERLAR (TRA781) B
2007F8HSHIEIMEHEREMS
BABIE22F A F A (1961 FFE390 A
2o UREHKETEALE) ML
BRRBERETRB AR E ZFM
MEFMIBEEFEARP.O. Box 31119
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West
Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205
Cayman lIslands’ B2016E1081HEAE
B MARN BB E R K B /RS
AR R E AR HEME (THEL) FIIE
IR B840035% tE R & fh A0 381& o A A
BRENEAT G AERH) FEZR
FEAERETEEREREER Y=

BEERA ARANEBREZERABNR
BIERABID BRI EBETR R B
EfIMaoye Department Store Investment
LimitedAIMQY International Holdings
Limited e

BB ARNER
FATEBRMBEABBIFHEAT !

Nominal value
of issued and
paid-up share/ equity attributable
registered capital to the Company
BEETRARE FRREMES
RIAEE/EMEE BALL

Percentage of
Principal activities

FEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef i
% %

Maoye Department Store Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands

US$2/US$50,000 100

Investment holding

REREZRERAT 11 September 2007 2%7T,/50,0002 7 REER
HEEFRES
2007498118
Maoye Department Stores (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Maoye China’) 7 December 1993 100,000/ 7T REER
KEBETEERAR (RERE)) &
1993F1287H
Zhongzhao Investment Management Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Zhongzhao’) 28 October 1997 AR 50,000,000 REZR
FIREEERRAR (k) /AR
1997%£10828H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION REIREEER @

(continued)
BB ATNER @
KRB EEMBATWERBNOT © (B

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Comp_any Principal activities
EMAL /MR BEARMR F2TRfEL ‘
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Dahua Investment (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100/HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
RERE (FE) BRAH 28 May 2008 100%7z,//10,000%7T REER
BE
QOOSESH 28H
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China US$445,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(‘Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha’) 31 January 1996 445,000,000 7T operation of department
AEEEEERAE CRYIREEE) e,/ R AR stores
19961 A31H RERREEEREE
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Shennan PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 20 April 2000 AE1,000,0007% _ store
B RLESRRERAT" B,/ REIARE KEEER
2000545208
Shenzhen Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB536,869,782 - 82.8  Operation of a department
AIKERERRAT" 20 April 2000 AR #536,869,7827C _store
e,/ REARE SN
200054F208
Shenzhen Maoye Department Store Huagiangbei  PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 31 March 2003 AE#1,000,0007T ~ store
FFRLEEERIBRA hEl,/ REARE KEpaE
2003%3531A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREREHN @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AERE £t R RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Shenzhen Maoye Oriental Times Department PRC/Mainland China RMB1,200,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. 8 August 2005 AR 1,200,000 store
MImEERARABEERAT RE,/REARE KEBEE
20058H8H
Zhuhai City Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB4,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
LETREBERRAT" 24 August 2001 AE4,800,0007T store
I,/ REIARE KEBEE
2001485244
Zhuhai Jiarun Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
KERHRERRAT" 17 December 2013 AE12,000,0007 store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
2013E12817H
Chongaing Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
EERXBEEERRT” 27 August 2004 AR 30,000,007 store
hE,/ REARE KEBEE
2004£8H27H
Talyuan Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,005,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ARREBGBERAT 11 Apri 2008 A& 1,005,000,0007T store
hE,/REIARE KEBEE
2008F4A118
Chongging Baifule Business and Commerce PRC/Mainland China RMB102,481,500 - 82.8  Operation of a supermarket
Co., Ltd. 16 September 2008 AR 102,481,5007T KeBh
EEEREBEERAT" e,/ REARE
200895 160
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREREN @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
AE%TE AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Shanxi Maoye Land and Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanxi Real Estate”) 18 November 2008 AR 100,000,000 BHELE
LAREEH B EREERAR e,/ REARE
(MuAEEME) 20085115188
Changzhou Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
ENXEREBRAD" 21 May 2009 AR 5,000,000 store
e,/ REARE KEpaE
200945521A
Shenzhen Maolehui-commmerce Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 98  Operation of a department
MIREBEFHHBREELT 26 July 2019 A #5,000,0007 store
B,/ REIARE KEEER
201978268
Shenyang Maoye Times Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 100  Property development
ERRERREEERAT" 24 September 2007 AR #:8,000,0007% BHERRE
e,/ REARE
200749H 247
Shenzhen Municipal Maoye Advertisement PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100 Provision of advertising
Co., Ltd. 25 December 2002 AE#2,000,0007% services
AhREREBRAT e,/ B AR REREERE
20024 12825H
Taizhou First Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB18,950,000 - 80.57  Operation of a department
FNE-BRBERAERAT" 20 May 1994 AR 18,950,0007 store
I,/ REIARE KEEER
199458204
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AERE £t R RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Wuxi Yibai Property Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB202,500,000 - 90  Property development
EHRABXERRT” 15 April 2008 AR #202,500,0007% BHELR
hE,/REARE
200854F 150
Shenyang Maoye Business Service Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB155,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
BRREBERBERAR 13 May 2010 AR 1#155,000,0007 store
hE,/ REIARE KEBEE
201058138
Jinzhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$193,000,000 - 100  Property development
BNREEXBRAT" 9 July 2010 193,000,000 7T BHEER
e,/ REARE
2010%7A9H
Baoding Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
(‘Baoding Maoye’) 20 September 2010 AE#5,000,0007% store
REXERRARAT (MREREBE) " hE,/REARE KEBEE
201069H20H
Huaian Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB206,000,000 - 100  Property development
EEREBLBRAT" 30 September 2010’ AR 206,000,000 BHELE
B/ REA R
20104F9530A
Shandong Zibo Maoye Department Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB143,887,180 - 80  Operation of a department
URERETRERERMBRAT" 7 January 1999 AR 143,887,1807T store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
19995 187H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. REIREREN @

ERMBARNER (@
FRABEEZMBRABBFENT : (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baoding Maoye Land and PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. 18 December 2006 AR 50,000,000 BHELE
(‘Baoding Land and Real Estate’) HE/ REAE
REXRERMEREBRAT 20065125188
(MRERMERME)
Linyi Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
EBRRXEEERAT” 3 November 2010 A E%5,000,0007C store
e,/ REARE SN
201011H3A
Taizhou Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China HK$524,800,000 - 100  Property development
(“Taizhou Property’) 8 November 2010 524,800,0007% 7 BHEEE
FNEEEEERNE (RMRE) e,/ B AR
2010%11E8H
Hong Kong Maoye Department Store (Yangzhou)  PRC/Mainland China RMB64,643,046 - 70 Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 16 May 1996 AE64,643,0467T store
ERRERE GG BIRAE" I,/ REIARE KEEER
199658164
Zibo Maoye Shangsha Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB81,800,000 - 80  Operation of department
MEREBEBRAT” 25 June 1994 AR 81,800,0007T stores and supermarket
R/ REIARE chain stores
1994464 25H KenaaEREHED
Maoye Commercial Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,731,982,546 - 82.8  Investment holding and
(‘Maoye Commercial’) 31 December 1993 ANE#1,731,982,5467T operation of department
REBERNHERAR (REHE) hEl,/ R AR stores
1993128311 RERERESEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREREHN @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
NGRS AERE £t R RIVEE/ EMES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Chengdu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB48,000,000 - 79.35  Investment holding
BEREEXBRAT" 18 March 1998 AR #48,000,0007T REER
hE,/REARE
1998535 18H
Chengshang Group Nanchong Maoye Co., Ltd. ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
(‘Nanchong Maoye”) 20 November 2001 AE20,000,0007% store
RAERRAXEEEARAR (HRAKE) > T8,/ FEAE KEBaE
200151158208
Nanchong Zefu Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB21,500,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
BRERHEBRAR" 5 November 2014 AR#21,500,0007 store
I,/ REARE KEBERE
2014511850
Nanchong Zhimei Trade Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB3,800,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
HRASEHEERAT 17 November 2014 AR 13,800,000 store
hE,/ REARE KErEE
20145118170
Chengshang Group Holdings Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB1,378,417,349 - 82.8  Investment holding
(‘Chengshang Group’) 9 March 1998 AE#1,378,417,3497 REZR
MEERERERAD (LR hE,/REIARE
19984:359H
Leshan E’'mei Shan Chengshang PRC/Mainland China RMB33,730,000 - 6624  Operation of a hotel and
Phoenix Co., Ltd. 11 March 1997 AE#33,730,0007T provision of ancillary
2| mEELERRERBERENERAT hE/hEARE services
199738118 RERE kR MHEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARKREREN @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AfREX MR RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Chengdu People’s Department Store (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Mianyang Co., Ltd. 13 September 2007 A %5,000,0007T store
RHARES EE) BHERAT" e,/ REARE SN
200749F 134
Chengdu Group Mianyang Department Store PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Co., Ltd. 3 February 2015 AE#5,000,0007T store
REERRRXEREERAT" e,/ REARE KEpaE
2015%2A3H
Chengshang Group Chengdu People’s PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding and
Department Store Co., Ltd. 21 August 2009 AR #20,000,0007% operation of department
RAERANSARBABRAT RE/ RE AR stores
2009F8A21H REZRREEHERE
Chengdu Maoye Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
BEREHERRAT” 15 July 2008 A E:%8,000,0007C BHELR
e,/ REARE
2008&7H 150
Heze Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 74,52 Operation of a department
MERXBERBERRT 29 December 2008 A E5,000,0007C store
e,/ B AR KEpaE
20085125290
Jiangsu Maoye Department Stores PRC/Mainland China RMB325,000,000 - 100  Property development
IBRREERBERRF” 9 May 2012 AR 325,000,007 BHEER
e,/ RE AR
2012685398
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baotou Maoye Dongzheng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 October 2011 AE#10,000,0007T BHMELE
(‘Baotou Maoye Dongzheng’) R/ e AR
AETREREEMEREFRAT 20114105268
(MBERERE)
Laiwu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Operation of a department
REREEXBERRAT” 25 December 2012 AR %20,000,0007 store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
2012 12H25H
Shenzhen Maoye Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB545,465,800 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Shenzhen Maoye Investment’) 24 August 2012 AR #545,465,8007T REZR
FNREREERBRAT RIRERE) > 18/ FEARE
201248A248
Shenyang Anli Real Estate Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB133,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
("Shenyang Anli’) 4 August 2005 AR #133,000,00075 property management
BlRRUEXLEEREAAR (MBRRL) ™ +E/REARE REERRNEERE
2005848
Shenyang Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 99  Hotel business
BEXEREERAR 30 August 2007 AR #10,000,0007T BIEER
hE,/ REARE
200748H30A
Liaoning Logistics Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB78,000,000 - 99.94  Investment holding and
("Liaoning Logistics”) 12 May 2003 AE78,000,0007T property development
EEMRERAR (REWR) I,/ REIARE RERREEHAELR
2003455 12A
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MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREREN @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Shenyang Zhanye Property Co., Ltd. (‘Zhanye”)  PRC/Mainland China RMB245,000,000 - 5094 Property development
BEREEHNAERAS (BE) 2 September 1999 A 245,000,007 BHELR
e,/ REARE
199997 2H
Shandong Weizhou Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 - 100  Property development
UREMNEZRRAT" 11 August 2009 B 50,000,00070 BHELR
B/ RE AR
200988118
Qinhuangdao Maoye Real Estate Development PRC/Mainland China RMB515,000,000 - 100 Property development
Co,, Ltd. 4 January 2012 AR 515,000,007 BHEER
REBKERMEREERAG" e,/ RE AR
20121848
Qinghuangdao Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB8,000,000 - 82.8  Property development
ZEERXEXRHEREBERAT" 19 May 2016 A #8,000,0007 and operation of a
R,/ REIARE department store
2016558198 BHEZRREEREE
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB135,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 8 August 2000 AR 135,000,000 BHEEE
REBMEREMAEREERAT B,/ PR
20008H8H
Zibo Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100  Property development
HEREEEBRAT 29 November 2013 AR 20,000,000 EMEXE
e,/ RE AR
2013E118290
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Qinhuangdao Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd.  PRC/Mainland China RMB342,301,588 - 100  Operation of a department
ZE2ERXBERRAT" 26 June 2001 AR 1342,301,5887C store
hE,/REARE KEBEE
2001467268
Qinhuangdao Maoye Property PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100 Property leasing
Management Co., Ltd. 26 June 2001 AE#5,000,0007 MERE
REBRENERFBRRA B/ REA R
2001465260
Qinhuangdao Jinyuan Business PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. 14 April 2001 AR #140,000,0007T MEEE
RERMERHEEREREA AT e,/ REARE
200148148
Anhui Guorun Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB294,330,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Development Co., Ltd. (‘Anhui Guorun’) 4 Qctober 1998 A %294,330,0007¢ property development
ZHEERELRERAD (RHEE) hE,/REARE RELRKEHELR
1998510544
Chuzhou Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 25 April 2003 AR 70,000,000 BHELE
BNREREERBRAT e,/ REA R
200345250
Wuhu Maoye Property Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB110,000,000 - 100  Property development
ROREBELERRA" 16 May 2002 AER#110,000,0007 BHEER
e,/ REARE
2002458168
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

1. REIREREN @

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
GIET AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %

Huainan Maoye Investment and PRC/Mainland China RMB31,600,000 - 100  Property development
Development Co., Ltd. 26 March 2002 AE%31,600,00070 BHELR

ERXERBERARAR" e,/ REARE

2002436268

Chengdu Maoye Renhe Spring Department PRC/Mainland China RMB40,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Store Co., Ltd. (‘Chengdu Renhe Spring”) 29 October 1997 AE40,000,0007T store

BB RECNEREEERAT e,/ B AR KEpaE

(TR #-RER) 1997410829H

Chengdu Maoye Qingyang District Renhe PRC/Mainland China RMB185,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Spring Department Store Limited 29 November 2007 AR 185,000,0007¢ store
(‘Chengdu Qingyang Renhe Spring’) HE/ B AR RE[ER

RAmEIRRECHEREEERAR 2007411 829R

(RBEECHNER)

Inner Mongolia Victory Commercial (Group) PRC/Mainland China RMB170,000,000 - 70.38  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited 12 June 2002 AE170,000,0007¢ and operation of a
(‘Victory Commercial’) HE/ B AR department store

NELELHIEE (B BRAR 2002465128 RERREKERERE

(Mg shmE)~

Inner Mongolia Victory Xincheng Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 7038 Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 15 January 2008 AR 140,000,0007T store

AEOELTFNEEERRRART" I,/ REIARE KEBER

2008515158

Inner Mongolia Jinweili Commercial PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70,38 Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 24 March 2015 AR %10,000,0007T store

AR LEENBEERERAT" e,/ REARE SEL

201535248
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AEKRERER @

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

ERMBARNER (@

AATEEMBATNFENT © (@

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
MM AR EETRBRE FAREMGEES
G AfREX MR RiAEE/ FRES BAL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B RBE
% %
Baotou Maoye Victory Business PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Operation of a department
Management Co., Limited 14 November 2019 AR 10,000,0007T store
AETREESHBEERFRAF" hE,/REARE KEBEE
20195115 14H
Baotou Victory Mall Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
BETELTIBERRAD" 14 April 2009 AE 10,000,000 store
e/ REA R KEBEE
2009F48148
Baotou Victory Commercial Management PRC/Mainland China RMB3,000,000 - 70.38  Operation of a department
Co., Limited 28 October 2013 AE3,000,0007T store
OEMELHHEEERRAT I,/ REARE KEBERE
2013108280
Hohhot Victory Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 70,38 Property development
Development Co., Limited 29 November 2001 AR #30,000,0007T BHMELE
WAER RSB EREBRAT e/ EAE
2001115294
Hohhot Victory Property Management LLC PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 - 70.38  Property leasing
WRERHESHNEREEREEAT" 25 January 2008 A %RMB500,0007T MEBE
"B/ REA
2008415250
Maoye Digital Intelligence Information Technology ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 98  Investment holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited 23 January 2017 AE10,000,0007T KEEKR
XEUBHSE SR (RI) BRAT B,/ RE AR
2017518238
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

1. REIREREN @

ERMBARNER (@
FRABEEZMBRABBFENT : (@

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Place and date Nominal value
of incorporation/ of issued and  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share/ equity attributable
Company name place of operations registered capital to the Company  Principal activities
AL MR ERTRBRE FATEMEES
AE%TE AERE £t R RINEE #REX Epas TEEH
Direct Indirect
B BE
% %
Baotou Maoye Property Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Property management
AEREEEERAT 20 September 2019 AR #10,000,0007T WEER
e,/ REARE
201959H 208
Maoye Technology Retails Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
RERKTEBRAT 16 December 2019 AR #10,000,0007T REER
e,/ B AR
20195128168
Chengdu Maoye Hotel Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 82.8  Hotel business
RBXEBEERAT 12 November 2019 AR #10,000,0007 BEER
I,/ REARE
2019118128
Chengdu Renhe Investment Co., Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB600,000,000 - 82.8  Investment holding
BB CHAREBRAT 22 August 2011 A 1600,000,0007 REER
e,/ REARE
2011E8H22H
Hefei Yerun Trade Co., Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
BREXBEHEERAT" 04 September 1998 AR #20,000,0007T REER
e,/ REARE
19989734 H
Wuhu Maoye Agricultural and Sideline PRC/Mainland China RMB22,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Products Market Co., Limited 10 June 2006 AE#22,000,0007T KEER
RHXERERDBERAT I,/ REIARE
200665 108
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(continued)

* A subsidiary with its A shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the
PRC

** Companies registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
comprise standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International Accounting
Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), and equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB5,254,229,000. The Group’s ability to repay its
debts when they fall due relies heavily on its future operating cash
flows and its ability to renew the bank loans and other borrowings.
The directors have carefully assessed the Group’s liquidity position
having taken into account:

(1) the Group’s expected cash inflows from operating activities in
2022;

(2) the bank borrowings that will expire during the next 12 months,
which the directors of the Company are confident that could be
renewed upon expiration based on the Group’s past experience
and credit standing; and

(8) having taken into account that RMB1,809,627,000 and
RMB694,472,000 of current liabilities as at 31 December 2021
are contract liabilities and deposits received in nature of which
the Group will not be expecting any cash outflow.

The directors of the Company believe that the Group has adequate
resources to continue operation for the foreseeable future of not less
than 12 months from the end of the reporting year. The directors of
the Company therefore are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

1RNERE

IEEMBHRRERBEERMBRSER
(TEIFRMFBMEER)) (BERERS
SHEREES ((ERGEREEE))
HOERIZER R 52 78 B FR & 5t #0118
EEHENBERS AR REHRES
EERRBUREBRATARANKER
) REEMAERE BREVMER
MAnBESEBHZSHH AHm ()
ARBEFEEEEH A AREG) O
MEE - EEAULABEFEEHEE
st AR ME2ENE (UAREENE
BHEHHAHMEE N HRER
BARAARBESE - RS AZHEE
S ILEHMBHREAUARE TARE)
2V ARV EEREAT T

R2021F12831 0 ZEEMNREEE
FBRE A NR5,254,229,0007T ° A~ &
EEEINHEFNENEAEE LHE
HARKERSREURHEEIRTE
AREMERNEN KEBUTRHEE
EEERETFHAEENRBES K
W

(1) REBER2022F &K TEFELNTE
HIRERA S

@ RMARFK12EAZABRITER R
BAEENBEERREE AR
Bl EFHARIRITERAEN 2 A K
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F12831HIEEE
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 R B EEE (@)
Basis of consolidation SHEE

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises () the
fair value of the consideration received, (iij the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted t the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early

adopted)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest
rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate
(“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting
the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the
normal requirements of IFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge
ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on
the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) as at 31
December 2021. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue
to exist and the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an
impact on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. If the interest
rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future
period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned practical
expedient upon the modification of these instruments provided
that the “economically equivalent” criterion is met. Additional
information about the transition and the associated risks is
disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(continued)

(b) Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the

22 Bt HERNETH RIKE @)

e R RS RN E R
BRTX: (@)

(b) FA2021FE3 8 EHAEMRE 7R & %

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient
are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendment recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021 and applied the practical expedient during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all rent concessions granted by
the lessors that affected only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising from the
rent concessions of RMB10,342,000 has been accounted for
as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to the corresponding right-of-use assets
for the year ended 31 December 2021. There was no impact on
the opening balance of equity as at 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® *

Amendment to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current?

Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?®

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract!

Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1,

IFRS Standards 2018-2020 IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16,
and IAS 411

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to
apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January
2023

FNEE R CE—
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INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37
or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition
of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only
to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion of
a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BB 18 s 5k 4= 3RV B PR B4 75 ¥R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current
or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with
specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall
be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in
the amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an
effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group'’s
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The
amendments also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

128  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 2B R 2 B2 /5 IR A 5

HEER @

BlFR st 2R F15E (B5]4) BEDEA
MBI IERB) B ER D EBEARII{IE
MENNIRTE - ZE BT A HEREHE
BEEEENEMNZRNZERETS
BEKE BWZERBTSER 2B
HE#ENSRSHAREREEGE &
Mo EARERTHEEENTESES
BRI SEMNEE  ZE B AINEE
WRABEEENBR ZEBITAE
2023F1B1H N 2 BN FEEIRBE
o WA B FE R o A EFIE B IR AN o TAER
ZEBIIAFTHAEBNWYFRRE
EEAEAZE-

HR & st E15E (B5T4) SR
MIZEERSERBEESTRRER
MIEERGEBR - WER B EMBER
EAHMEN —HFEZE > FTBERER
AINEERERSrEERMHRENE
EEREREZET B REFAIEL R
o B Gt BRERNBEKX - EERS
RE R ERRBAE25E (1B5]4) st
HEstBRPEEERE AR SIEMIE
BHIMEIES| c EE G st ERE 158 (18]
K) 2023 F1B1HN 2 BB EE
BRI AL > Bl TR BIRM o N B PR A 75
SRR EIRRBAHE25E (BT ) IR
f55| W IERHIM MR F BT BELE
MEH AEE BRI EFEZEBT AR
HAEFAGHBRNEENFE.

BIFR & 5t 2RI SE85E (BFTA) EEBA
S EHE T RREFH 2 ENE
Ble BEtESIRERVHBRERAZE
THEEMEMRRNEE SR - RFIER]
AR ERS ERMAREA
R A s o R FEST A 102023
FIR1HAZBRGBHNEEMBEN
IR Z HA B A R 8 3 £ BV & 5HEL
REFKRGSHETEE BRI TRER
Mo FE] AR THAEROVEY
BRREMERTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning obligations.
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Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to FEo
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the EORR g st RS 165% (BT A) 2 IEERE

cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 BB 18 s 5k 4= 3RV B PR B4 75 ¥R

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected
to be applicable to the Group are as follows:

e |FRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of
the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

e |FRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
or generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The Group’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group. Liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and
any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-
measured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previously held
equity interests, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower
than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment loss. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset takes place either
in the principal market for the asset, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract
assets, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as
held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family

or

and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the Group (or of
a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)() has significant influence over the

entity or is @ member of the key management personnel of

the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost (or valuation) less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the statement
of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained profits
is made for the difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation based
on the asset's original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

WME BB R R BURITE (@

WEDREYE -BERREEE G
SO ERERAMUERFRIHENAE
RrEEESH MU EANER
FITERUT

Annual depreciation rate

FiEXR

Land and buildings T IETF
Machinery and equipment 33 Rt
Motor vehicles RE
Furniture, fittings and other equipment
Leasehold improvements HEMFEEE
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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9% to 19%
11.25% to 19%
7.5% to 19%
10% to 33.33%

HEME- BB RREEEANEMHE
ERFHARE BZBENMRAZGE
BEENEEX M > M MWAHARFEILE
BirE - FrBE DIERFHATES
ERVEREMRFEEEAER I
REERFHEE-

ME-BEARREBERE (BETZENS
ERENEARRM) RHENFAEHRAR
ERASEE T ELEE LB R AR
IEHER - ERILEREERBERGIE
m R MEEIPY B IR EEE AR W m Sl
B lEREREEHEMSNARFRA
SREEZENETR-

FERIT2EERPYIE > 0385 AH
ERBEBRIIRATETE - HEE
EEERRERMEENERRENAS T
R R HERE  RHEERETEE
BEME -BERRFERETHNEEDE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For
a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

REME

REMERER T HIEERAKR &
BEAAE MAERTRREESR IR
HEBREEEEMFTAEN XA THE
—REBBIETREMIT AL L RIE
T (AENEREVEEERFFERE
BEENREYF) Bm -ZFVFEREREK
MIpstE > BERF A - A iakEsl%
REVERRBBESHRT RO RAAE
By

18 3 00 2 5018 8 2 B0 P 7 O Ui
RSB Bt A LA A A ORI R ©

BEIHEREYEN T AR ZNEIR
REBERHEFERBmRPRRESR-

HREMEBRETERYENFER
ZYEHBETRIENTOIRAR AR
HEEANARBE HAEEFTAEN
BERMERSREYE  AEENER
RER B ME - BERREUKRTE)
PR R BB EARIEBEBYE
R/ SRR LA E ) il RS A RS
MENRINEFREREREEEZY
Zo-MzYMERELNREEREQAE
EEAZELRRE Lt Y% BB R
R LA EE ) PR BRI R E 4 © F
FEBREREYER > ZYWENEH
AYBREIE R STRIBI A N B ERE R EEE
P8 R PHESD o

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZE KRB RA T

139



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost, which include all
development expenditures, including land costs, interest charges and
other costs directly attributable to such properties.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.

Properties under development are valued at the lower of cost and
net realisable value at the end of the reporting period and any
excess of cost over the net realisable value of an individual item of
properties under development is accounted for as a provision. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business as determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected to be
incurred to completion and selling and marketing costs.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component and non-lease component(s), the Group adopts the
practical expedient not to separate non-lease component(s) and
to account for the lease component and the associated non-lease
component(s) (e.g., property management services for leases of
properties) as a single lease component.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date of the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities is
recognised, initial direct costs, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the asset as follows:

Land use right
Buildings

20 to 70 years
2 to 23 years

If ownership of leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the
asset.
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Lease that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows are selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(debt instruments)

For debts investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had
not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

RERAMEREE @

BAEE ()
UrnBEstEEEESH AR MEEK
HEHNERMEE EF LR

M ARBESAEMZERDAES
REMS M EWAINEEERBIE
BENEO PR TP i Rg
B At ENEREEMER DU

S o A% IE FESB By » PO E Mt 2 U ek TP R
SRR AFERE R EMTABme

ISEBUA R EE B S EEEH Al
>EWHNSRMEE BEED)

RY) SR A EE IR ER RS
ER ARG EREMT A -
SHEETHRE TR FR S
B W E R R E R D IS E
AUAABESEEESBHA LM
A 0 8 o 5 8 MR T A
HAERE

ZETMEENRERBEHTTRE
Mt ABmR - BRI (IR KRB
BmRPREESEMEA > BREKRERN
BN ERASEEEREERE
WAl Sect 8 HEAEBERER WD E
RRE E — 20 A BI PR IS RUIE T o iy
ARSI RIEFRR T » ZFWm i E A
EHBTEAR-FEERUAABESE
BHEH S ARMEERZNRERRE
ARBEFEEE

MR BEstBEHEFH ABTNER
BE

URrnBESEEHEH S ABRNE
MEERRAALBERMBRTERA
RoMmAanBEEs)FERNEmRE

|
At ©

IHE 48 7 60 15 2= 5= [ 0F 5 7 B) o) 3t 232 22
DEB/BRARBESARMEER R
RAEKE - DRRBARBESTAED
NEMEENRERERETINERGX
R IR R PR A H AU A > 2
R BB ERN R EETRALE
B AEP] SEMETBRE SR -

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZE KRB RA T

145



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continueq)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument
with the same terms and the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirely as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(‘ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing loans and
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a
liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at
the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in accordance with
the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative
amount of income recognised.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial
position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible bonds,
the fair value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders' equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not re-measured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
merchandise is determined on the moving weighted average method
basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and buildings costs attributable to unsold properties.
Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based on the
prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised based on the fair value of bonus
points or coupons granted to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus point scheme and the Group’s past experience
on the level of redemption of coupons and are recorded in other
payables. The revenue of the Group is deducted when the coupon
liabilities are recognised.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current periods are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(@) Direct sales of merchandise and sales of properties

Revenue from the direct sales of merchandise and sales of
properties is recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

(b) Commissions from concessionaire sales

Commissions from concessionaire sales are recognised upon
the sale of merchandise by the relevant concessionaires, which
is taken to be the point in time when the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer.

(c) Management fee income from the operation of department
stores is recognised when management services are rendered.

(d) Administration and management fee income, promotion income
and credit card handling fees from suppliers and concessionaires
are recognised when services are rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Retirement benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are covered by government-regulated defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes under which the employees
are entitled to a monthly pension. The Group contributes to these
retirement benefit schemes on a monthly basis at a percentage of the
employees’ salaries. Under these schemes, the Group has no legal
obligation for retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these schemes are expensed as incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits
Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit
actuarial valuation method.

Re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension plan,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “employee
expenses”, “other operating expenses” and “finance costs” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by function:

e service costs comprising current service costs and past service
costs

e gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements

e netinterest expense or income
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for the
purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation rate of 5.45%
has been applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company and other investment holding subsidiaries
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands, the British Virgin Islands and
Hong Kong use the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”) as their functional
currency. The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries is RMB. As
the Group mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T EGHBERME @

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland China are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries outside Mainland
China which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

e Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in the department
store operations. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes
or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2021 was
RMB1,322,252,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1,361,122,000).
Further details are given in note 20.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and
other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates
are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer's actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group's trade receivables and other receivables
is disclosed in note 28 and note 29 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
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Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries
that do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs
to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2021 was RMB21,394,912,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB19,441,153,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 18 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
RMB185,345,000 (31 December 2020: RMB1083,049,000). The
amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021 was
RMB2,791,151,000 (31 December 2020: RMB3,249,367,000).
Further details are contained in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Net realisable value of inventories and completed properties held
for sale

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated selling expenses.
Net realisable value of completed properties held for sale is
estimated by the directors based on the prevailing market prices.
These estimates are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of selling merchandise of a similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses
these estimates at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Indefinite life
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other
times when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. Further details, including a sensitivity
analysis of key assumptions, are given in note 43 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on
a market-based valuation technique as detailed in note 42 to
the financial statements. The valuation requires the Group to
determine the comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group
classifies the fair value of these investments as Level 3. The fair
value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2021
was RMB603,182,000 (2020: RMB651,745,000). Further details
are included in note 24 to the financial statements.

Recognition of deferred tax liabilities for withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprise established in Mainland China. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax liabilities that can be recognised, based upon the
likely dividends declared. Further details are contained in note 25
to the financial statements.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on the nature of their operations and their products and
services and has three reportable operating segments as follows:

@)

(©

the operation of department stores segment comprises
concessionaire sales, direct sales of merchandise and the
leasing out of commercial properties for the operation of
department stores by third parties;

the property development segment is principally engaged in the
development and sale of commercial and residential properties
as well as the leasing out of commercial properties other than for
the operation of department stores; and

the “others” segment comprises, principally, operations of hotels,
and the provision of ancillary services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/loss attributable to
owners of the parent.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RBEREEE @

Intersegment revenue and transfers are transacted with reference DEEWAREEE2REERFED
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then BHELRE - FERANEBETHN-

prevailing market prices.

Operation of
department Property
stores  development Others Total

REERRE NELR Hfth it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  AR®TRT  ARBTRT  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE021F12AMALEE
Segment revenue: DERA :
Sales to external customers HETINIER 3,998,009 1,026,810 209,796 5,234,615
Other income Hetg A 1,121,071 38,232 6,078 1,165,381
Cost of sales HERAK (1,650,284) (476,266) (43,645) (2,170,195)
Employee expenses EERY (359,793) (41,202) (71,365) (472,360)
Depreciation and amortisation TERSHE (894,569) (156,161) (52,628)  (1,103,358)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of RPEERGEEEENERY

low-value assets (4,190) (2,523) (1,252) (7,965)
Other operating expenses AtiEp s (960,368) (110,646) (82,104)  (1,153,118)
Other gains and losses Bz hEE (138,254) 259,507 568 121,821
Operating profit/(loss) mERE/ (B8 1,111,622 537,751 (34,552) 1,614,821
Finance costs RN (733,091) (413,378) - (1,146,469)
Share of profits and losses of associates and EhHE AR ELEER

a joint venture (25,484) (1,182) - (26,666)
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAIRIE/ (B8 353,047 123,191 (34,552) 441,686
Income tax expense FiksE (30,423) (300,573) (98) (331,094)
Profit/{loss) for the year KEFE/ (BB 322,624 (177,382) (34,650) 110,592
Attributable to: BUF AL

Owners of the parent BRAERFEA 234,024 (134,052) (34,287) 65,685

Non-controlling interests FERREER 88,600 (43,330) (363) 44,907

322,624 (177,382) (34,650) 110,592
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REDEER @

Operation of
department Property
stores  development Others Total

KEBRE NELR Hfth 4zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTT  ARETR

Other segment information: HttaHER
Impairment losses reversed in the statement EaktELNNRESETE
of profit or loss, net (26,376) - (5) (26,381)

Impairment of properties under development BEPNEAE - 2,872 = 2,872

Impairment of investment in an associate R—EHENTNRERE 102,932 = = 102,932

Loss on disposal of shares in an associate HER-HBHEAARNNEER 46,272 = - 46,272

Goodwill impairment BERE 38,870 - - 38,870

Investments in associates REEATRE 447,013 - - 447,013

Investment in a joint venture REELERE - 592 - 592

Capital expenditure® BRHZ 123,823 799,008 1,970 924,801

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, * EAHZOEABYE BERRE BEY
investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets (2 BEPYE HMNWEREERFAEFED
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of ERYE EPaERE—BRBRARNE
a subsidiary. o
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AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REFHBER @
Operation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
TEEEE MEER Ht BRRIEH 1zt
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F12A3BLEE
Segment revenue: AEKA
Sales to external customers HETIMIZR 3,634,456 3,137,800 139,495 - 6911751
Intersegment revenue AHEBA - 4,338 - (4,338) -
Other income =GN 1,067,437 19,770 17,427 - 1,104,634
Cost of sales HERK (1,448,034 (1,767,534) (15,605) - (3,231,179)
Employee expenses EER% (325,267) (37,769) (52,179) - (415215)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (895,278)  (148,237) (39,840) - (1,083,355)
Payments for short-term leases and leases of RERERREEEERERS
low-value assets (8,184) (1,460) (1,289) - (10,933)
Other operating expenses HtiS s (96,485)  (123,061) (59,745) 4338 (1,144,959)
Other gains and losses HEfta keS8 (419,184)  (404,136) (2,617) - (825,937)
Operating profit/{oss) mErE/ (R 639,461 679,711 (14,359) - 1,304,819
Finance costs MERA (787,481)  (444,047) - - (1,23152)
Share of profits and losses of associates and EEBE DAL EER
a joint venture (8,259) (1,182) - - (9,435)
Profit/{loss) before tax BiRERE/ (B8 (156,273) 234,482 (14,353) - 63,856
Income tax expense RS (36,042  (276,814) 4 - (312852
Loss for the year rEEE (192,315) (42,332) (14,349) - (24899%)
Attrioutable to: DFATRERS:
Owners of the parent BRARREREA (209,592) 49,048 (14,092) - (174,63)
Non-controling interests FERREER 17,277 (91,380) (257) - (74,360)
(192315) (42332  (14,349) - (248,996)
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

EDERE R @

QOperation of Adjustments
department Property and
stores  development Others  eliminations Total
TEEEE  DEER 2t BERIEH st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTR ARBTR ARETRT AREFR
Other segment information: HtpHER
Impairment losses recognised/reversed) in BRETED/ (R WAESEFE
the statement of profit or loss, net (677) 167 19 - (429)
Impairment of properties under development BEDMERE - 64,323 - = 64,323
Impairment of investment in an associate R-BREANRERE 168,302 - - - 168,302
Gain on disposal of shares in an associate HE-BEERERMNKE (3,664) - - - (3,664)
Goodwill impairment HERE 62,607 - - - 62,607
Investments in associates N =UNGIE 1,060,334 - - - 1,069,334
Investment in a joint venture REErELE - 1,091 - - 1,091
Capital expenditure* BRREY 176,311 2,788,773 23 - 2,965,107

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment,

investment properties, properties under development, other intangible assets
and completed properties held for sale including assets from the acquisition of

a subsidiary.

The Group’s entire revenue is attributable to the market in Mainland
China. No analysis of geographical information is therefore

presented.

The Group has a large number of customers. However, no sales
to a single customer amounted to 5% or more of the Group’s total

revenue.
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
5. REVENUE 5.
2021 2020
20215 2020%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARMFT
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHWA
Commissions from concessionaire sales B EEHEEREE 1,051,808 1,082,021
Direct sales B 1,768,471 1,575,751
Sale of properties MEHE 911,793 3,026,404
Management fee income from the KEFaENEEEIRA
operation of department stores - 313
Revenue from other sources REHEMEBRWA
Rental income from investment properties ~ B &Y RSN A 740,769 603,151
Rental income from the leasing of HiEmsSAEWA
shop premises 551,978 485,017
Others HAth 209,796 139,094
5,234,615 6,911,751
Revenue from contracts with customers EREHWA
() Disaggregated revenue information () FIFUAER
The Group’s entire revenue of goods and services transferred is AEEMEEERNEY RIRFUL
recognised at a point in time. No analysis of timing information is ARE—RHBRES HittE2
therefore presented. FMEMIRFREE R DT o
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in TRETHTARSHUENEER
the current reporting period that was included in the contract MR BEARERNBEOSEAE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised BRAREAANEERN G SRR

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®FT

Revenue recognised that was included st ARSHII SN EERN

in contract liabilities at the beginning BRI -
of the reporting period:
Sale of completed properties HEBB T Y= 378,928 1,448,842

378,928 1,448,842
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

5. TA @
ERAHBA @

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Direct sales of merchandise and commissions from
concessionaire sales

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

Sale of properties

For contracts entered into with customers on the sale of
properties, the Group does not have an enforceable right to
payment prior to transfer of the relevant properties to customers.
Revenue from the sale of properties is therefore recognised at
the point in time when the completed property is transferred
to customers, being at the point that the customer obtains the
control of the completed property and the Group has the present
right to payment and collection of the consideration is probable.

(i)

BAEIE
EMAEBEBENSENER RN
T

B mE R TEEHE RS

EEEERIRERERRR BN
BEEERE—EREREMN-
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MHEMERZRITIUNSAM
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£ B 30 4 WA AT SRR BY R 3R Y R AT
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfthlgA

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AB¥T T ARMEFTT

Income from suppliers and concessionaires 3 B {1 FE G R4S ZFEMBRIUL A

— Administration and —TEEHEEEE WA
management fee income 721,684 705,336
— Promotion income — {2 EH U A 250,801 216,625
— Credit card handling fees —EREFESE 126,206 128,088
Interest income FEUWA 22,380 17,388
Others Hih 44,310 37,197
1,165,381 1,104,634

7. COST OF SALES 7. SHEMRZE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TF T
Purchases of and changes in inventories EEEYKREFEES 1,650,284 1,448,034
Cost of properties sold BEEMERK 476,266 1,767,534
Others Hith 43,645 15,605

2,170,195 3,231,173
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES

8. EERX

2020
20204

RMB’000

AREFT

Wages and salaries TEKF® 418,601 387,471
Retirement benefits RREF] 49,201 25,456
Other employee benefits Hit2BEH 4,558 2,288
472,360 415,215

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

FEREERFETHRAENHINEE L
MmRA N BAE R EMELIZE383(1)(@) ~ (b)
C)RMEURRE FEEEFTER)

B F2BMIMEELNT -

as follows:

2020
20204
RMB’000
AEREEFIT
Fees W 647 693

Other emoluments: Hhii < -
Salaries and allowances e RoRRL 1,200 1,108
Retirement benefits BIKEF 39 3
1,239 1,111
1,886 1,804
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued) 8. EERZ @
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BWILIEMITES :
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRENBIFERTEENREU
year were as follows: e

Total

Fees remuneration

wE i BN 4B 51

RMB’000 RMB’000

ABBFT  ARBTR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12A31HILEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR L 199 199
Mr. Rao Yong Bk A 299 299
Mr. Gao Yajun S EfLE 149 149
647 647
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12831HIEEE
Mr. Pao Ping Wing TIRER e 213 213
Mr. Rao Yong BEK ST 213 213
Mr. Chow Chan Lum IR AL 107 107
Mr. Gao Yajun [SECE e 107 107
Mr. Leung Hon Chuen REREE 53 53
693 693
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent PREZE2021F12831HIEEE i
non-executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 EXNEMMESFTEBILIERTES
(2020: Nil). (2020£F : ) ©
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

8. EMPLOYEE EXPENSES (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and

8. EER ®
b) MITES —RIFRTEERERE

the chief executive

HITE

Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
e B RL BIAEF i 4 =t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AR®EFT AR®Fx
Year ended 31 December 2021 8 E2021F12H31H
IEFE
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Zhong Pengyi izl S 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan EUN Cron 720 39 759
Non-executive director: EHITESE .
Mr. Wang Bin ks 240 - 240
Chief executive: BEREHTE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru =AM E 120 - 120
1,200 39 1,239
Salaries and Retirement Total
allowances benefits remuneration
e RoRah RIREF] ARt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 B E2020F12831H
IFEE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Zhong Pengyi BER L 120 - 120
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan E/NELt 632 3 635
Non-executive director: JEMITES !
Mr. Wang Bin S 236 - 236
Chief executive: BHEHTE
Mr. Huang Mao Ru mRMEE 120 - 120
1,108 3 1,111

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the year ended 31

December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IHhmEHES
The five highest paid employees during the year included one FRAIAReHEEBRE —RES
director (2020: one director), details of whose remuneration are set (20204 | —%EE) » HFMER £
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the MizE8 o E PN E MU (20204 © IO4) &
remaining four (2020: four) highest paid employees who are neither BHEE WIFARBDEETHFETH
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the year are as AB) BETBEEBLT ¢
follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥TT ARMEFTT

Salaries and allowances e foER 2,114 1,403
Retirement benefits RIRIER] 117 10

2,231 1,413
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose FNBEUTeENIEFEEREHEEA
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows: BT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,00078 7T 4 4
4 4
10. PAYMENTS FOR SHORT-TERM LEASES AND 10. JEHRFHE REEEEEHEHRX

LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

Payments for short-term leases and CHAERBREEEETHERS
leases of low-value assets 7,965 10,933
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1. HtE S

2020
2020%
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AREFT
Utility expenses UNZEE3iilE 379,667 338,294
Promotion and advertising expenses BT E&KESEX 71,106 84,160
Repair and maintenance expenses  4fzERI 92,560 83,135
Entertainment expenses AFFY 4,898 3,121
Office expenses WA 55,259 34,934
Other tax expenses HMRIERX 345,526 325,671
Professional service fees HERBE 92,631 104,025
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN = 4,900 4,900
Bank charges RITFEE 55,732 54,903
Reversal of impairment of W B 5 B R E D]
trade receivables 28 (4,232) (533)
Reversal of impairment of [ Uit FE) 2 75 R TE R (B #E ]
amounts due from related parties 29 (316) (5,197)
(Reversal of impairment)/ Hihpewas CRE#RR)
impairment of other receivables A 29 (21,833) 5,301
Impairment of properties BRPYIZERE
under development 27 2,872 64,323
Others Hh 74,348 47,916
1,153,118 1,144,953
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

12. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12, Hithi e R &548

2021 2020
20215 2020%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®FT ARMFT
Loss on disposal of HEREYMEIBEENEE
investment property - (2,993)
Gains/(losses) on disposal of HEME -BEMKZEBEEEN
property, plant and equipment W= (518) 89,869 (95,992)
Gain on partial disposal of shares HEBZE QB2 RMHH
in an associate g - 3,664
Loss on disposal of shares in HEBEABRN
an associate ) (46,272) -
Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net SNBSS, (B548) 73258 1,055 (47,973)
Loss on repurchase of USD LT B A RBENEER
senior notes - (4,546)
Fair value (losses)/gains on equity MUAnEEsTEBHEZS A
investments at fair value through BERNEREEANEE
profit or loss (#518) /W (17,567) 1,673
Gains on disposal of financial assets HEMU AR BESEEHEH)
at fair value through profit or loss FFABTZHNEMEERR 6,153 6,726
Fair value gains/(losses) on LEYENAREE
investment properties (B518) /W 18 302,390 (407,759)
Dividend incomes from KEURAABEF=Z=EEHES
financial assets at fair value FFABEHNEREEN
through profit or loss EISUON 1,563 1,488
Dividend incomes from equity REEEAURREESZER
investments designated HEgst ARMME2mEmWma
at fair value through other R ENREWA
comprehensive income 6,517 15,016
Impairment of goodwill EERE 20 (38,870) (62,607)
Impairment of investment R—EBE R B NIRERE
in an associate (102,932) (168,302)
Penalty accrued FEst S 32(b) (63,144) (55,736)
Others HAth (16,941) (8,596)
121,821 (825,937)
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Year ended 31 December 2021

EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. R E B 2
2020
20204
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Interest on bank loans and IRITERF B R EMERR
other borrowings 1,047,298 1,151,212
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 159,471 176,923
Total interest expense on financial liabilites  JE¥ZA ABEFT ABZH
not at fair value through profit or loss TRIEER SR 4858 1,206,769 1,328,135
Less: Interest capitalised A BEREFE (60,300) (96,607)
1,146,469 1,231,528
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. RS

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the
Group are domiciled and operate.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempt from the payment of
the Cayman Islands income tax.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any tax in the British Virgin Islands.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at 16.5% of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: 16.5%).

AEBAMHEMNB AT MEREZERTE
AT EL BRI E RERE
ZENFTISH -

RABMRBEHEEEAEEANHENRS
MR A ERRBREET AR AL
KATVER R NRSEEFER

RERBEBRESINEARER A&
BB RSN ERNRBERREERE

EBNEMNBEBLREE2021F128
S1HLEEEERRAEMN16.5%
(20204F : 16.5%) st & o
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 14. FRISRER @

Under the relevant income tax law, the PRC subsidiaries are subject
to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a statutory rate of 25% (2020:
25%) of their respective taxable income, except for certain group
entities which are entitled to various concessionary tax rates or tax
exemptions and reliefs.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (‘LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures. LAT of RMB227,388,000 was charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB117,504,000).

RIBEBEFRERE PEAMKE AT E
T E AR FE SR IR UR A 3%425% (20204 ©
25%) BAEREBMEEMRER (T
EFRER) HETEZAESHEEERX
IR RE I EB B IEFRIN o

B IgER (T Mg ER ) %30%
FO0OR A EHNRERMER T M (EE LY
B8 (BN EHERERIEREE LT
HMERAE -BRRAEARMEYNEERE
B EARI BTN ER ) Jle AR
227,388,000tV T HIIEEREREE
2021F12A31HIEFEBHFEIBmRN
Mk (20202 : AR 1117,504,0007T) ©

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT AR®FT

Current - CIT BNEA— > ZEFTIE 260,220 334,695
Current — LAT BNHR— B (EFR 227,388 117,504
Deferred (note 25) IEIE (MfsE25) (156,514) (139,347)
Total tax charge for the year FRMFEHEZ4EEE 331,094 312,852
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit or
loss before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
income tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the statutory tax rates to the effective rates, are as follows:

14. FRIfS A @)

BANBDRAETENBEASFTENEA
R&ZEMRKFAEZRBRAH] H AR
BRAMSRAXARBERPISRRE
BZARRASHNER REAEREKHE
BRMEBERNT

2021 021 Cayman Islands BVI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
REHE AEEARHE &% HEAR it
RMB!000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000
ANRETT ARBTT ARETT ARBFR ARBTR
(Loss)profit before tax e (58 /5B (23,495) (16) (21,299) 486,492 441,688
Tax at the statutory tax rate BrEREHENRE - - - - (3513 165 121,628 25 118,110 21
Effect of withholding tax at 5% onthe  AEEHENBARH

distributable profits of the Group's AT RFIE 5%

PRC subsidlaries REBRNEELNTE - - - - 17,060 (80) - - 17,060 4
Lower tax rates for specfic districts 15 &t BAISERE - - - - 1384 6 (469 (1) (3307 (1)
Profits and losses attributable to @ ARR—EAELE

associates and a joint venture iopilbEN - - - - - - 6,667 1 6,667 2
Income not subject to tax EREHENNA - - - - - - 317 ) @317 (1)
Expenses not deductible for tax AEREH - - - - - - 76423 16 76423 17
Tax losses not recognised RERINHIESE - - - - - - 93291 19 93291 2
LAT THIEER - - - - - - 221,388 47 207,388 59
Tax effect of LAT THEERNRETE - - - - - - (56,847) (12)  (56,847) (13)
Others B - - - - - - (144516) (30) (144,516) (33)
Tax charge at the Group's effective  RAEEEBHEE

tax rate HIERY - - - - 1493 (70) 316,163 64 331,004 74
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

14.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

14. FRSM A @)

2020 2020E Gayman Islands BvI Hong Kong Mainland China Total
HEHE ZBETARHE &k HE AR st
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB000 % RMB000 % RMB000 %
AEBTT AEBTT ARBTT ANEBTT ANRBTT
(Loss)/proft before tax e (58) /5B (74718) (@7) 66,204 7417 63856
Tax at the statutory tax rate BrEREHENRE - - - - 10,024 165 18105 2% 29,029 45
Fffect of withholding tax at 5% on the  AEEHEHBAR
distrioutable profits of the Group's  PIZRA RS %Y
PRO subsiclaries RERRREELNE 2 - - - - 5503 39 - - 5503 40
Lower tax rates for specfic districts 15 Bt BAIEERE - - - - 30 6 3817 5 (486) 1)
Profits and losses attributable to ~ BEATR-HAELE
associates and a joint venture MR EREE - - - - - - 239 3 239 4
Income not subject to tax EREDRNNA - - - - - - B3N n 6320 ®)
Expenses not deductible fortax RIS - - - - - - 8714 120 87,141 136
Tax losses not recognised RERINHRIESE - - - - - - 191,042 %64 191,042 209
LAT THEER - - - - - - 117504 162 117,504 184
Tax effect of LAT THEERNREE - - - - - - (29376) (1) (29376) (46)
Others Hft - - - - 343 5 (107978 (149 (104544 (164)
Taxcharge at the Group's effective.  BAEBERRZEE
tax rate HERT - - - - 35598 55 217,004 382 312852 489

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
RMB4,296,000 (2020: RMB3,156,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. iR S

2020
20204
RMB’000
AREFT

Proposed final SREBEREIREKARE
— Nil —
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share (2020 : )

The board of directors did not propose a final dividend for year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

EFEEAEFRNEE2021F12831H
LEFEERREAIG B (20204 @ ) o

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 16. B AR Z@ERITE AELESR

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent of RMB65,685,000 (2020: loss of RMB174,636,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
5,140,326,000 (2020: 5,140,326,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

B (51

EREXRBAN(FB) HiE8AT
ZEHDREANEHERARAARE
65,685,0007T (20204 : BHE AR
174,636,00070) X ERBETZERD
NNHE T 9845,140,326,0008% ( 20204 :
5,140,326,0008%) st & o

AEBPEHE2021F K2020FE12831H
IEFEETEESETETHELER
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Year ended 31 December 2021

EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % -BEREE
Furniture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other  Leasehold Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment improvements  in progress Total
fFiRER  HENE
THEEF HERRE AE HftRf g HEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARBTR ARBETR ARETR ARETR ARBETR ARETR
31 December 2021 2021126310
At 31 December 2020 and R020E12831H K
at 1 January 2021: ANE1/IH:
Cost s 9,736,563 573,183 13,932 208,988 1,721,494 303879 12,648,039
Accumulated depreciation and impaiment  ERHERAE (2,831,739) (350,977) (1,736) (198,556) (865,512) (6,609) (4,255,129
Net carrying amount RESE 6,904,824 202,206 12,196 10,432 855,982 387,210 8,392,910

At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated R0 E1B1H

depreciation and impairment (BEHTERAR) 6,004,824 222,206 12,19 10,432 855,982 387270 82392910
Additions HE 151 3,163 4,256 4,724 92,352 137,488 242,134
Disposals HE (5,108) (1,529) (893) m) (916) = (9,217)
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTERE (435,959) (16,829) (416) (13,136) (114,362) - (580,702)
Reversal of impairment HEED - 5 - 2 - - 27
Transfer to investment properties note 18)  EEZHEME (f5E18) (536,482) - - - - - (536,482)
Transfer from construction in progress REBIREN - 4,621 - 336 48,159 (53,116) -
Transfer from properties under development  EEBRHEEA

note 27) (Hzk27) 719,548 - - - - - 719,548
Acquisiion of a subsidiary WE-HHBAR 10,445 - - - - - 10,445
Exchange realignment ERHE (947) - - (12) - - (959)

At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated 12021128318

depreciation and impaiment (BRHTERAE) 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,505 881,215 471642 8,207,704
At 31 December 2021: R021E128318 :

Cost I 9,852,991 568,641 16,508 202834 1,860,420 478250 12,979,644

Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHITENAE (3,136,519) (357,004) (1,365) (201,239) (979,205) (6,608 (4,681,940

Net canying amount REEE 6,716,472 211,637 15,143 1,505 881,215 AT1642 8,297,704
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. 9% - BERRZE @
Fumiture,
Machinery fittings and
Land and and Motor other Leasehold  Construction
buldings equipment vehicles equipment  improvements in progress Total
FAEER it
THEEF HEREE RE HfEE g fRIE st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETR  ARETr  ARETR  ARETR ARETr ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2020 2020E128310
At 31 December 2019 and R2019E12831 B R
at 1 January 2020: 00E1818
Cost o 9,564,223 586,062 15,504 200,588 1,580,115 346,366 12,292,948
Accumulated depreciaion and impaiment ~ BsHTERHE (2,603,921) (340,526) (3,966) (182,668) (774,567) (6,608 (3912,256)
Net carrying amount BEFE 6,960,302 245,536 11,628 17,920 805,548 339,768 8,380,692

At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated 12020518180

depreciation and impaiment (RHTERAE) 6,060,302 245,536 11628 17920 805,548 339758 8,380,692
Additions HE - 1,703 1,213 8,437 164,370 50,969 226,692
Disposals e (102:376) 1995) (30g) an) ) -
Depreciation provided during the year FRiTERE (411,139) (27,356) (337) (15,560) (113,895 - (568,267)
Transfer to properties held for sale BRERENEEL (6,588) - - - - - (6,589)
Transfer to investment properties (note 18)  EEEREYE (¥5H18) (19,151) - - - - - (19,151
Transfer from construction in progress firRIREA - 3318 - 139 - (3.457) -
Transfer from properties under development AR ERNEEA

(note 27) (Hzk27) 485,562 - - - - - 485,562
Acquistion of a subsidiary (note 37) WE—-BRBAT () - - - 3 - - 3
Fxchange realignment ERHE (1,786) - - (10) - - (1,79)

At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated  F2020F128318

depreciation and impaiment (NBEMERAE) 6,004,824 222,206 12,1% 10432 855,982 B7270 82392910
At 31 December 2020: 020 E128317 -

Cost [ 9,736,563 573,183 13,932 208,988 1,721,494 393,879 12,648,039

Acoumulated depreciation and impaiment  REHTERAE (2,831,739 (350977) (1,736) (198,556) (865,512) (6,609 (4255129

Net carrying amount REFE 6,904,824 222,206 12,196 10,432 855,982 387,270 8,392,910
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. 9% - BERZE @

Amortisation of land lease payments of approximately
RMB3,397,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMBS3,397,000) during the construction period was capitalised
as part of the construction cost of the department stores under
construction of the Group, and was included in the above additions.

The Group’s land and buildings are held under medium term leases
and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s land and
buildings pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings of the Group
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB168,779,000 as
at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB174,098,000) have
not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. The Group is in
the process of obtaining the relevant certificates.

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

R2021FE12831H  BEHE E &AL
BTE{T T B R iE A R 153,397,000
7t (20205 12831H : AR 13,397,000
7T Bt AREEEREEEENESEMR
o BEELRAEHR

AEBR T REFTHIRE PHANR
B WALF R EIRRE - A EE A ES H 5t
BIRITERMEE RN L RIBFFIE
IR FE33 0

AEBRBHNETEFNEES DR
FE A RS PIETS > RER I IEE
RIS F & HIRE B ER20215FE12
B31H#4 4 AR 1168,779,0007T (2020
F12831H : AR1§174,098,0007T) °

18. LB

2021 20214
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT T
BB BEME
(RAREE) (R ARERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 20211 B 1HMREE 14,466,881 4,974,272 19,441,153
Transfer from property, plant and WE--BERZREEBA
equipment (note 17) (FFEE17) 536,482 - 536,482
Recognition of change in fair value of BREEEREYEN
property, plant and equipment upon N Y=L
transfer to investment properties NABEEH 1,053,595 = 1,053,595
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments #7817 -3 fH &=/ I8E A
(note 19 (a)) (FF5E19(a)) 11,006 - 11,006
Transfer from completed properties RFEHENE RN
held for sale LEPN 50,286 - 50,286
Net gain from fair value adjustment NABEHERWRER 223,769 78,621 302,390
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 7320214128310
fREME 16,342,019 5,052,893 21,394,912

186  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 7% 2Bl R 2 B2 /5 IR A 5

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

18. IR BME @

2020 20204
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties at construction
fair value at fair value Total
BT T2
REME BEME
FBERNEE) R REE) WE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT AREBTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 120201 B1H R IREE 14,550,123 5,142,043 19,692,166
Additions hE - 20,115 20,115
Transfer from property, WYE-BERZREEA
plant and equipment (note 17) (Fi5E17) 19,151 - 19,151
Recognition of change in fair value of ERERERENEN
property, plant and equipment upon M BB KR EN
transfer to investment properties NRABEEEE) 95,342 - 95,342
Transfer from right-of-use assets RERAEEEEA
(note 19 (a)) (Ft5E19(a)) 3,108 - 3,108
Transfer from completed properties REEHENEZMYE
held for sale BA 33,506 - 33,506
Net loss from fair value adjustment NABEAREREE (219,873) (187,886) (407,759)
Disposal HE (14,476) - (14,476)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 742020512831 HBY
fREME 14,466,881 4,974,272 19,441,153

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial properties
in Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined
that the investment properties consist of one class of assets, i.e.,
commercial properties, based on the nature, characteristics and
risk of each property. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 December 2021 based on valuations performed
by Worldunion Appraisal and Xiamen Academic Practice Valuer,
two independent professionally qualified valuers, at approximately
RMB21,394,912,000. Each year, the Group’s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuation of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s management
has discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is performed for
annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating

leases, further summary details of which are included in note 19 to
the financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium term
leases and are situated in Mainland China. Details of the Group’s
investment properties pledged to secure the Group’s interest-bearing

bank loans are set out in note 33.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain investment properties
of the Group with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB3,082,178,000 as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB3,080,986,000) have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC
authorities. The Group is in the process of obtaining the relevant

certificates.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

18. REME @

AEBNKREYMEDREPHRBOE
B WALF R EIRRE ° AR EE A H T BiR
TERERFNECERREMENFIE
IR FE33 0

AEBREBANETREYENRA
BEMARTEBBAIBPEE &
EEREREESNFE HIEE
FEN2021FE12B31HAA AR
3,082,178,0007¢ (20205128310 : A
R #3,080,986,0007T) ©

AREEER

FEBNRENEN R ABEERIIT
mr:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using
20215128318 AR BEHE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERR T AHERN  FEREN
HwE EXBAE EXBAE
(B—4) (E=8) (E=%H) Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  AREBTE ARETT ARETR
Commercial properties R E - - 21,394,912 21,394,912
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
2020F12A31HARBEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
GRS PIERZEN RABREN
RME BABWAE BEABAE
(BE—#) (B E=R) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHEFTT AREFTT AREFT AREFTT
Commercial properties Rt E - - 19,441,153 19,441,153

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2020: Nil).
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18. REME @

DMREEER @

UFBHREYEETEEMRBEER
TR RSB A B E :

18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range

B BERTHENHAE #E
2020
20205
Commercial properties Discounted Estimated rental value RMB12-RMB270  RMB12-RMB233
7 i E cash flow method (per sg.m. and per month) AR¥127T— AE#1275—
ERREREE HEtE (BEAK/EA) AR#2707T AR #2337
Rent growth (p.a.) 1%-6% 2%-6%
HEFERX
Long-term vacancy rate 2%-15% 1%-15%
RHZEEX
Discount rate 6%-7% 6%-7%
ELETES

Residual method

Budgeted construction cost

RMB13-RMB352

RMB13-RMB338

FErBEE to be incurred (per sg.m.) AR¥13T— AEH#13T—
REENBHRERMAE (BEHK) AR #3527 ANR3387T
Remaining percentage to completion 3%-53% 3%-53%

HexIBNt

Anticipated developer’s profit margin

10%-35%

10%-35%

BEBENAEE
Comparison method Market unit sale rate RMB9,090- RMB9,160-
EE8GE (per sg.m) RMB49,200 RMB49,700
mHENER BFEAK) AE#9,000t— AE#09,1605t—
AR#49,200tr  ARKM49,7007T

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated BIEWIRBESREL AREBELKA

using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership Eﬁé EFRRNPMMEEN @ RkEENR
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method ¢ (BIRRHENRKERE) FHME -
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property EZE&ﬁf&iﬂ@%f‘# zAIBER2

BYFER - HIH T E VAL IR B AN TR A
REMNE UERIEEERR WS
MABEE RHWZREEEEEER
BRINREIRE

interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flow in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE
18.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 18. KREME @)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NREERER @

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is
then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rent growth rate
and market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would result in
a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term vacancy
rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a significant
decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment properties.
Generally, a change in the assumption made for the estimated rental
value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the rent
growth per annum and the discount rate and an opposite change in
the long-term vacancy rate.

The residual method of valuation is commonly used in valuing
development sites by establishing the market value of the properties
on an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees, contingency, marketing
and legal cost, and interest payments to be incurred, anticipated
developer’s profits, as well as land acquisition costs, interest
payment and profit on land.

The fair values of investment properties are determined using the
comparison method by referring to comparable sales evidence as
available in the relevant market. Comparable properties of similar
size, characteristics and location are analysed and selected for each
investment property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of their
fair values. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
market unit sale rate.
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19. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land use right and
buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made
upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 20 to 30 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have lease
terms between 3 and 15 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased asset outside the Group.

(@) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

19.FHE

FERFREBEA

FEBRARARNHEER BN T MERE
RiEFZEBEENHEESH - ERATE
H—RMEMRABEZWBEEE L
HEAZ20E30F > MREZFT LHEE
BYRRR KA FES AR 8T
MIHEIEE R3E16F - —fRME » A&
@T\gﬁZ&%%}u%)\jﬁ%%&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ

(@) EHESE
SERENEREEENERER
BT -

Land use right Buildings Total

= 3t 55 P 4 1EF st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARETT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2020 202018 1H 3,941,266 2,933,227 6,874,493

Additions hNE - 13,062 13,062

Depreciation charge MERX (164,980) (349,024) (514,004)
Transfer to investment properties BRELEY X

(note 18) (fzx18) (3,108) - (3,108)
Covid-19-related rent concessions 3% B 8 A #ICovid-19

from lessors HEEEEE - (37,928) (37,928)
Other lease modifications HaEE BT - 2,493 2,493
As at 31 December 2020 and 1220205128318 &

1 January 2021 20211818 3,773,178 2,561,830 6,335,008
Additions NE 567 13,383 13,950
Disposal HE (466) - (466)
Depreciation charge TERX (167,460) (350,410) (517,870)
Transfer to investment properties EER S LS

(note 18) (ffzx18) (11,006) - (11,006)
Transfer from properties REERPMEEA

under development (note 27) (Fy5x27) 74,656 - 74,656
Covid-19-related rent concessions ~ #& B 8 A #ICovid-19

from lessors HEEEEE - (10,342) (10,342)
Other lease modifications HthEEE:] - 62,086 62,086
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412831H 3,669,469 2,276,547 5,946,016

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED %2 BIBRZE KRB RA T

191



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

19. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

19 HE @

FEBEREBEAN @
b HEEE

FREEaENREEREFUT:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥FT ARMEFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January 1A 1HREREE 2,596,177 2,857,485
New leases wmiEE 13,383 13,062
Accretion of interest recognised FERBERF SIL

during the year 159,471 176,923
Covid-19-related rent concessions &8t 8 A BICovid-19

from lessors BRI ESR (10,342) (37,928)
Other lease modifications HMmiEEEET 62,086 2,493
Payments BN (443,637) (415,858)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12831HVERMEE 2,377,138 2,596,177
Analysed into: Sakiiv=18

Current portion REEL D 276,666 262,934

Non-current portion JERENEL 2,100,472 2,333,243

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 43 to
the financial statements.
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19. LEASES (continued) 19 fE @

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

FEEFAEEA @
(c) I #Eat HHERHIIE BIRRIA BT -

as follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGMNE 159,471 176,923
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEETERS
assets 517,870 514,004
Expense relating to short-term leases B EAE E BN 7,733 10,784
Expense relating to leases of BREEEENEMRMAFX
low-value assets 232 149
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 8% R TIB4EEE 685,306 701,860

(d) The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in
notes 38(c) and 39, respectively, to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 18) consisting of
commercial properties and shop premises in Mainland China under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB1,292,747,000 (2020: RMB1,088,168,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in the future periods under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

@ BREESXMNIRGSMEEEEKRED
AEBEHNEEERNARKIRER
SR B RS B S R &5 MY 5E38(c)
2304 &2 o

FEBEAHTEA
AEBRELEHEZHEHAEKREY
¥ (fsx18) » BREMN T E AN EEY
EREFHEM ZEHEENERTFEX
AP EFRESTREERNIRETS
METECHESAZR RERNEKERN
ERREEWA S ARKE1,292,747,000
7T (20204 : AR #51,088,168,0007T) *
SEBEH N RIRERMIFES o

R2021E12831H HEREAEBEREHE
HEp 2 Ao K S HE B REL
HREAExENT

2020

20204

RMB’000

ARETIT

Within one year —FR 880,734 859,312
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EFE_EFHF (EEEEN) 1,473,814 1,593,695
After five years A% 676,260 678,494
3,030,808 3,131,501
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE
20. GOODWILL 20.EH&
2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®FT ARMFT
At 1 January: P1A1H
Cost BN 1,769,920 1,685,973
Accumulated impairment RETRE (408,798) (346,191)
Net carrying amount R E 1,361,122 1,339,782
Cost at 1 January, net of H1B1H B
accumulated impairment (xR EE) 1,361,122 1,339,782
Acquisition of a subsidiary W HE— M B N E) 37 - 83,947
Impairment provided during the year £ R {E 8 & 12 (38,870) (62,607)
Cost and net carrying amount R12831B AR
at 31 December IREFE 1,322,252 1,361,122
At 31 December: M128318 :
Cost DN 1,769,920 1,769,920
Accumulated impairment RETRE (447,668) (408,798)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,322,252 1,361,122
Impairment testing of goodwill EEMRERR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) for impairment testing:

BREBAHEENEEDETLUTR
TELBENU (REEEEM) ETRE

AlE
e operation of department stores e HEERKE
e property development o WEIE
e others o Hith
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20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. B2 @&

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
management. The discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
ranged from 12% to 14% (2020: 12% to 14%). Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
of 3% (2020: 3%). The key assumptions adopted on growth rates
and discount rates used in the value in use calculations are based on
management’s best estimates.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the growth
rate by 10% to 15% would cause the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit to be under its recoverable amount by approximately
RMB84,288,000 to RMB174,903,000, and any reasonably possible
change in the other key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the cash-generating unit’s carrying
amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs are

EERRERNR (@
EREESBUNTWNESEEREHAE
BotEEiRE - ZAEEERUBTERE
HWEAPAIENMEEEAREENIR
EREEA - FANIRE S RETEAIMIEE
BERNP12%E14% (20204 © 12%=E
14%) c AU LIRS REF PG
ER3%HEET (20204 1 3%) o st EERE
ENFAEEELNREMRANEE
BREDENREEBMNREEMSST-

ANBEETRA WERTEIOBE
156% AJEEER/RBESEELEEUN
FEEEERETKRESENOARKE
84,288,0007c & A R 1174,903,0007T °
Ko U Bl 2B PR B AV ELith = B R R Y
EAEEESE I ESREELSE
IR EEBRAE U EEEE

NEFRFEEEEBUNHERBED

as follows: o
Operation of
department Property

stores  development Others Total
BEERE MERR Hith Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2020 122020512831H 1,275,622 83,947 1,553 1,361,122
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 1,236,752 83,947 1,553 1,322,252

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the CGUs
for 31 December 2021 and 2020. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — Management has determined the
budgeted gross margins based on past performance and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are after tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the respective units.

FPurchase price inflation — Management has considered the possibility
of increases in purchase price inflation ranging from nil to 5% (2020:
nil to 5%).

S ER2021F K2020F12831HBIR
SELBUEHABEERBZERRK U
THREEBTEETERBEAENR
HNIREREBAFFARENSETIEZR

HEEN-EEBREBERFRER
M REEREEN -

HHEE-FRANRBRKXENRRE I
[ R R B (A Y455 E LR o

BEEAR-SEEIRABEBERL
FHIBIAEIE B0%ES% (20204 : 0% =
5%) ©
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The values assigned to the key assumption on market development
of CGUs, discount rates and purchase price inflation are consistent
with external information sources.

Management performed impairment testing of goodwill annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired. During the year ended 31
December 2021, due to the operating performance decline among
business units which affected the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit of Chengdu Renhe Spring, goodwill of approximately
RMB38,870,000 was impaired.

21.OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20. HE @

B 2R ERNR @
HRTELEUNTHER MREXR
BEEERNTEZRKRPTABERIND
BERRIE—-

BEBSFETHERENS W

BB BESAEMET R - B E2021
F12B31HIEFE > JThHNEFEMURN
MERREZ REMMCHNERNIE
TEEBUZAWOEE  HHARE
38,870,0007cHI B E K B RIME

21. At B &

Computer software

sHEEERG

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE®BFIT

Cost at 1 January, net of NERE=E: )%
accumulated amortisation (0BrRetiEH) 41,589 46,165
Additions NE 643 255
Amortisation provided during the year 4 P9 §4 4 (4,786) (4,831)
At 31 December P12831H 37,446 41,589

At 31 December: ®128318 :

Cost D% 110,927 110,284
Accumulated amortisation Rt (73,481) (68,695)
Net carrying amount RERE 37,446 41,589

Computer software is amortised on the straight-line basis over five
years.
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22.INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

2 NEETENRE

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
#2021 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AER®BFT

Share of net assets FELE EFE 592 1,091
592 1,091
Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows: AEBGETLEFBITRUOT -
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name issued shares held and business  to the Group activities
FEEEMN
RAENBET R FRE##D
REVLTE RINEFE "R, Bt TEEH
Jiangsu Qinghehong Beverage Ordinary shares of PRC/ 50% Beverage industry

Management Co., Ltd. (“Qinghehong Beverage”)

IEANARRERRRAR (TENAKGRI)

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

RMB1 each Mainland China

AR/ BBR B/ EKE BREHTE

2. R ERBNRE

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
#2021 F20204F
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARETFIT

xShare of net assets FEIEE A 264,818 600,484
Goodwill on acquisition =S 182,195 468,850
447,013 1,069,334
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group sold part of its HE2021F12831HIEEE mERH
equity interest in Zhongjiabochuang Information Technology Co., Ltd. EHRAPEBAGERMKRMNERAT
(“ZJBC”). On 18 November 2021, the Group’s board representative (ThEZ1EA))) BIEB D REER © HR2021 411
in ZJBC resigned as director of ZJBC. The remaining 4.19% equity B18H AEBERPEZBANESTZK
interest in ZJBC was transferred to equity investments designated at EHITTEBANESZ N ZIBAIN

fair value through other comprehensive income.
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE
23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 23. REE ATIRIIRE (@
Particulars of the material associates are as follows: BEZMERBFBIRAT
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of  registration and attributable Principal
Name issued shares held business to the Group activities
FEEEMG
RAENBET FRE##D
REVLTE RONFEE HEMREEME Bt TEEH
Shenyang Commercial City Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares of PRC/ 24.22% Operation of
(‘Commercial City”) RMB1 each Mainland China department stores
EREERRNERAD (EEH) AR¥1T/EBR  PE/FEKAE 24.22% REBgEE
Shenzhen UGO E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (‘UGO”") Ordinary shares of PRC/ 58.83% Electronic
RMB1 each Mainland China commerce
AIEKEEFEHERAE (MBHKE) ARSI/ EEKR B/ PEAE 58.83% EFEH
() Commercial City () =R
Commercial City, which is considered a material associate of the FEMFERAAERNEEH S A
Group, is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the retall B AAEENRETEENHEE
industry and is accounted for using the equity method. AR AR
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23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

() Commercial City (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Commercial City adjusted for any
differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying

23. REER

0) P @

amount in the consolidated financial statements:

31 December

A E @

TRIVTEEUMD G StEERE
MERREREHMBREVREE
HERIFHAERNMBERE

31 December

2021 2020
720214 1120205
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFIT
Current assets MENEE 1,205,458 1,165,418
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,068,563 2,034,350
Current liabilities mENEE (1,636,018) (2,611,042
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (811,400) (18,359)
Non-controlling interests of the associate  Bft& /A S FFIERR IR SR =% (307,647) (307,677)
Net assets BEZE 518,956 262,690
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TEEHE 518,956 262,690
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in HAEERBE QBN
the associate: HERETHIR .
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REBPT{LPT B RELLA 24.22% 24.22%
Group’s share of net assets of AREBELHEARDEE
the associate, excluding goodwill FE TEIEE 40,618 63,624
Goodwill on acquisition IR BB R & 32,412 32,412
Carrying amount of the investment KENREE 73,030 96,036
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBEFT
Revenue WA 152,321 195,609
Loss for the year FRER (128,227) (164,836)
Other comprehensive income Hitzmla 40,128 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~— FE R4z & E51B4E%E (88,099) (164,836)
Fair value of the Group’s investment TEBRRENANEBE 750,664 223,474
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23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(ii) UGO

(ii)

UGO is a strategic partner of the Group engaged in the
electronic commerce industry. The Group directly and indirectly
holds 58.83% of the shares in UGO.

There is no change in the composition of the board of directors
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Management determines
that the Group does not have control over UGO.

UGO is still considered an associate of the Group and was
accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of UGO adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements:

23. REEATNVIRE @

BikEE
BREATSEEREEHTENE
BEM rEREERBERAE
1 BE58.83% I B 17 ©

HE2021F12H31BLEFEE &5
THEMBESEC - SEEBREL
£ (B B 1k B8 S SR 1R A o

05 4 B8 (0 470 2 7 £ T O B 8 0
5 RIRFIE A AR o

TRIREBRBER G5 BHRIE

WERRREEGMBHRENEREE
HERFHAERNMBFERE

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 220204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARFTT
Current assets TENE 281,575 227,164
Non-current assets EREEE 221,067 192,692
Current liabilities mEmasE (118,807) (56,567)
Non-current liabilities JERENEE (2,737) -
Net assets excluding non-controlling FRIEIEIG AR 2 AN Y
interests BETRE 381,098 363,289
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TEEHE 381,098 363,289
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in PAREFRBE QTN
the associate: BEmETHIR
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AE B PP A L F) 58.83% 58.83%
Group’s share of net assets of REBRGHEADEE
the associate, excluding goodwill FE TEIEE 224,200 213,723
Goodwill on acquisition gt SheE 149,783 149,783
Carrying amount of the investment NENREE 373,983 363,506
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MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

23.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 2B.RBEATNKRE @

(ii) UGO (continued)

@) BKEE @

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®FT

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income

FRFE 19,806 50,839
Hth2mWa - -
2E N AREE 19,806 50,839

Carrying amount of the Group's
investment in the associate

AEBRBENTKREDN
EREE 373,983 363,506

24.FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

24. ERIGE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20205

12H31H 12831H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE AR T ARTFIT

Equity investments designated

BEMUARNBESERHR

at fair value through other EHF AEMEEKEN

comprehensive income: =

Listed equity investments R RE 0] 751,553 868,788

Unlisted equity investments JEEMEEREE 0] 603,182 651,745
1,354,735 1,520,533

Financial assets at fair value through MU AABETE B EESNTA

profit or loss: BEmEHEE !

Listed equity investments hERE (ii) 277,054 28,028

Other unlisted investments HIF EHiRE (i) 149,474 10,712

426,528 38,740

1,781,263 1,659,273
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AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes:

M

(i)

(i)

The equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these investments to
be strategic in nature. During the year, the Group sold its equity interest in
certain investment as this investment no longer coincided with the Group's
investment strategy. The fair value on the date of sale was RMB204,032,000
and the accumulated gain recognised in other comprehensive income of
RMB17,144,000 was transferred to retained earnings.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of RMB6,517,000 (2020: RMB15,008,000) from invested
companies.

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Group’s unlisted equity investment
(2020: Nil) was pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans as further
detailed in note 383.

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The unlisted investments at 31 December 2021 were wealth management
products and precious metal products purchased from banks in Mainland
China. They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.
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24. HRIGE @)
MIsE

0

(i)

i

AR AEERAZSREBRREERE
AL R E R A I D 2B R IR E
EEAUAABESEREEH T AHMS
mRE FAR FERHEERETREN
B SRR ISR B EAERNIRERRE
TH—H -HRHERPENAABEAARKE
204,032,00070 > Mt Hh 2 EUW R R R
AR IE17,144,000c E BB ERHFR
Fo

HE2021FE12831HIEEE  AEFEBEE
BN BUWERRE AR 156,517,0007T (20204 :
AR 15,008,0007T) ©

R2021F 128318 AEE MIF EmEnm
15 (20204 | 1) fEA AL FIRTTERVIET
(M sE33E— 2 354 ©

PSR ENRFIFEER MO BRUAR
BESBEEHSHH ABENSREE-

2021512831 BHIE LR E AP EARE
HIR{TTREEZIBMERRESBESD -HP
HENRESRETEEASI VRS RFE
RILZE R EWRGFEAUANBENE
BHEHESHA ABRHNSMEE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
25. DEFERRED TAX 25, IRIEFTIE
Movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are UTRERNREEREBEEBEREENED
as follows: 155
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBAE
Deemed
Revaluation disposal of
of equity equity
Fair value investments investments
adjustment at fair value at fair value Amortisation
arisingfrom ~ through other  Revaluation of  through other Deemed Deemed  of prepaid land Capitalisation
acquisition of  comprehensive investment  comprehensive disposal of disposal lease Withholding of borrowing Government
a subsidiary income properties income asubsidiary  of an associate payments taxes costs grant Total
&y
ERANRL RREEEES
&2 WAABEHE
WERELT H2HiA BEEEHA
BN HftRENE At 2EMEN Rk HRRE Bt gt
DMEESE  MERRE  EtRENE EakE HELR Bens  REnEEy BiA G RS a3t
RMB000 RVBI000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMBI000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB000
NERTR NEETR NRETT NRETR AEETR NE®TR NRETT NRRTR AEETR NE®TR NRETT
At January 2020 R0EIAR 1,245,834 14306 2,176,031 730 1740% 12,067 25310 88729 494510 - 4238263

Defre toxceted edited) o RIS/ (1)

equity durng the year ERNELRE - 838 - - - - - - - - 838
Defered tax chargedi(credled) to AR GAEER

the consolcated statementof 1158/ (G AV B9

proftorloss durng theyer — EXERE

ote 14 W) 211 - ] - ma) 530 - 550 10 . (13216

ALt December 200and 20205128818 R
1 January 2021 WIER1R 1,284,953 2,634 2,095,990 7,380 96,769 6,707 2310 114232 456,400 - 4110375

Defre taxcebtedrdited)to RIS/ (31

equit during the year ERNETRE - 20,982) 262644 - - - - - - - 241,662
Defere tax chargedcredted) o ERHEAEHT

the consoldeted satementof 1%/ (5 89

poftorloss dung e year  ERERE

(note 14) (Htz14) (65,531) - 2549 - (96,769) (1,708) - 17,059 546 22,864 (50,090)

At31 December 2021 HontEAsE 1219422 1662 231,183 7380 - 499 25310 181,291 456,946 2364 4,301,047
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021512A31HILFE
25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25 IRFEFRIE (@)
Deferred tax assets IRIERIRE &=
Losses
available for ~ Unrealised
Provision for ~ Impairment Expensed offsetting  intercompany
Provisions retirement of current contract Lease against future  transaction Advance from
and accruals benefits assets liabilities liabilities  taxable profits profit customers Total
AR
BhR iR THEE BxH RRERR RER
RRER B it aHER e AENER ADHENR BRER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT  ARETn  AB®Tn  ARBTR  ARBTR  A\RETR  ARETR  AREfR  ARETR
At 1 January 2020 20201 F1H 104,662 1,876 31,304 3,7 24293 93,603 361,770 16,985 637,270

Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ ERREEERR
the consolidated statementof 3t A/ (41R3) 40
profit or oss during the year B
(note 14) (x14) (7,022) (842 16,150 (8.777) 27,262 9,446 (42,191) 3,605 3131

At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12831 B R

1 January 2021 20211818 97,640 1,534 47,454 - 51,555 103,049 319,579 19,590 640,401
Deferred tax credited/(charged) o~ ERREEERR

the consolidated statement of 5t/ (HIF3) B9

proft or loss during the year BiLha

[note 14) (Fs14) 1676 @ (6,249) = 16,168 82,206 (10,118) 21,767 105,524
At 31 December 2021 Ro001E12851R 99,316 1512 #4211 = 67,728 185,45 309461 41,357 745,925
The Group had tax losses of approximately RMB3,532,531,000 as AEBP2021FE12831BFENARE
at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB3,661,563,000), 3,532,531,0007% (2020F12831H A
that will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable R #3,661,563,0007T) MR IEEE 525
profits. AR IRIH R IR ERRAENIRIEE B

R—ERFERNEmM-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25, IRIERIA (48)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

EERBEEEW ERL T BB EITHE

=7V

31 December

31 December

MIAR1E

Tax losses

2021 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTFTT AEREFIT
2,791,151 3,249,367

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
tax losses of approximately RMB104,011,000 in 2021 (2020:
RMB24,286,000), the utilisation of which is dependent on future
taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences. The amount of deferred tax
assets is based on the profit forecast approved by the management
of the Group.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the application
rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2021, the deferred tax liabilities of undistributed
profits not provided for amounted to RMB562,437,000 (31
December 2020: RMB522,633,000).

WERZEBREDELERBEESE )
HEEBEENME RS CEE —KRE
Bl WD N APIAEE E L B HBIER
MAELURIHIR B IR -

AREE 2021 EMRIBEEERIEILR
IBEEELNARM104,011,0007% (2020
F . AR24,286,0007T) * ZIEIERIE
EEETHABURN AR ERRFIE
BRI ENERN YR ZEERMES
HFAE - BIERIBEENCREERK
EREEEMAENZNEAHE-

RIBPBECEMERE IEREER
AR FEAENIINERETEESHR
EERB10%NHREXHWTERAER
ZRTER2008F1B1HEER  BER
2007512831 H B BB F o {8 & B BT
BZINRREEFTE R A B FEERI
WE A BEARBTERFAERRE &
EHEARELES% AL ZEBRHE
KB B L BI BT B A B B 2008FE1 81 H
ZREENRI DK SR EMNTER
Figia o

R2021F12H31H ket EHEH
AOEMBREIEREBESEAARE
562,437,0007C (2020128310 : AR
#5202, 633,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AT ERRMIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

26.INVENTORIES

26.28

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
®202145F 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AER®BFIT

Merchandise for resale AT EEm 339,573 270,047
Provision against slow-moving inventories 17 & kBB (5,599) (5,599)
333,974 264,448

Movements in the provision against slow-moving inventories are as

FENRKERFEEZEHUOT

follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®FT
At 1 January »1B18 5,599 6,922
Amount written off during the year FEIZE - (1,323)
At 31 December R12831H 5,599 5,599
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MR MIEE

Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

27.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 27. BRPME
2020
2020%
Notes RMB’000
b= AREFT
Land lease prepayments, at cost TR ETET I (2R
At 1 January M1A1H 2,922,961 1,508,411
Additions A= 100,364 429,028
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RN B AT 37 - 1,319,599
Transfer to right-of-use assets BEEEHESE 19(a) (74,656) -
Transfer to completed properties held HEERERE
for sale [E5-3n%/ES (16,787) (334,077)
At 31 December RM12H31H 2,931,882 2,922,961
Development expenditure, at cost HEZE )
At 1 January BM1A1H 2,847,851 4,590,744
Additions wnE 513,081 848,722
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE—FEIM B N B 37 - 57,918
Transfer to property, plant and equipment 23 ZE Y% R KL 17 (779,548) (485,562)
Transfer to completed properties EBEEEAEE
held for sale [EF-3%7/ES (196,317) (2,099,648)
Impairment HE 11 (2,872 (64,323)
At 31 December RM12831H 2,382,195 2,847,851
5,314,077 5,770,812

The Group’s properties under development are held under medium
term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

Details of the Group’s properties under development pledged to
secure the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are set out in note

33.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

28.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 28. RN B ZHIEREIR

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Trade and bills receivables FEUR & 57 3B 29,523 30,626
Impairment A (15,379) (19,611)
14,144 11,015

The Group’s revenue from the direct sales of merchandise are
mainly on a cash basis. The credit terms offered to customers of
the Group’s sale of properties are generally three months to one
year. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of
the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade and bills
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade and bills
receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice dates, is as follows:

AEEERBETROBATELURS
mERE KERNYEHERHETER
NEER—RB=ZBARE—F -8UX
FHERSEERE AERSKER
BEBBRRRITEBES TRERE
EERIEPIURBEERR SHREE
[B & E BB AR B A AE B o BB HY L SCP At
RAEBRKEZRBERRE I RAE
SREERNEE WUBEREDE
EER - AEBE I E BN E 5 RER
REEFEFRTA TR R EMIER
EEREH BB EBSRERRERTE -

RB|BEHR BREZRBERRERRE
RHBAMRE DU

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARBEF T

Within 60 days 60H R 5,992 8,247

61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 488 238

91 to 180 days 91E180H 223 242

181 to 270 days 181F270H 1,010 110

271 to 360 days 271%2360H 349 662

Over 360 days BiB360H 21,461 21,127

29,523 30,626

Impairment HE (15,379) (19,611)

14,144 11,015
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 28. RN E ZIEREE (B)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade FEWE ZREBENREBEEEEEN
receivables are as follows: T
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEFT
At 1 January r1A1H 19,611 20,144
Impairment losses, net (note 11) AEESEREE (HEE11) (4,232) (533)
At 31 December 1’12831 15,379 19,611
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a REREBHEAERBEEREETRE
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision DI UGt ERBEESE BEEXNLE
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer REBHEUSBEXNNZEZ A DD
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and 48 (BDEMRLER] ~ B P85 K14k BaA
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the reasonable S E ZrTERMIEIRE B AT
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date BHEBBEEES  BRIEH RERKL
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future EARREANEER A FEER -

economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TX#EHINBEEAEERBEREEMTS
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: HEWESZHENEERBER !
As at 31 December 2021 202112831

Past due

a

1to 6 6 months 1 year Over
months to1year to3years 3 years

1Z26fA 6EAE1F 1FE3F HiB3F

Expected credit loss rate BHEERENE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAAE (AR T7T) 6,703 1,359 6,123 15,338 29,523
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TBHAEEEE (ARET ) 7 3 31 15,338 15,379

As at 31 December 2020 20205 12H31H
Past due
bl

1t06 6 months 1 year Over
months to 1 year to 3 years 3 years Total
1268 6EBZEIFE 1EE3EF BiB3E 45t

Expected credit loss rate BHREEBENZE 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAEE (AR T 7T) 8,727 772 1,535 19,592 30,626
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  TEHEAEEE#E (ARET ) 9 2 8 19,592 19,611
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29, FE{HRRIE ~ Hth EUGR B R H At
OTHER ASSETS BE

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
120215 20205
12H831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AE®BFIT

Non-current assets ERHEE
Prepayments TENTRRIE 134,074 166,485
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments FEfT 1A 325,679 330,945
Deposits and other receivables from REIERAMABNEZE R
non-related companies HEWRIE 1,507,405 1,499,321
Deposits and other receivables from REBABABENEES R
related companies HhpE k1A 805,668 837,315
2,638,752 2,667,581
Impairment of other receivables from REIFEREB AT
non-related companies HhfEWIERE (40,141) (62,994)
Impairment of other receivables from REREEABN
related companies HthEWERIE R E (86,673) (86,989)
(126,814) (149,983)
2,511,938 2,517,598
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other HMEWRIEREBBEESESMT .

receivables are as follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ABR¥TT ARMEFTT

At 1 January B1B1H 149,983 149,474
Impairment losses, net (note 11) BERESEE (WHEE11) (21,833) 5,301

Amount written off as uncollectible AR [E]EREiZ (1,337) (4,792)
At 31 December »12831H 126,813 149,983
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The balances due from related companies included in the above are

2&§ﬁ%E\E@%W%E&E%

E (@)
XA R AT AR T

as follows:
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 R2020%
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARETFIT
Associates =GN 146,945 168,591
Immediate holding company BEER AT 25,485 26,307
Fellow subsidiaries BIRME AT 117,227 126,406
A company significantly influenced by —RKRARREBES
a director of the Company BEAFENQT 516,011 516,011
Impairment of other receivables from PN =Ll NEIL|
related companies HthEWEIERE (86,673) (86,989)
718,995 750,326

Included in the balances due from associates is an amount of
RMB137,638,000 due from Commercial City, which includes the
loans, the related interest receivable and total interest penalty
income in the amount of RMB136,923,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB157,336,000). The loans bear interest at 6.5% to 10%
per annum and are repayable in one year. During the year, the
interest income generated and the total interest penalty income
from the loans were RMB8,265,000 and RMB17,225,000 (2020:
RMB8,989,000 and Nil), respectively.

The remaining balances due from associates and other related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
29. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 29, FE{HFRIE ~ Hith EUGR B R H At
OTHER ASSETS (continued) HE @
As at 31 December 2021, financial assets included in prepayments, [R2021F12831H st ATBIRMIEH
other receivables and other assets were in Stage 1, and a provision MEKRRELENEENEHNEER
for impairment of RMB126,813,000 was provided. Details of NE—MEER Bt RABEEBE ARE
impairment assessment of financial assets included in prepayments, 126,813,0007T ° B A& £2021F12H 31
other receivables and other assets for the year ended 31 December HIEFEST ATENRIE  EMtEWRIE
2021 are set out in note 42, REMBENSREENRETLES
I MIEE420
The impairment of other receivables from related companies 120215128318 kBB ABNE
amounted to RMB86,673,000 at 31 December 2021 (31 December th & R IR BB 7 A R #586,673,0007T
2020: RMB86,989,000), which includes the impairment of the (2020F12H31H : AR 186,989,000
balances due from Shenyang Maoye Property Co., Ltd., Shenzhen 7o) BEDREBERXEEERR
Demao Investment Enterprises and Shenzhen Hezhengmao NENFINEBREELERFINEGIER
Investment Enterprise in the amounts of RMB55,457,000, KRE P ENRERAGRARKS5,457,000
RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000 (31 December 2020: T~ AR#20,626,00070 & AR
RMB55,457,000, RMB20,626,000 and RMB8,248,000), respectively. 8,248,0007T (20204128310 : ARE
55,457,0007t ~ A & #20,626,0007T & A
R 18,248,0007T) °
The carrying amounts of the remaining other receivables that were ZR 38 BA 78 AR R (B B 3R B H At FE U R IEER
neither past due nor impaired relate to other debtors for whom there EE (A HE T R B K AL AT =AY
was no recent history of default. BHEANBR-
30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 30. RERREFEYURIERER
DEPOSITS
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 220204
12831H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARFTT
Cash and bank balances R KRBTSR 1,197,116 1,046,689
Pledged deposits EHGER 147,114 245,919
1,344,230 1,292,608
Less: Pledged bank balances for B RTEIEEFNERITER
construction in progress (119,926) (94,836)
Pledged bank balances for mortgages BIIBIRR I IRITAEER (17,321) (45,180)
Pledged time deposits for BERLABEEERIRTFN
housing fund loans ERTFE (52) (52)
Pledged bank balances for bank loans RIRTTERIRRIRITEER (414) (96,300)
Frozen bank deposits ERAEIRITIER (5,403) (9,528)
Pledged time deposit for BIRTTAR EZHIEIFN
bank acceptance bills TE BRTF K (3,773) -
Others Hith (225) (23)
Cash and cash equivalents REMRREEBY 1,197,116 1,046,689
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 F£E R &

DEPOSITS (continued)

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits were
denominated in the following currencies:

30. B RN FEVUARBRER

(&)

FEBNREERIRESEBYURKBITRZ
RIS EES)R

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

1202145 720204

12H31H 12831H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEFIT

RMB AR 1,339,893 1,239,748
Hong Kong dollar BT 3,734 3,057
United States dollar ETT 574 49,775
Euro BT 1 -
Great British pound HEE 10 10
Singapore dollar N T 18 18
1,344,230 1,292,608

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,344,230,000
(81 December 2020: RMB1,292,608,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of
between one month and six months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
time deposit rates. The bank balances and bank deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

HERSHPR AEBUARETEDN
R KMIR1T4EER A AR 151,344,230,000
7T (2020F12H831H : AR #&
1,292,608,00070) ° ARIEHEEBAHRTIR
EE & > S8 iR 35 AP B A B (S EE
BB ) R(GGEE - EERNESIER
) AEBEERBKEELETINEE
BHIRTTEARBRIBAHEME

IRTTIRE LR E BIRITERF KRBT
HHE - EMERHRNT F1EEE T
o RMPAREBMINKREFTRME >
A LUAR FE B9 E HA 77 R M R RN A B < 3R
TRBFMIRTEMEFALRL EHER
SENEEREFRRITH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

31. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES N.ENEZFTIERER
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the ENEZHERERERSHERGEE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HHERE DATZOT ¢

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
202145 R20204F
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEETF T

Within 90 days 90H ™A 1,281,165 2,029,504
91 to 180 days 91ZE180H 92,249 71,812
181 to 360 days 181E360H 82,567 24,375
Over 360 days 360H U £ 436,931 340,526
1,892,912 2,466,217
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled EHEZHIEARE  T—MRIROEN
within 90 days. B
The Group’s bills payable amounted to RMB70,814,000 as at 31 R2021FE12831H  ZEBRNENEZE
December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB121,318,000). A AR 170,814,0007% (2020512531

H: AR#121,318,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021

EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE
32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, 2. g R - ERE B ERK
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES HthfE{mha
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 R20204
12H31H 12831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
wi EEPNEEEA  ARETFT
Non-current liabilities EREAEE
Loans from fellow subsidiaries KERRNBATNER (b) 3,858,460 -
Other payables HMEN A 162 158
3,858,622 158
Current liabilities mEaE
Contract liabilities aHNER (@) 1,809,627 2,201,229
Deferred revenue TIEWTA 111,463 107,709
Deposits received BEE 694,472 677,892
Accrued operating lease rental expenses ~ TEIRASEH RIS 80,063 86,019
Accrued utilities BIR A BRMEX 37,753 30,146
Accrued liabilities FERER 216,516 217,720
Accrued staff costs FERESRZ 48,926 44,497
Provision for coupon liabilities e ERE 70,358 74,493
Value-added tax and other tax payables (B3 & HithfEHTRIE 385,109 284,047
Payables for construction BERTEENTRE 1,978,059 2,182,906
Loans from the immediate holding company 2R B EEZZER A THNE R (b) 468,121 487,879
Loans from fellow subsidiaries REBRWBABNER (b) 431,365 3,508,561
Loan from a company significantly REREARNBDEEEATE
influenced by a director of the Company ~ RIATIHNER (b) 749,577 667,645
Claim provisions REEE 80,337 -
Other payables HA BT IE ©) 1,155,282 1,207,986
8,317,028 11,773,729
Notes: Bk
(@) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ B‘BHEEFBEOT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
2021F12H31H 2020E12831H 202018 1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKET T AREFT ARETF T
Sale of properties YIZIHE 703,073 1,077,973 3,509,900
Sale of prepaid cards EaR S EINES 1,106,554 1,123,256 1,217,133
Total contract liabilities BHaEE 1,809,627 2,201,229 4,727,033
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver properties and presale SHEEEEMT MY ELIBETES RIREL
of prepaid cards. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was HIER 0 2021 FE FR2020F & BBV FEE
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers in AN EEREEYEWENIE P SRR
relation to the sale of properties at the end of the year. 7o
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

32. CONTRACT LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

The balances due to related companies included in the above are as follows:

R2.5WE6E - BliEE B ERAK
& I 7R IE ()

MizE (@

b) FIALXOENRBASEHRNT

31 December

31 December

2021 2020

20214 720204

12A31H 128318

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ABEBTT

Associates Ji=UNE]| 3,246 4,325

The immediate holding company BiEERATE 475,828 495,835

Fellow subsidiaries B&RMWBAE 4,490,937 3,511,939
Companies significantly influenced by SZERRNBREEEATLENRE

a director of the Company 749,577 667,645

5,719,588 4,679,744

Included in the balance due to the immediate holding company is an
amount of RMB468,121,000 (81 December 2020: RMB487,879,000) which
includes the loan from Maoye Department Store Investment Limited of
RMB374,335,000 and the related interest at 7.00% per annum.

Included in the balances due to fellow subsidiaries is an amount of
RMB4,289,825,000 (31 December 2020: RMB3,5083,561,000) which includes
the loan from Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd (‘“Shenzhen Maoye Group”)
of RMB3,858,460,000 and the related interest payable, the loan from Maoye
Group Limited of RMB134,035,940 and the related interest payable. The loan
of RMB3,858,460,000 bears interest at 4.75% per annum, and the loan of
RMB134,035,940 bears interest at 7.00% per annum.

The loan from Shenzhen Maoye (Group) Co., Ltd of RMB3,858,460,000 is
due in 3 years and included in other non-current liabilities. The other loans
mentioned above are all repayable in one year. During the year, the loan
interest expenses mentioned above amounted to RMB209,258,000 (2020:
RMB131,615,000).

Included in the balance due to companies significantly influenced by a director
of the Company is an amount of RMB749,577,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB667,645,000) which includes a loan amounting to RMB200,000,000 and
the related interest and penalty payable. The loan bears interest at 8.79% per
annum and an interest penalty at 0.05% per day. During the year, the loan
interest and penalty expenses were RMB17,833,000 and RMB58,653,000
(2020: RMB17,882,000 and RMB55,736,000), respectively.

The remaining balances due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and will generally mature within
one year.
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ENEZERARAGHRTEE—ZARKE
468,121,0007T (2020512831 : AR
487,879,0007T) B %8 > €11E 2K EMaoye
Department Store Investment Limitedfy &7 A
R #5374,335,0007T & 32 FIZE7.00% 5t E 1Y
HERERIE

ENRARNBABDGERTEE—SEARKE
4,289,825,0007T (2020128318 : AR
3,503,561,0007T) * BiEK B FIIKE (E®)
BRMERAT (TRINKEER) WARKE
3,858,460,0007T Sz AB BAFE (T F) B AR SR B 7%
*EEFRLABTNWERARK134,035,940
TR BRI BT R o AR 13,858,460,000
THERBEN K4 75%E > MARE
134,085,9407C I B IR F) ZE7.00%:1 &

KEFRINKE EB) RDBRABINERA
E #£3,858,460,00070H = A EIH > WA A
JEREa G LHEMERN—FEREE &
A FIESRA S R A AR 1209,258,0007T
(2020£F : AR#131,615,0007T) ©

EESAANDERTEAFENADEHTE
& AR #£749,577,0007T (20205128318 -
AR 1667,645,0007T) * %R EBEERA
ES 15200,000,0007T K FE S 1B REF) 8 K £l & ©
BRI EFE8.79%51 B K& X0.05%H 5]
B ER BRF BRI HARBARKE
17,833,0007t Kz A R #558,653,0007T (2020%F :
AN E#817,882,00070 K2 A Fe #555,736,0007T) ©

FESRAI AR AERR AR T 2R D R IR IR -
B REREEE-

© HMEIRESRE > —RI—FEREIH-
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 33. st RIRITEMREMER
BORROWINGS

2021 2020
2021F 2020F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIEHZ(%) HHE  ARETT RElSlEs) HHE ARETR

Current K
Interest-bearing bank loans - secured 5t 8 STER - E 4.68-6.09 2022 2970000  4.50-6.09 2021 2,609,436
Current portion of long term REHEHRTERN
interest-bearing bank loans BBy -HiRA
- secured 3.96-6.60 2022 3,143,617 4.90-6.52 2021 2,378,005
Current portion of a corporate bond AT EHEIEAE A
— unsecured (@) 2 ) 4.79 2022 299,270 - - -
6,412,887 4,987,441
Non-current E:N:
Non-current portion of HERTERN
interest-bearing bank loans FEEEE D
- secured ~Eif# 4.90-6.60  2023-2035 7,603,299 490-6.52  2022-2035 8,759,040
Corporate bonds - unsecured (a)  ‘AREH—EIER(Q) 4.94 2023 208,683 479494  2022-2023 505,978
7,901,982 9,355,018
14,314,869 14,342,459
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 1120205
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AER®BFIT
Analysed into: DU
Bank and other loans repayable: IRTTREMEEEER
Within one year —FR 6,412,887 4,987,441
In the second year RE_F 3,132,372 3,442,650
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFEFHF
(GERMELN) 2,433,230 3,324,568
Beyond five years RHREME 2,336,380 2,587,800
14,314,869 14,342,459
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@

On 4 August 2020, Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha completed the issuance of
bonds with a total principal amount of RMB600,000,000 on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange of the PRC. The corporate bonds were issued in two
categories. Category 1 carries interest at 4.79% per annum, payable annually
on 4 August in arrears, and has a term of up to 2 years at maximum. Category
2 carries interest at 4.94% per annum, payable annually on 4 August in
arrears, and has a term of up to 3 years at maximum.

The carrying amount of the corporate bonds as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB597,953,000.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by:

()  certain land and buildings of the Group with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB4,370,165,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB3,872,792,000);

(i) certain investment properties of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB8,422,086,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB9,178,429,000);

(i) certain right-of-use assets of the Group with a net carrying

amount of approximately RMB158,728,000 (31 December 2020:

RMB1,731,669,000);

certain properties under development of the Group with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB1,874,444,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB451,095,000); and

(v) certain stocks of Maoye Commercial with a carrying amount of
RMB848,350,000 (31 December 2020: RMB764,650,000).

Except for the secured bank loan of RMB88,106,000 (31 December
2020: RMB101,055,000) which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all
borrowings are in RMB.

Except for the bank loans with a carrying amount of RMB8,723,043,000 (31
December 2020: RMB6,867,000,000) at fixed interest rates, all borrowings
bear interest at floating interest rates.
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33.

stRIBITERRHEMBER @

#2020F8B4H » FIIREEENPE LS
BERZERB TN ASEEAARE
600,000,0007c YA BIES o A BMEHIEME
BRI BT o FER1I%4.79% M FEF K51 8 ~ DA
NEENSHIEIT FHRE AME 485
234 Q4% EF| K5t E s D EIR G ERI8H4
B FHREZR=1Fo

R20215F 128318 ABMESNIREER A
R #5597,953,0007T ©

FEENETRITERAUTEERR

) AEBEEBFENEARIE
4,370,165,0007T (20206128318 : AR
#3,872,792,0007t) V& T T HIKIETF ;

i ZEBEBEBFENEARE
8,422,086,0007T (202051283180 : AR
#£9,178,429,00070) (VE TR EEWE ;

(i) AEEREFELNSARNE158,728,000
7t (2020F12H831H | AR
1,731,669,0007T) WETEREEE ;

M FEBERBEBZFEORSARK
1,874,444,0007T (20204E12831H : AR
#5451,095,0007T) (V& T RERTYIE ; &

V) REMENEREEARES48,350,0007T
(20205128313 : AR%E764,650,000
70) BET RS ©

& A2 #588,106,0007T (20205128310 © A
R #101,055,0007T) FUAE KIFIRITERLE
TTeHESN FrEfERIE B AR

FRERE(E A A R 18,723,043,0007T (2020412
HB31H : AR#56,867,000,00070) BIIRITE R
REEMET BN A BRI ZEAE
IS
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Year ended 31 December 2021

EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE
33.INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND OTHER 3Bt ERITERREMER @
BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued) iz (@
In addition, Shenzhen Maoye Group, Shenzhen Xinghua Industrial Co., Ltd. o RIS FER > FRIIEKE (EEH) R EE
(“Xinghua Industrial”), Chongging Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd., Mr. Huang Mao BERMAERAD (THEBE)) - EEREM
Ru, Mrs. Huang Jingzhang (spouse of Mr. Huang Mao Ru), and Mr Lin Zhen EERRAB -BRWMEE REFRLT (ERNL
Xiong have guaranteed certain of the Group’s bank loans with a total amount of EMERRB) RMEREEREFAERBEEA AR
RMB7,338,059,000 (31 December 2020: RMB6,881,433,000) as at the end of the #7,338,059,0007T (2020128318 : AR
reporting year. 6,881,433,0007T) BIE TERITETIRHIER
The Group had the following undrawn banking facilities at the year end: FHR NEBFE TR ERRIRITIREEHE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214 1220204
128318 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT
Amount of undrawn banking facilities AR BANIRITIRGEEE 280,000 961,210
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. RIARF B
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 1120205
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AE®BFT
Defined benefit obligations RERASEE 7,459 7,548
Less: Current portion of retirement benefits 3, : IRIKAEFI B R EN B (670) (693)
6,789 6,855
The Group and the Company provide certain of the eligible staff with NEERANANT I EREH I ATS
post-retirement benefits pursuant to a retirement benefit plan. The BENE TIRMHERERN ZetEzSe
plan is funded solely by the Group on an actual payment basis. HAERIGERESHEEIZEHE S
The latest actuarial valuation of the plan was carried out on 31 RN EHEEGHEIZAWIls Towers
December 2021 by the Wilis Towers Watson Company, using the Watson Companyf£2021FE12831H1E
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method. AEE U EEREGEEEW -
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34. BRIREFIBHE @

(continued)

The principal actuarial assumption used as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

REBEHARMEBNEIERBERRES
L

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
1202145 20204
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT AR®BFT

Discount rate HIR=

3.25% 3.25%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at 31
December 2021 is shown below:

2021FE12H31H  EABRHRHNEEHN
REDFERMT -

Decrease in Increase in

net defined net defined

Increase in benefit Decrease in benefit

rate obligation rate obligation

AERIER RERNER

XA RERH LR T TRERLE N

Discount rate e 0.25% (152) 0.25% 158

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligation
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
respect of the plan are as follows:

FRABREDHTRRBEZERRNKRS
HARBENGEEHHRERIEETF
B R ERHEE T AT E

RS EHERES 2 ENERRDN
B BET T

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
1202145 20205
12H31H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AE®BFIT

Interest cost FE A 234 277
Net benefit expenses R R 234 277
Recognised in finance costs NN 234 277
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(continued)

34. RINEF)E R @

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit RERMEENIREEBWT -

obligations are as follows:

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ANREF T

At 1 January M1B1H 7,548 8,916

Interest cost FE A 234 277

Pension payments made B RKE (533) (669)
Benefit expenses recognised/(reversed) in R EMEEW G-, (&)

other comprehensive income SEER IR 210 (976)

At 31 December P’12831H 7,459 7,548

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value AEBHNETRHEELANEBEED

of plan assets are as follows: o
2020 20205
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in ather comprehensive income
SABENRAEHA SARMEEENETHEYE
Actuaria
changes Sub-total
Sub-fotal arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in proft Benefit financid  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2020 interest orloss pad  assumptions  adjustments income 2020
RHERR StAH:
oo HABEH ZEMfFLA 2ENEH  RonoE
1818 fIEEE B BREN BEBT AEEE DEE 12831
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A\EBTn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTn  ARBTR  ARETR
Defined benefit obligations FERHER 891 o il (669) 97) - (076) 7548
Beneft liabiity BHaR 8916 an an (669) (976 - (o76) 7548
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
34. PROVISION FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS 34 RAEFBE @
(continued)
2021 202145
Pension cost charged to profit or loss Remeasurement gains in other comprehensive income
SARGHERERE AR 2ENENERHEYE
Actuarial
changes Sub-total
Sub-total arising from included
included changes in in other
1 January Net in profit Benefit financial  Experience comprehensive 31 December
2021 interest or loss paid assumptions  adjustments income 2021
BHBER AR
1201E HABEN EEMIELY 2EAER  RaE
1B1B #EEE N8 BfiRE  BEET  EhER IGHE 128318
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETn ABBTn ARBTn ARBTn ARETn ARETR
Defined benefit obligations RERHER 7,548 24 234 (533) 20 - 210 7459
Beneft liabiity BHER 1,548 24 234 (533) 210 - 20 7459
35.ISSUED CAPITAL 35. BE{TiR A
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215 1220204
12831H 12831H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET IEUNSLSEE
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
5,140,326,000 (31 December 2020: 5,140,326,0000% (20204
5,140,326,000) ordinary shares of 12831H : 5,140,326,000/%)
HK$0.10 each SREECI10B T EER 514,033 514,033
Equivalent to RMB’000 ZEARETT 460,153 460,153
During the year, there was no movement in issued capital. RERN BEBTRAMEES -
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 100 to 101 of the financial
statements.

(i) Contributed surplus

In March 2018, Maoye China and Zhongzhao Investment
(collectively, the “Vendors”) entered into a framework agreement
and a compensation agreement with Maoye Commercial that
the Vendors agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of
Chongqging Maoye Department Store Co., Ltd. (the “Target
Company”) to Maoye Commercial at a total consideration of
RMB403,301,400.

According to the compensation agreement, the Vendors shall
compensate Maoye Commercial with cash if the accumulated
audited net profits, without taking into account the effect of
non-operating gains and losses, of the Target Company for the
years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 fail to meet
the guaranteed profits. In 2020, the Vendors compensated
Maoye Commercial with cash of RMB1,060,400, of which
RMB182,000, was attributable to non-controlling interests.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

36. RESERVES (continued) 36. {#E @

(ii) Statutory surplus reserve

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current year and the prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 100 to
101 of the financial statements.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC subsidiary
of the Group is required to allocate 10% of its profit after tax
to the statutory surplus reserve until such reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiary. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the PRC Company Law, part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be converted to increase paid-up
capital/issued capital of the PRC subsidiary, provided that the
remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less than 25% of
the registered capital.

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 30 November 2020 (the “Acquisition Date”), a subsidiary of the
Group acquired a 100% interest in Renhe Investment from Chengdu
Renhe Industrial (Group) Limited (“Renhe Industrial”), which is
a third party of the Group. Renhe Investment is engaged in the
operation of the Jincheng art palace project, holding the land use
right of the state-owned construction land of the Jincheng art palace
project and the real estate property rights of the completed buildings.
The purchase consideration was in the form of cash: (i) Chengshang
Group paid RMB870,000,000.00 to Renhe Industrial to settle the
liabilities assumed by Renhe Investment before the Acquisition Date,
in which case Renhe Investment shall repay RMB870,000,000.00 to
Chengshang Group in due course; and (i) Chengshang Group shall
complete the equity transfer payment of RMB228,572,008.89 within
180 days after the Acquisition Date.
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720205118300 (TU BB HER)) » &
BN —RBNEBASBREICHEE (&
B BRASE (MZHMBXE) > AKEEMN
F=7) WEBLCMKRERN100% R
MEEREBLEENEN=EE 38
IRMEM S EEMIRENEEERBME
ETHEEEUKREERREREN LS
EEE BEREILUREEAIZM
(W EERRWE AR ACHNEE
4 AR #870,000,000.007T » LUK
CHEBERENEE FIRBRT
NMEXBEERONBEREEARE
870,000,000.007T ; (i) Ak 2 5 E 22 H Uk
FEOHE%B1800 N IR EEE[TRA
R #5228,572,008.897T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 FE R &



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CrEe RSN

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
37.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 7. (e @
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Renhe CHMRERBWERNTRNEERE
Investment as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BzARBENT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
1 Uit B s
FEEREY
AREE
Notes RMB’000
= AREF T
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEMEE 17 3
Completed properties held for sale FEHFEEEMYE 69,126
Properties under development BRAYE 27 1,377,517
Cash and bank balances RE& MIRTTAARR 468
Trade receivables FEWE 5 18 427
Prepayments and other receivables FE A FUIE B A At FE U FRIE 16,190
Contract liabilities, deposits received, GREE -BWEES EBHAERK
accruals and other payables HtEIIa (878,134)
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITEMR (339,190)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEIRIE B (& (101,782)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRAnBESEZAHNFEERE 144,625
Goodwill on acquisition WS Ry e & 20 83,947
Satisfied by cash DIREX N 228,572
The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables FEUN & 5 FR I8 K B fih FE U TR IB 5L U BE B
as at the date of acquisition amounted to RMB427,000 and B AREBED A ARTE427,0007T K&
RMB16,190,000, respectively. AR #16,190,0007T °
The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB1,000,000 for this KAEBBRRR HZESE AEK1,000,000
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are TR A - ZER G ABE L IHIL
included in other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or STAGREEmANEMAS -
loss.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for B 2 B BRI AT B EIRIFTE
income tax purposes. RIRIF
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) . EFaMH @

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

MWE—ENEB AR RE DU
e

RMB’000
ARBFT
Cash consideration HWERE (228,572)
Payment to Renhe Industrial to settle the U B EBRT A M E TR
liabilities assumed by Renhe Investment AECHEERENEGR
before the Acquisition Date (870,000)
Amounts due to Renhe Industrial FEHM- A E ZENFIE 228,572
Cash and bank balances acquired BUNEEIR S R IRTTAERR 468
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in st AR EEBFFEMNBESRE2RER
cash flows used in investing activities HEEBEYRE 35 (869,532)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in FAREEHEENREREZ
cash flows from operating activities R A A (1,000)
(870,532)

Since the acquisition, Renhe Investment contributed RMB147,000 to
the Group’s revenue and RMB129,000 to the consolidated profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year ended
31 December 2020, the revenue from continuing operations of the
Group and the loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have been RMB6,913,312,000 and RMB253,664,000,
respectively.

206  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 72 BIFS £ i 5 [RA 5

BUWEEE  CHEEREE2020F128
STHIEFEARERNKEG MixaHE
%J%ﬁ)\&% 47,0007t & A R #129,000
EO

MEHREE2020F12831HIEEEY)
BT AEEREFELSE XN E
RAEFEMNEE2020F128318 IEFEE
B8 DR A AR 16,913,312,00071 K&
AR 1§253,664,0007T °
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Year ended 31 December 2021
EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

38.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. BREREMERMEE
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) EXIERERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to the right- RER AEEB I M KRIEFNAE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB65,127,000 (2020: non- EZHnRNEREEEREES
cash subtractions of RMB22,373,000) and RMB65,127,000 BB IFREIGMARLES5,127,000
(2020: non-cash subtractions of RMB22,373,000), respectively, 7t (20205  FFBREFRPDARE
in respect of lease arrangements for lands and buildings. 22,373,0007t) & A 165,127,000

7t (20204 ( ERE RV AR
22,373,000,7T) °

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities b) REEBFIELSENES

2021

20215

USD Loansfrom Loan from
Bank and senior fellow athird  Dividend Interest Lease
other loans notes subsidiaries party  payable  payable liabilities

REAR %
Bk i WELR B=hf
AftER  EERE GANER  HER  EWRE RONE  HAAR st
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
AERTR ARETR ARBTR ARNTR ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARNTR

At 1 January 2021 1202151818 14,342,459 - 4,052,843 - - 385,096 2,596,177 21,376,575
Changes from financing cash flows REHERSTENED (27,590) - 797,201 - - (825880)  (443637)  (499,886)
New lease e - - - - - - 13,383 13,383
Interest expense MEES - - - - - 086998 150471 1,146,469
Covid-19-related rent concessions KB HEANCovid-19

from lessors RERSEE - - - - - - (10342 (10,349)
Reassessment and revision of lease terms~ E3HER BT ASER - - - - = = 62,086 62,086
Increase arising from acquisttion of ELfBUE-ENBATN

a subsidiary 5 - - - - - - - -
Interest capitalised HMEERL - - - - - 60,300 - 60,300
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 14,314,869 - 4,850,064 - - 606,514 2,377,138 22,148,585
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

38.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 3. ZERERERMT @
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEBFIELESENES @
(continued)
2020
2020
USD  Loansfrom  Loan from
Bank and senior fellow athird Dividend Interest Lease
other loans notes  subsidiaries party payable payable liabilties Total

RERR b3
1R xr KELE B=KEA
HitEH BARE BANER  MER  EURE  RANE  HERR st
RVBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBOO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RWB'00
ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETH ARETR

At 1 January 2020 1R2020E1R10 14570212 1549700 1,132,383 140,000 - 202,477 2,857,485 20,612,257
Changes from financing cash flows REHERENENED (570454 (15497000 2920460 (1400000 (90,718 (1028599 (415858 (874,869
New lease g - - - - - - 13,062 13,062
Interest expense HERS - - - - - 1054605 176923 1,231528
2019 final dividend 019EKBRE - - - - 90,718 - - 90,718
Covid-19-refated rent concessions REHAANCovid-19
from lessors REfALER - - - - - - BTy (37928
Reassessment and revision of lease terms~ EdTsHERETAEE - - - - - - 2,493 2493
Increase arising from acquisition of ELfBlE-BRBATN
a subsidiary ) 342,701 - - - - - - 342,701
Interest capitalised HEERTL - - - - - 96,607 - 96,607
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 14,342,459 - 4052843 - - 385,096 2,596,177 21,376,575
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (o) THERERHE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of SARESERERNHEERES ML
cash flows is as follows: BU0E -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AEETFIT
Within operating activities RREFHA (7,965) (10,933)
Within financing activities REEEERN (443,637) (415,858)

(451,602) (426,791)
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EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

39. COMMITMENTS 39. /K55

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the KEBRREFERBUTERES !
reporting year:

31 December 31 December
2021 2020

20214 20204
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AEREFIT

Contracted, but not provided for, Bttt R EFETA
in respect of land and buildings BRIEEE 3,081,988 2,999,941
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 40. B4 533 5 B 4568

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (@) =R BRILI RS HAMES 2 Pt
financial statements, the Group had the following material R REBEBEMBBFETTT
transactions with related parties during the year: FIBRRG .

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARBTT ARETR
(1) Recurring transactions (1) RBEHUERS
Management fee income from REBFEEWERE
the operation of department TEEWA
stores:
Wuxi Maoye Property Co., Ltd. BIRREEEERRAT
Shopping Centre Branch BYHRLD AT i & W) - 313
- 313
Management fee expense REFEENEEESY .
from the operation of a
department store:
Shenyang Commercial City Co., BEEERROBERAR
Ltd. (Commercial City’) :E 3:7) (i) & (ix) 246 255
246 255
Promotion and EERESHX
advertising expenses
Shenzhen Shijin Business At & BB HRERAE
Consulting Co., Ltd. (TRt )
("Shenzhen Shijin”) (x) 1,707 -

1,707 -
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EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 40. B4 533 5 Bl45 68 (@)

(continued)

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material

(@) F7A - ERILE F53k S Ktk oo Frat
RPN AEBMBREBSETT T

transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

IERRS @ (1)

2021 2020
20215 20205
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HisE ARETR NS
(2) Non-recurring transactions  (2) JEREHRS
Loans repayment by: RAUTEHEANER
Commercial City W (i) 46,400 -
46,400 -
Interest income on loans to: AU TEHREERN
FISWA :
Commercial City P, (i) 25,490 8,989
25,490 8,989
Loans from: AUTEHFEANER
Shenzhen Maoye Group FUREEE (i) & (vi) 773,000 3,366,460
Chongde Property Management SEYEEE CFRYI)
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAE 0] 485,930 -
Shenzhen Oriental Times EITHRFRRES
Industry Co., Ltd. BEFRRE (] 92,000 -
Chongaing Maoye Real Estate EEREMEBRAT
Co., Ltd. 0) 33,870 -
1,384,800 3,366,460
Repayment of loans to: BUATEAFEEER
Shenzhen Maoye Group FIREER (i) & (vi) 165,000 446,000
Maoye Department Store REBEREBRAE
Investment Limited (ii) 31,879 -
Chongde Property Management SEYEEE CFYID
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAE 0] 346,130 -
Shenzhen Oriental Times EITHRFRFRES
Industry Co., Ltd. BEXBRRE (] 50,000 -
Chongging Maoye Real Estate EEREMEBRAT
Co., Ltd. ) 33,870 -
626,879 446,000
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 40. B4 53 5 Bl4E 68 (@)

(continued)

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

. ‘ . . (@ FA - BRILY kS H M E6 0 Bt
financial statements, the Group had the following material

RPN AEBMBREBSETT T

232

transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

JERRS : (18

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B sE AEBFR AR¥EF T
Interest expense on loans from: AU TEABAERE
HBHX:
Shenzhen Maoye Group FIREEE (i) & (vi) 171,557 92,526
Maoye Group Limited REEBRBRAT 0) 9,403 9,712
Chongde Property Management SEYEER CFYI
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. BRAR ) 849 -
Shenzhen Oriental Times ARG RFRES
Industry Co., Ltd. BEXBRAT () 109 -
Chongaing Maoye Real Estate EEREMERRAR
Co., Ltd. (i) 125 -
Maoye Department Store KEBEREBRAT
Investment Limited (i 27,215 29,377
209,258 131,615
Banking facilities T5IRAE A R RRSRITER
guaranteed by:
Shenzhen Maoye Group FEIZEERE (i) & (vii) 1,556,000 2,256,000
Mr. Huang Mao Ru and BRNEERREZ T
Mrs. Huang Jingzhang jointly (E R85
and severally (i) & Vil 6,918,106 6,230,997
Xinghua Industrial WEEE (i) & (vii) 100,000 -
Chongging Maoye Real Estate EEREMERRAT
Co., Ltd. (i) & (vii) 550,000 500,000
Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong N=V e (i) & (vil) 60,000 40,000
9,184,106 9,026,997
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  40. fik 5 32 5 Bl 45 8R (@)

(continued)

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year: (continued)

M

(vi)

(vii)

They are fellow subsidiaries of the Company.

It is the immediate holding company of the Company.
Commercial City is an associate of the Company.

Mr. Huang Mao Ru is a director of the Company.

The management fee income from the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and the fellow
subsidiary of the Company. Since the contract was
terminated in May 2020, there was no income from the
contract in this year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Maoye
Shangsha obtained loans from Shenzhen Maoye
Group amounting to RMB773,000,000 with an annual
interest rate of 4.75%, and repaid a principal amount of
RMB165,000,000.

Certain of the Group’s bank loans were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Maoye Group, Mr. Huang Mao Ru, Mrs. Huang
Jingzhang, Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong, Xinghua Industry and
Chongging Maoye Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(viii) Mr. Lin Zhen Xiong is the legal person of a subsidiary.

()
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The management fee expense on the operation of a
department store was determined based on the underlying
contract as agreed between the Group and the related
parties.

Shenzhen Shijin is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Huang, Tony,
who is the son of Mr. Huang Mao Ru and the director of
Shenzhen Maoye Shangsha.

The related party transactions in respect of items 40(a)(x)
above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

(@) F7AERILH F ¥R H a0 Frat
R oh o AE B RS E

77T

HIERRS @ (1)

M

(vi)

(vii)

RN SIS SN PN
HARARNBNEFERAF
[EHES PR NCIENE S PNS|
HRMSERERTES-

EETEEMBEEMNERE R
ARBEAEBLAKRNERZH
BAGMEZNHEHBEESNRETE
AR EH B 2020F5 8 4548
I RERNBERZEOEED
W Es o

%&2021&12%31 HIEEE

REBEBRF illm%%léﬁ%ﬁ%
AR 773,000,000 B 7
4. 75% M EFIET B WE(E
E AR 165,000,00070 K & &
g o

A5 S T IRITERY m R
RE (BE) ~=mRWEE REF

L - MEEEE BEBER

EERFEMERRABER

(i) 4 55 1 5 45 75 — SR 2 30 0

()

EHIA

MEOEEMELENEEER
Se TH AR ¥ A B [ B RR Bk 75 10 %
E@*ﬁ%ﬁ I:Iul]EEIEO

FINEEBHUANG, Tonyf%éE
(ERMEEZ FRENKE
BENES) 2EHBENART -

£3X5540(a)(x) BBI R 5 2 5
TER E TR BB 14AEFIE &
REXZNITFEFAERS -
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(continued)
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties
as at the end of the reporting period are included in notes 29
and 32 to the financial statements.

40. BB 75 32 5 BLAEER (@)

(b)

SRR TS B R (EIBASER

AE B PR S R R 5 8K E
BIE R BHN M BB R T2k
320

(c) Compensation of key management (c) EEEEASHM
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFIT
Salaries and allowances e BoEE 3,961 3,204
Retirement benefits BIREA 156 13
4,117 3,217
Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8. EEMENE—TEBEHNHIES
o
(d) The Group has rental contracts with five fellow subsidiaries of the d ZERCHAEEARBREBER

Group. At the reporting date, the Group had total lease liabilities
with fellow subsidiaries under non-cancellable leases falling due

B EEEEN - NREAH &
EiREAABUEAE LR R B AR

as follows: BIZENR SRR ESEEENT .
31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204

12H31H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

INTSS A RET

Lease liabilities — current HEaE—RE 68,993 68,080
Lease liabilities — non-current HESE—IFENE 995,750 1,068,986
1,064,743 1,137,066

Under such rental contracts, the minimum lease payment
during the year was RMB146,798,592 (31 December 2020:
RMB131,992,704). As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s right-
of use assets relating to such rental contracts amounted to
RMB1,200,502,882 (31 December 2020: RMB1,245,815,000).

234  MAOYE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 2 BIfS i 5 fRA 5

REZEHEHEEH RNERNE
BHEENZAARK146,798,592
7T (2020F12H31H : AR
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 4. 2R T AN EE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial PRHREPRSESH TANKRTEE?
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: RAE
2021 20215

Financial assets

Financial assets at FVPL
UanEEAEEHES
StABRENEREE
Designated

as such
upon initial
recognition

Mandatorily
designed
as such

e
SBBHEE
RMB’000

ARBTT

EHEE AR E
RMB’000

ARBTT

Equity investments designated at

EEANAABEFERH

Financial
assets at
amortised
cost

Equity
investments
designated

28
et T
SHEE
RMB’000
AREF 5

FVOCI St A\ Ht2EiEn
BnkE - 1,354,735 - 1,354,735
Trade receivables MEWE S8 - 14,144 14,144
Financial assets included in stABAZIE AMEREIE
prepayments, other receivables REMEENSREE
and other assets 1,797,164 1,797,164
Loan to associates mHEABNER 68,324 68,324
Financial assets at FVPL UanBEtSEHEE)
STABHNEMEE 149,474 277,054 - - 426,528
Pledged deposits THER - - - 147,114 147,114
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIR2EEY - - - 1,197,116 1,197,116
149,474 277,054 1,354,735 3,223,862 5,005,125
Financial liabilities at FVPL
RAanEE:t=AHEES
SFAEGHNEREE
Financial
liabilities at
Held for amortised
trading cost Total
BAstEZ
Financial liabilities EWMAE BEEE SRHAaRE 4zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Trade and bills payables FE B S HIE KRR - 1,892,912 1,892,912
Financial liabilities included in s A B TRIE R
other payables and accruals EstERNEREas - 9,718,757 9,718,757
Lease liabilities HEar - 2,377,138 2,377,138
Interest-bearing bank loans and FFRIBTERREMER
other borrowings - 14,314,869 14,314,869
- 28,303,676 28,303,676
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HE2021512A31HILFE
41.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY M. ERTANSE@®
(continued)
2020 20204
Financial assets at FVPL
DARBESEE ST
SABGHNEREE
Designated Equity Financial
assuch  Mandatorily  investments assets at
upon initial designed  designated amortised
recognition as such at FVOCI cost Total
BER
UrnBEE
HERE
IR N
\ Ef2H B
o SIS WaRE)  FRAsHEE
Financial assets TREE REEE  BtEE  BnkE SREE st

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETR

Equity investments designated at BT %M’&ﬁfﬁ (el ﬁzﬂﬁ

FVoCI SEnst AR 2 E N
EniE - - 1,520,533 - 1,520,533
Trade receivables TEWE S8 - - - 11,015 11,015
Financial assets included in SHABARIE AMENFIE
prepayments, other receivables &Eﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ?@mﬂﬁ =3
and other assets - - - 1,740,183 1,740,183
Loan to associates m¥ERBNER - - - 114,724 114,724
Financial assets at FVPL NAnBEFEEEEE
STABENEMEE 10,712 28,028 - - 38,740
Pledged deposits THER - - - 245,919 245,919
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY - - - 1,046,689 1,046,689
10,712 28028 1520533  3,158530 4,717,803
Financial liabilities
at FVPL
UrnEETE
BESHH A
BaleHan
Financial
Held liabilities at
for trading  amortised cost Total
berg:i3ie
MAFTEZ
Financial liabilities =L HEBE e =V st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARBFT ARET T
Trade and bills payables FET B ZRIERER - 2,466,217 2,466,217
Financial liabilities included in ST AE M RRIE K
other payables and accruals FEsTEAMNTHEn - 9,106,251 9,106,251
Lease liabilities HEAR - 2,596,177 2,596,177
Interest-bearing bank loans and T EIRITER R HMER
other borrowings - 14,342,459 14,342,459

- 28,611,104 28,611,104
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HE2021F12831HIEEE
42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF REFMTEANALRBERLIAEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Z 4

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably
approximate to fair values, are as follows:

AEETHTAE GREEELEZQAAEE
GEMAEERN WEREEELEZARE
(7 U

Carrying amounts Fair values
REEBE NREE
KAL) T 31 December EERNDEIETNITM 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20215 20204
12831H 12831H 12831H 128318
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT NS ARETT EENGE:SWE
Financial assets EHEE
Equity investments designated EEAULNBEFEER
at fair value through other SEst ALt E2EKED
comprehensive income RRKE 1,354,735 1,520,533 1,354,735 1,520,533
Financial assets at fair value through NAnBEFEEEES
profit or loss STABRRNEREE 426,528 38,740 426,528 38,740
1,781,263 1,559,273 1,781,263 1,559,273
Financial liabilities ERMafE
Interest-bearing bank loans and S ERTERREMER
other borrowings 14,314,869 14,342,459 14,314,869 14,342,459
14,314,869 14,342,459 14,314,869 14,342,459

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade
and bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, loans to associates, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, and amounts due from/to
related parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the value of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

BEENLER ReBEEFEN B
RIRER BB SRR BRYESMIEA
REF 5t ARN IR HAEUWRRIE R
HthEENSMEE st AR
BERESERNRBREADERETHME
BUR B, FEA RS RIE T ERF
HEAEHIPTENAREBERRE
BEREE-

FEBMBHMPIEMBEENRE TS
EEEARAERIAERAEBEENK
RERERF MBEEE R MR
BtZEERE -EEEBRSHE MFH
WrIDHERM T ABENES WHETE
HETPRINEIEZHAE HEREH
FEHBER B A o mL P HA R F S i 75 ER
BMs SFREASRGZEGMMGEER
R G RETE D MRG58 ©
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 2. TMTANAREBERAREE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The fair value of the liability portion of the
convertible bonds is estimated using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar convertible bond.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted
market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated using a market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market
prices or rates. The valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based on industry, size,
leverage and strategy, and to calculate an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to book (“P/B”) multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”)
multiple, for each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the comparable
company by an earnings measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity and size differences
between the comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is applied to the
corresponding earnings measure of the unlisted equity investments
to measure the fair value. The directors believe that the estimated
fair values resulting from the valuation technique, which are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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Year ended 31 December 2021

HZE2021F12831HIEFE
42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF Q2. FHTANIABERLIAEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B4k (@)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TR 2021 F 22020512831 H &
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative MTEGEMBANERTIEREH AR
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2021 and 2020: KEEFRHED T :
Valuation Significant unobservable
technique input Range Sensitivity of fair value to the input
fh{E R EARAHRRBAE &M ARBEEHBAENHRRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average P/E multiple 20214 ! 5% (2020:5%) increase/decrease in
investments multiples of peers 11.53-265.58 multiple would result in
FLrmEaKRE HERH increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB1,583,000
(2020: RMB1,400,000)
EESS Lk 2020%F 1 BB LT TPE5% (2020%F 1 5%)
37.59-220.23 BERARBELM, R
AR #1,583,0007T
(20204 : A ¥1,400,0007T)
Average P/B multiple 20214 : 5% (2020:5%) increase/decrease in
of peers 0.60-2.42 multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair value by
RMB3, 777,000
(2020: RMB4,537,000)
FIZFHmRE 2020%F : fEELF T FEE% (20204 : 5%) &
0.23-2.46 ERRAAEELM AL
AE#3,777,0007T
(20204 : A #4,537,0007T)
Discount for lack 20214 : 5% (2020:5%) increase/decrease
of marketability  17.51%-27.63% in discount would result in
decrease/increase in fair value by
RMB1,533,000
(2020: RMB1,532,000)
AR HIFRBIE TR 2020%F ©  fBEELLEFTFHES% (20204 : 5%)

16.28%-25.12% BENA DBEEM, B
AR 4,533,00070
(2020%F : AR 1,532,0007T)
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EZFE2021FE12A31HILEE

42.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

As at 31 December 2021

2 GRTANRABERARAE

[=N1 I|E

DREERR
TRARAEESH T AN ARBEES
BREMR:

BATE BNEE
#2021%F12831H

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices
in active
markets

ERTIERE

Bk
RMB'00
ARETT

Financial assets at fair value

AR BEHEEEEE

AABEAEER
Significant
observable

inputs
ATHEN
BEXBAE

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BAFRTHEH
BAE

Level 3

B=H
RMB’000
ARETT

Total
st
RMB’000

ARBFR ARBTFR

through profit or loss HABRNEREE 417,053 - 9,475 426,528
Equity investments designated BEANAAEBESNEAE
at fair value through other S AR MEEKEN
comprehensive income BaRE 724,084 - 630,651 1,354,735
1,141,137 - 640,126 1,781,263
As at 31 December 2020 120205%12H31H
Fair value measurement using
ARBEEFEFER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
O8RY  BAFIRE
BEMISRE BABAE HEAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 ) E=1 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT NS
Financial assets at fair value A EEsE B EEH
through profit or loss SABENEREE 28,028 - 10,712 38,740
Equity investments designated EEANAABEHERR
at fair value through other 2t AEM2miER
comprehensive income BaKE 868,788 - 651,745 1,620,533
896,816 - 662,457 1,569,273

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into and out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. MR EIE B EMEBER

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank loans, amounts due from/to related parties, and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating interest
rates.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of the interest-
bearing bank loans of the Group are set out in note 33 above.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact of
floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity during the year.

FAEBNIEERITEQESERITE
R FENFEAT R EE S RIBE U R IR & K
ReEBY -ZFEMIANTIELN
ERTEENKEXBEEET A&
B B E R E 5 I KR & B 7 m AT
NS EEMEMEEREREERE
EEEERET-

FEENERMIAMEEZTEZRRE
EAREREINERE EERE O RE
MERERERRE BEFETBEZKRIHE
EEEERBRIBR ) IEFBRBE MR
LI

2R
AEBAR T BUEARERTHFKEH
EEAERMN TSRS A -

AEEGFERTERNEEFEEER
&R E L £ SCMiEE33

TRIVTR BT EAREE R A
(BBRIEEINTE) REAEEED
EFMERMEBEERFTENBE R THA
RENERNEERISEEBHERE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in basis points before tax in equity”
HEgm, FRAR A Rz,
(R g, GR) (R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBFT
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
RMB AR 100 (246,426) -
RMB AR (100) 246,426 -
31 December 2020 2020%E12831H
RMB AETE 100 (187,447) -
RMB AR (100) 187,447 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIELEFEERN
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. R EEBENEE @

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk primarily relates to the
Group’s foreign interest-bearing bank borrowings, the currencies of
which are different from the functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United States
dollar exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities).

S s B

AEEZ B BISNE LR T B AL EE
SNERIRITERAR ZEFEBNHRAH
EEER R EEEHE-

RIS B AR A B B0 A0 F)
EFMERMEBERFTAENBR TEE
TEXRGEEEHSIENEREER
BRNADEBEEHIHRKE-

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in US$ rate before tax
EmEX FRIGAIF)E
EF(CFB)  3Em R
% RMB’000
ARBFT
2021 20215
If RMB weakens against the WARBRETEE
United States dollar (5%) 140
If RMB strengthens against the WARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (140)
2020 20205
If RMB weakens against the WARBERETERE
United States dollar (5%) 16,281
If RMB strengthens against the WARBRETHE
United States dollar 5% (16,281)

Credit risk

The Group’s sales of merchandise are mainly on a cash basis. For
credit sales, the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. B ESEIRE B EMEBE @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERRE (@
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RAMO R F G 758
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure TRETKI1I2AIIBEREAEBEFEERK
to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which is mainly R (EFEERBERBER BRIFEHA
based on past due information unless other information is available B % A A RS 0 BN ] AR Y H A & ks ]
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at B SHNEEEREEAEERMIK
31 December. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts OREREEDIE-FMETEBEAER
for financial assets. EENKREEE.
As at 31 December 2021 #42021512831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+Z{EREH
EEEE AfEAEREREEHE
Simplified

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
FMEE FIRE W E=RE [k
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR

Loans to associates BHE RER 68,324 - = - 68,324
Trade receivables* MEW & 5 7E" - - - 14,144 14,144
Financial assets included in EPNENESER

prepayments, other receivables HEWEIE R

and other assets HthWEENEREE

- Normal* —FE™ 1,532,196 - - - 1,532,196

~ Doulbtful™ —a]kE 264,968 - - - 264,968
Pledged deposits BIEEER

— Not yet past due Gkl 147,114 = = = 147,114
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEY

- Not yet past due —H R EHA 1,197,116 - - - 1,197,116

3,209,718 - - 14,144 3,223,862
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

43. I E G EIE B EMEBE @

FERMK @)
BAMI R FE RS 748 ()
2020 12831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZEATEH
FEEE AEREREREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—REEL FTREER F=MEEL K 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR®BTT ARETT ARETT ARET®
Loans to associates BHE RER 114,724 - - - 114,724
Trade receivables® B ZHE - - - 11,015 11,015
Financial assets included in STABARIE
prepayments, other receivables Hh WA &
and other assets HthEENERHEE
- Normal** —Eg~ 1,513,685 - - - 1,513,685
- Doubtful™ —BJ A 226,498 - - - 226,498
Pledged deposits BIRREM
- Not yet past due —mRAEH 245,919 - - - 245,919
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY
- Not yet past due — A AR AR 1,046,689 - - - 1,046,689
3,147,515 - - 11015 3,158,530

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for
impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 28
to the financial statements.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not
past due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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HZE2021F12831HIEFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. AR B EMEER @)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk TRENTE R B
The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and cash AEENBRABERAEREMRESE
equivalents and have available funding through bank and other BY UHEARTRAMERLUNER
borrowings to meet its working capital requirements. EEEEELAFER
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring AEBEBRBAKBEERBHESFE TR
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its EEETHMNER LIEBETAZES
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and MTITEAREHEE FIUWEWEZHIEB)
projected cash flows from operations. NEBABERARREEESNEFTIRE R

8o

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end PSR ERSOMRERGHRE
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted RHEENIBERTWT

payments, was as follows:

2021
20214
Less than

On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
HEK —&RN —&ENE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ETT ARETT AREBTT

Lease Liabilities HEEaR - 276,666 2,100,472 2,377,138
Trade and bills payables ENEZRIENREE - 1,455,981 436,931 1,892,912
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aNaR BlEe-

accruals and other payables FEEH & B R M T8 - 9,718,757 = 9,718,757
Interest-bearing bank and other SHERITERRAMBR

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FroEHEaR) - 6,925,418 9,639,044 16,564,462

- 18,376,822 12,176,447 30,553,269

2020
20204
Less than
On demand 1 year Over 1 year Total
BREX —ER —FME 18t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTR  AR®T:

Lease Liabilities HEaR - 262,934 3,128,045 3,390,979
Trade and bills payables ENEZTERER - 2,466,217 - 2,466,217
Contract liabilities, deposits received, aHhaE slgs

accruals and other payables fEst &R R EMENTIE - 9,106,251 - 9,106,251
Interest-bearing bank and other sHERITEMRAMBER

borrowings (excluding lease liabilities) FEEHEaR) - 5,650,316 11,918,452 17,568,768

= 17,485,718 15,046,497 32,632,215
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the level of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income (note 24) and individual equity
investments included in financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (note 24). The Group's listed equity investments are listed on the
Shenzhen and Shanghai stock exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the year were as follows:

31 December
2021

2021
12A318

Shenzhen - A Share Index EI—ARHEE

Shanghai - A Share Index EE-ARIEH

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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43. I E G EIE B EMEBE @

=B m Rz

FRAB RLRR 2 15 (R B 4 5 SR F K2 fE B 58
SEBEEHERNREEBZSFAAEET
KR ER AEEEHNRERRERRES
BERMUARBEFEEEEHF AR
fth2EUW A EERE (Mi5E24) KR
AEESFEEHEEFF ABTNEME
ERERRmRE (f5E24) - AEMEB
FHRERENRIIR EERER S
£ RIS REPARDERE

REARBAERSHARNZZ B EXER
BIAE R BT NOE SR ZPRBI™HI5 R
BHEMAESBERFANRS RREEN
Lk

Year ended Year ended
YR 8 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2020
HE2021% HZE2020%F
12A31H 20205 12H31H
IEEFE 128318 HFE
High/low High/low
5/18 5/ 1&
2,691/2,229 2,438 2,450/1,625
3,732/3,313 3,473 3,475/2,647
BEXEE

AEREAEENTEBRBEREL
Fa@EnEaT R R EBRNEARLER,
USZHHEEB I RRRAERAEE-

AEBRIBL B TN EE L KABE
ENERSEEEAREEREE A
MR RARBREARER AEE G RE
SN FRENRKRE BREREBER
BTG - AEB AT M INEBHEIMN Y
BERRERR R E E20216FE 520204
1283 1HIEFER BEAEEBRE K
R A2 A B AE T 2 & o
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EHZFE2021F12A31HILEE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as lease
liabilities plus interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
(other than convertible bonds) less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. Capital includes the equity attributable to owners
of the parent. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2021 and

2020 were as follows:

43. I E G EIE B EMEBE @

BAREE @

AEERBEASBILEEETEAR Z
LI EIEFRRUEARN L EIEFER
ZHstE - FEIEFERAEEENTE
IRITERREMER GRATBRRESN
BEEKRBEBY RERFFENRG
H-EAGEGATHEB ABGRER A&
EENBRERELAEBILEERTRSG
YK F o jR20214F 5220205 12H31H

MNEARSELEERNT :

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20214 20204

12831H 12H31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARTFIT

Lease liabilities HEa®E 2,377,138 2,596,177
Interest-bearing bank loans and other T EIRITER R HMER

borrowings 14,314,869 14,342,459
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and BIRERIREEEM R

pledged deposits BIRFER (1,344,230) (1,292,608)

Net debt BIEF 3R 15,347,777 15,646,028

Equity attributable to owners of the parent ~ BFASIEE AFE(EEEE 13,715,262 12,968,145

Adjusted capital KRR ER 13,715,262 12,968,145

Capital and net debt BARMBIEZEE 29,063,039 28,614,173

Gearing ratio BEAREBIEE 53% 55%
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44. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS 44, B BFEFRER

Guarantees amounting to RMB515,387,800 (2020: RMB770,109,900)
are given to banks with respect to mortgaged loans procured by
the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon the issuance of the real estate ownership
certificates to the purchasers or the satisfaction of the mortgaged
loans by the purchasers, whichever is earlier. In the opinion of
directors of the Company, the fair value of the financial guarantee
contracts is not significant.

45.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 January 2022, Zhongzhao, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a letter of intent with Commercial City,
an associate of Zhongzhao, in relation to a potential acquisition.
Pursuant to the letter of intent, Zhongzhao intends to acquire,
and Commercial City intends to sell, 100% equity interests in
Shenyang Commercial City Department Store Co., Ltd. (the “Target
Company”), a limited liability company established in the PRC and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Commercial City, which is principally
engaged in the operation of department stores. The acquisition is
subject to a further agreement between the parties.
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45.

AEBMYENEXRFMELBERGIR
1TIRMH AR #515,387,8007T (20204 :
AR #770,109,9007T) FIHELR  SRITHE
BEREZHEEMEERSIYWEERT
BB ER B UREEALE) BI%RZ
FHRR - NABESIE  ZEUBTERF
BRZAARBELFREKC

HREHRER

1R2022F1B11H  FIK (KRB E2EH
BAT)) HmER (PINEERAT) 5T
TERABERENERZ REZED
S ENEREGEEHEERRAT
(TEBEAS ARTEEMRILIZE
REXTAE  REERZE2EWEAT)
B100% @ MEERREEZSH#
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Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12831HIEFE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. AT MR RR

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

BB QAR RS BRYERRRNH
KA ;

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
20214 20204
12831H 12H831H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT ZRE 135,455 139,761
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables ?EH#IE T EL At FE U RRIE 104,908 89,209
Dividend receivable FEU AR B 1,140,275 1,177,072
Due from subsidiaries FEUS MT}E/ATTAIE 704,386 727,119
Due from related parties JFE Lk R B 7 TR 1B 25,729 26,307
Cash and cash equivalents REMIREEEY 2,401 52,475
Total current assets RN E EARRE 1,977,699 2,072,182
CURRENT LIABILITIES wREaE
Other payables and accruals Hih B et & A 2,785 2,080
Dividend payable EERE 25 26
Due to subsidiaries FE(SHI A BIRIE 727,309 748,511
Due to the immediate holding company e ERERATMIA 559,718 577,464
Interest-bearing bank loans and TEIRTTERREMMER
other borrowings 24,474 10,106
Total current liabilities TMENBE4EEE 1,314,311 1,338,187
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEIEEREE 663,388 733,995
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRHER
LIABILITIES 798,843 873,756
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAMGE
Interest-bearing bank loans and STRIRITEMREMER
other borrowings 63,631 90,949
Total non-current liabilities EREEELBEE 63,631 90,949
Net assets BEEFE 735,212 782,807
Equity o
Issued capital SEITRA 460,153 460,153
Reserves (note) % (50 275,059 322,654
Total equity TR AE%ER 735,212 782,807
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CiEe e

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021512A31HILFE
46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. AT A FFAR AR @
COMPANY (continued)
Note: Mt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABABBEES W T -
Share Capital Exchange
premium redemption Contributed  fluctuation = Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
R SME RS
ARG B it BRER 1kt RitEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT AE¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETT AE%®TR
Balance at 1 January 2020 12202041 B 18 B#E R 1,631,103 21,710 152,671 (409,667) (873,583) 528,204
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAEEEIELEEE - - - (130,922) (74,718) (205,640)
At 31 December 2020 120205F12831H 1,631,103 27,770 152,671 (540,589) (948,301) 322,654
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEEEEIEEE - - - (24,100) (23,495) (47,595)
At 31 December 2021 120215E12831H 1,631,103 21,770 152,671 (564,689) (971,796) 275,059
The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of RNBEBHBGFISFTWENB AT RO ARNE
the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over the previous nominal value of the BEREARATMAMEB TR BTEmEZ
Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor. ZHo
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 47. BAFEER A
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BRI B E R 202238 25HEEZEE= S
the board of directors on 25 March 2022. R ISRt T o
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhong Pengyi (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Lu Xiaojuan (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Bin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Rao Yong

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Gao Yajun

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion

Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands
HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

38/F, Tower A, World Finance Centre

4003 Shennan East Road, Shenzhen, PRC
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3301, 33/F
Office Tower Convention Plaza
No.1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. So Ka Man (FCS, FCIS)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Rao Yong (Chairman)
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Gao Yajun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Gao Yajun
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Huang Mao Ru (Chairman)
Mr. Rao Yong
Mr. Pao Ping Wing

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Mr. Wang Bin
Ms. So Ka Man

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE

Mr. Wang Bin
Ms. So Ka Man

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

Agricultural Bank of China

The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.maoye.cn

STOCK CODE
848
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